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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

siAy 28 2010
In the Matter of:

THE JOINT APPLICATION OF PPL
CORPORATION, E.ON AG, E.ON
US INVESTMENTS CORP,, E.ON
U.S. LLC, LOUISVILLE GAS AND
ELECTRIC COMPANY AND
KENTUCKY UTILITIES COMPANY
FOR APPROVAL OF AN
ACQUISITION OF OWNERSHIP
AND CONTROL OF UTILITIES

CASE NO. 2010-00204
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PPL Corporation (“PPL"), E.ON AG (“E.ON"), E.ON US Investments Corp.
(‘E.ON US Investments”), E.ON U.S. LLC ("E.ON U.S."), Louisville Gas and
Electric Company ("LG&E”) and Kentucky Utilities Company (“KU") (collectively,
the “Applicants”) jointly file this application (“Application”) for approval by the
Kentucky Public Service Commission (the “Commission”) under KRS 278.020(5)
and (6) of the acquisition by PPL of ownership and control of LG&E and KU. The
acquisition of ownership and control will result from the purchase by PPL from
E.ON US Investments of 100% of the limited liability company interests of E.ON
U.S., the parent company of LG&E and KU. The proposed acquisition will occur,
subject to the approval of the Commission and other regulatory agencies, under
the terms of the Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between E.ON US

Investments, PPL and, solely for purposes of Articles VI, Article IX and Article X




thereof, E.ON, dated as of April 28, 2010 (the “PSA"). A copy of the PSA is
attached as Exhibit A to this Application.’

The proposed acquisition satisfies the requirements of KRS 278.020(5)
and (6). For the reasons set forth below in this Application, the proposed
acquisition will be made by a person with the financial, technical and managerial
abilities to provide reasonable service, it will be made in accordance with law and
for a proper purpose, and it will be consistent with the public interest. The
Applicants respectfully request that the Commission accept the filing of this
Application, schedule a hearing for consideration of the proposed acquisition,
and enter a final order approving the proposed acquisition within the period of
time provided in KRS 278.010(6).

I Introduction.

Under the terms of the PSA, PPL will purchase from E.ON US
Investments 100% of the issued and outstanding limited liability interests of E.ON
U.S., the parent company of LG&E and KU. Upon the completion of the
proposed acquisition, E.ON U.S. will be a wholly owned direct subsidiary of PPL.
There will be no other changes in the corporate structure of E.ON U.S. and its
subsidiaries, although the names of the entities with “E.ON" in their current
names will be changed after the closing. The current names of LG&E and KU
will not be changed. PPL has not yet determined the new name of E.ON U.S.

LLC. Solely for convenience, this Application will refer to E.ON U.S. LLC as

' The Applicants have filed a petition for confidential protection of certain exhibits and schedules
to the PSA under 807 KAR 5:001, Section 7, and KRS 61.878(1)(c). In accordance with 807 KAR
5:001, Section 7, the Applicants have filed with this Application one copy of the PSA with the
confidential information highlighted and 10 copies without the confidential information.



“E.ON U.S.” for the period before the completion of the proposed acquisition, and
as “PPL Kentucky” for the period after the completion of the proposed
acquisition.

Upon the completion of the proposed acquisition, PPL Kentucky will
continue to hold LG&E and KU as wholly owned direct subsidiaries, together with
E.ON US Capital Corp. ("E.ON Capital”), E.ON US Foundation, Inc.; LG&E
Energy Marketing, Inc., and E.ON US Services, Inc. (“E.ON US Services”); and
E.ON Capital will continue to hold its current direct and indirect subsidiaries. A
chart showing the corporate structure of E.ON before the ¢ompletion of the
proposed acquisition is attached as Exhibit B to this Application. A chart showing
the same corporate structure following the consummation of the acquisition is
attached as Exhibit C to this Application.

PPL is aware of the history of the regulatory requirements that the
Commission imposed in previous cases involving the acquisition of ownership
and control of LG&E and KU, and the importance of those requirements to the
Commission. For that reason, PPL and E.ON US Investments agreed in the PSA
that PPL would offer to make to the Commission in this proceeding certain
regulatory commitments regarding the future operations of LG&E and KU that are
listed in Exhibit B to the PSA (the “Regulatory Commitments”). The Regulatory
Commitments are based substantially on commitments that were made to the
Commission by Powergen plc (“Powergen”) and E.ON in the two previous cases,

Case Nos. 2000-095 and 2001-104. The Regulatory Commitments are



discussed in greater detail below in this Application. A copy of Exhibit B to the
PSA is attached as Exhibit D to this Application.

The transactions contemplated by the PSA include the refinancing by
LG&E and KU, subject to the Commission’s approval, of certain unsecured notes
issued by LG&E and KU to Fidelia Corporation. Fidelia Corporation is an affiliate
of E.ON that is not proposed to be transferred to PPL. Contempbraneously with
the completion of the proposed acquisition, PPL will cause LG&E and KU to
repay and refinance all amounts outstanding and all other amounts then due and
payable under the unsecured notes held by Fidelia Corporation. LG&E and KU
have filed, at the same time as the filing of this Application, separate applications
| for the approval of these refinancings under KRS 278.300.2

i The Applicants.

PPL Corporation. PPL is a Fortune 500 global energy and utility
holding company headquartered in Allentown, Pennsylvania. PPL’'s wholly
owned subsidiary, PPL Electric Utilities Corporation (“PPL Electric”), traces its
origins to the merger in 1920 of eight utilities, which operated a combined total of
62 electric generating plants in and around central eastern Pennsylvania, into a
single corporate entity named Pennsylvania Power & Light Company. Since that
time, PPL has grown from a regional utility company to one of the 10 largest
utility companies in the United States. PPL owns or controls nearly 12,000

megawatts of electrical generating capacity in the United States, supplies or

2 See In the Matter of The Application of Louisville Gas and Electric Company for an Order

Authorizing the Restructure and Refinancing of Unsecured Debt and the Assumption of
Obligations and for Amendment of Existing Authority, Case No. 2010-00205; and In the Matter of:
The Application of Kentucky Utilites Company for an Order Authorizing the Restructure and
Refinancing of Unsecured Debt and the Assumption of Obligations and for Amendment of
Existing Authority, Case No. 2010-00206.



delivers electricity to about four million customers in the northeastern United
States and in the United Kingdom, and employs about 10,000 people on two
continents.

PPL is a publicly owned corporation. At current trading prices as of
the date of this Application, PPL's market capitalization is about $9.36 billion. In
2009, PPL reported total operating revenues of about $7.56 billion.

The mailing address of PPL is Two North Ninth Street, Allentown, PA
18101. Copies of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of PPL are attached
as Exhibit E to this Application. A chart that shows the current corporate
structure of PPL is attached as Exhibit F to this Application.

E.ON AG. E.ON is an Aktiengesellschaft formed under the laws of the
Federal Republic of Germany. An Aktiengesellschaft under German law
corresponds to a U.S. stock corporation. E.ON’'s shares are traded on all
German stock exchanges, including the electronic stock exchange, and its
American Depositary Receipts are traded on the over-the-counter market.

E.ON’'s mailing address is E.ON-platz 1, 40474 Dusseldorf, Federal
Republic of Germany. Copies of the Articles of Association of E.ON are attached
as Exhibit G to this Application.

E.ON US Investments Corp. E.ON US Investments is a corporation
formed under the laws of Delaware. E.ON US Investments is a wholly owned
indirect subsidiary of E.ON, and is the immediate parent company of E.ON U.S.

The mailing address of E.ON US Investments is 220 West Main Street,



Louisville, KY 40202. Copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of
E.ON US Investments are attached as Exhibit H to this Application.

E.ON U.S. LLC. E.ON U.S., also referred to in this Application as PPL
Kentucky for the period after the closing of the proposed acquisition, is a limited
liability company formed under the laws of Kentucky. The mailing address of
E.ON U.S. is 220 West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202. Copies of the Articles
of Organization and Operating Agreement of E.ON U.S. are attached as Exhibit |
to this Application. As noted above, a chart of the current corporate structure of
E.ON is attached as Exhibit B to this Application.

By an Order dated August 6, 2001 in Case No. 2001-104, the Commission
approved the acquisition of ownership and control of LG&E and KU resulting
from the acquisition by E.ON of Powergen. As a result of the acquisition by
E.ON of Powergen, E.ON US Investments became the parent company of LG&E
Energy Corp. (“LG&E Energy”), which was then the parent company of LG&E
and KU. LG&E Energy was merged into E.ON U.S. (then named LG&E Energy
LLC) on December 30, 2003 as an internal corporate reorganization under KRS
278.020(7)(b). LG&E Energy LLC changed its name to E.ON U.S. LLC on
December 1, 2005. Through a series of orders issued by the Commission
beginning in 1990, it is well established that E.ON U.S. is not a utility as defined

in KRS 278.010(3).°

% See the Order dated May 25, 1990 in Case No. 89-374, in which the Commission approved the
reorganization of LG&E as a regulated subsidiary of LG&E Energy; the Order dated September
12, 1997 in Case No. 97-300, in which the Commission approved the merger of KU's then-parent
company, KU Energy Corporation, into LG&E Energy; the Order dated May 15, 2000 in Case No.
2000-095, in which the Commission approved the merger of LG&E Energy and a subsidiary of
Powergen; and the Order dated August 6, 2001 in Case No. 2001-104, in which the Commission
approved the acquisition of Powergen by E.ON.



Louisville Gas and Electric Company. LG&E is a corporation formed
under the laws of Kentucky and is a wholly owned direct subsidiary of E.ON U.S.
LG&E is a utility as defined by KRS 278.010(3)(a) and (b), provides retail electric
service to about 393,000 customers and retail gas service to about 318,000
customers in 17 counties in Kentucky, and is subject to the Commission’s
jurisdiction as to its retail rates and service. The mailing address of LG&E is 220
West Main Street, Louisville, KY 40202. Copies of the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of LG&E are attached as Exhibit J to this Application.

Kentucky Utilities Company. KU is a corporation formed under the laws
of Kentucky and Virginia and is a wholly owned direct subsidiary of E.ON U.S.
KU is a utility as defined by KRS 278.010(3)(a), provides retail electric service to
about 513,000 customers in 77 counties in Kentucky and about 30,000
customers in five counties in southwest Virginia, and is subject to the
Commission’s jurisdiction as to its retail rates and service in Kentucky. The
mailing address of KU is One Quality Street, Lexington, Kentucky 40507. Copies
of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of KU are attached as Exhibit K to this
Application. Copies of maps showing the service territories and systems of
LG&E and KU are attached collectively as Exhibit L to this Application.

. The Proposed Acquisition Satisfies All Requirements of KRS
278.020(5) and (6).

A. PPL Has the Financial Ability to Complete the Proposed
Acquisition and to Cause LG&E and KU to Continue to Provide
Reasonable Service After the Completion of the Proposed
Acquisition.

PPL has the financial ability to complete the proposed acquisition of

E.ON U.S., and thereafter to provide safe and reliable service to customers and



to facilitate and participate in the growth of PPL Kentucky and the fulfillment of its
strategic goals. PPL has resources, bank facilities and confirmed commitments
to finance the acquisition, including a bridge financing commitment to ensure a
cash tender making up nearly 85% of the total purchase price, and a plan to
issue $750 million to $1.0 billion in high-equity-content securities and $2.2 to $2.6
billion in common stock after the closing of the proposed acquisition to replace
the bridge financing.

After the proposed acquisition, PPL will retain its strong financial
position to provide safe and reliable service to the customers of LG&E and KU.
Furthermore, the proposed acquisition will not affect the balanced capital
structures of LG&E and KU. Neither PPL Kentucky nor any of PPL Kentucky's
direct or indirect subsidiaries, including LG&E and KU, will incur any additional
indebtedness or issue any securities to finance any part of the purchase price
paid by PPL for all of the outstanding limited liability interests in E.ON U.S. As
noted above, contemporaneously with the completion of the proposed
acquisition, PPL will cause LG&E and KU to repay and refinance all amounts
outstanding and all other amounts otherwise then due and payable under the
unsecured notes held by Fidelia Corporation. LG&E and KU have filed, at the
same time as the filing of this Application, separate applications for the approval
of these refinancings under KRS 278.300.

PPL is a major utility holding company with approximately $22
billion in total assets, which generated over $7.56 billion in total operating

revenues in 2009. PPL targets disciplined growth in its energy supply margins



and limited volatility in both its cash flows and earnings. PPL has also achieved
stable long-term growth in its regulated electricity delivery businesses through
efficient operations and strong customer and regulatory relationships.

LG&E and KU will benefit from PPL’s history of financial strength
and consistent corporate health, which have resulted in a sound return on
shareholder investment. Since December 31, 2004, PPL's five-year cumulative
total return on its shareholders’ investment has outperformed the Edison Electric
Institute Index of Investor-Owned Electric Utilities and the Standard & Poor's 500
Index. PPL has increased its shareholder dividend for eight consecutive years,
with dividends paid in 258 consecutive quarters. PPL’'s book value and market
price per share increased by 7.5% and 5.2%, respectively, from December 31,
2008 to December 31, 2009. PPL currently forecasts 2010 earnings from
ongoing operations of $3.10 to $3.50 per share. PPL and its subsidiaries have
substantial access to financial markets with an unused domestic credit capacity
from its bank facilities exceeding $3.5 billion.

As a result of the proposed acquisition, PPL will become a more
geographically diverse utility holding company with approximately $33 billion in
total assets and combined annual revenues of about $10 billion. The proposed
acquisition will create an enterprise value of about $25.4 billion, as measured by
PPL’'s stock price on April 27, 2010. On a post-proposed acquisition basis, PPL
and its subsidiaries, including LG&E and KU, will serve nearly five million
electricity customers in the United States and the United Kingdom, and own or

control about 20,000 megawatts of U.S. electricity generating capacity. PPL’s



growth strategy is fiscally responsible, and the proposed acquisition exemplifies
PPL's commitment to balancing its business mix and sustainable long-term
growth. Finally, PPL did not consider any synergies or savings in evaluating the
economics of the proposed acquisition.

In summary, PPL is a substantial utility holding company that has
the financial ability to cause LG&E and KU to continue to provide reasonable
service to their customers after the completion of the proposed acquisition.

B. PPL Has the Technical and Managerial Ability to Cause LG&E

and KU to Continue to Provide Reasonable Service After the
Completion of the Proposed Acquisition.

Through its subsidiaries, PPL is primarily engaged in the generation
and marketing of electricity in two key markets (the northeastern and western
U.S.), and in the delivery of electricity in Pennsylvania and the United Kingdom.
PPL's principal direct subsidiaries are PPL Electric, which is responsible for
regulated utility operations in Pennsylvania; PPL Energy Funding Corporation
(“PPL Energy Funding”), which is responsible for unregulated energy operations;
and PPL Capital Funding, Inc., (“PPL Capital”), which is responsible for certain
corporate financing.

PPL delivers power to 1.4 million Pennsylvania customers through
PPL Electric. PPL Electric’s utility service is extremely reliable; on average, its
customers have power 99.9% of the time. PPL Electric maintains more than
48,000 miles of transmission and distribution lines to provide that service.
Moreover, until October 2008, PPL owned and operated PPL Gas Utilities
Corporation (“PPL Gas”), a Pennsylvania company with both natural gas

distribution and storage facilities, providing PPL with institutional knowledge
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regarding operating and maintaining natural gas distribution and storage
systems. PPL Electric has been an industry leader in helping customers in need
as one of the first utilities in Pennsylvania to offer programs to help low-income
customers pay electric utility bills. PPL Electric has ranked first in eight of the
past eleven annual J.D. Power Study of Business Customer Satisfaction among
Eastern U.S. utilities, and has received a total of 16 J.D. Power awards.

PPL Energy Funding serves as the holding company for PPL
Energy Supply, LLC, the parent company of PPL's principal unregulated
subsidiaries. Those principal unregulated subsidiaries are PPL Generation, LLC
(“PPL Generation”), which owns and operates U.S. generating facilities; PPL
EnergyPlus, LLC (“PPL EnergyPlus”), which markets and trades electricity and
gas in the wholesale and retail markets, and supplies energy in some markets;
and PPL Global, LLC ("PPL Global”), which indirectly owns and operates PPL’s
electricity distribution businesses in the United Kingdom.

PPL, through PPL Generation and its subsidiaries, owns and
operates a portfolio of domestic power generating assets located primarily in
Pennsylvania, Montana, lllinois, Connecticut and Maine. PPL Generation’s
power plants use a variety of fuel sources including coal, natural gas, oil, uranium
and water to produce energy.

PPL, through PPL EnergyPlus, sells electricity produced by the
portfolio of generation assets owned and operated by subsidiaries of PPL

Generation. PPL Energy Plus participates and trades energy in the wholesale
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and retail sectors, and also markets various energy commodities, primarily in the
northeastern and western United States.

PPL, through PPL Global and its subsidiaries, operates Western
Power Distribution (South West) plc (“WPD South West"), and Western Power
Distribution (South Wales) plc (“‘WPD South Wales”), each a regional electricity
delivery business operating in the United Kingdom. WPD South West and WPD
South Wales are two of the 15 distribution networks providing electricity service
in England and Wales, and together serve about 2.6 million customers. WPD
South West serves a 5,560 square-mile area of southwest England, distributing
power to about 1.5 million customers in that region. WPD South Wales operates
in an area of Wales 4,500 square miles in size and located directly opposite the
Bristol Channel from WPD South West's territory. WPD South Wales distributes
power to about 1.1 million customers in that region.

PPL has substantial and long-established technical experience by
virtue of its total generation capacity of about 12,000 megawatts, its large U.S.
and U.K. electricity delivery businesses, and its status as a leader in U.S.
electricity generation, supply and delivery. PPL's management team has
extensive experience providing efficient and reliable customer service to its
customers. PPL’s managerial experience and breadth of assets demonstrates
that PPL has the technical ability to ensure that Kentucky customers continue
receiving high quality service from LG&E and KU after the completion of the
proposed acquisition.

C. The Proposed Acquisition Will Be Made in Accordance with
Law.

12



The proposed acquisition was unanimously approved by the Board of
Directors of PPL at a meeting held on April 27, 2010. The proposed acquisition
does not require the approval of the shareholders of PPL. On April 27, 2010, the
Supervisory Board of E.ON accepted the recommendation of the E.ON Board of
Management to proceed with the proposed acquisition.

The closing of the transactions contemplated by the PSA is subject to
several regulatory conditions, in addition to approval by the Commission. PPL,
E.ON U.S., LG&E and KU will make all required federal and state regulatory
filings on a timely basis, and they expect to receive all required approvals.

The proposed acquisition must be approved by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC") under Section 203 of the Federal Power Act
(“FPA"™). PPL, LG&E and KU will file the necessary applications for approval
under the FPA with FERC.

The proposed acquisition will involve the transfer of ultimate control of
certain wireless frequency licenses held by LG&E and KU, which will require the
approval of the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”). LG&E and KU
will file applications for approval of the transfer of ultimate control of the licenses
with the FCC.

The proposed acquisition must be approved by the Virginia State
Corporation Commission (“WVSCC”) and the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
(“TRA"). The Applicants will file joint applications for approval, substantially

similar to this Application, with the VSCC and the TRA.
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A copy of each application for regulatory approval listed above will be filed
with the Commission promptly after it has been filed with the appropriate
commission or agency.

The proposed acquisition is subject to the premerger notification and
reporting requirements of the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976, as amended (“HSR Act"). PPL and E.ON will file the required premerger
notification and report forms with the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ") and the
Federal Trade Commission (“FTC").

The proposed acquisition, unlike the previous acquisitions by Powergen
and E.ON, will not create conflicting regulatory issues under federal and state law
governing public utility holding companies. Effective February 8, 2006, the Public
Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (the “1935 Act”) was repealed and replaced
by the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 (“PUHCA 2005").* PPL is a
holding company under PUHCA 2005, and includes a service company, PPL
Services Corporation (‘PPL Services”), that supplies non-power goods and
services to affiliates. LG&E and KU are currently part of a holding company
system that is operated by E.ON in compliance with PUHCA 2005, including the

similar use of a centralized service company, E.ON US Services.®

* Energy Policy Act of 2005, Pub. L. No.109-58, August 8, 2005, 119 Stat. 594 (the “Energy
Policy Act”), §§ 1263, 1274.

® Before the acquisition of LG&E Energy by Powergen in 2000, LG&E and KU were exempt from
the requirements of the 1935 Act After that acquisition, Powergen and the intermediate
companies between Powergen and LG&E Energy became registered public utility holding
companies under the 1935 Act, and LG&E Energy, LG&E and KU became part of Powergen’s
newly registered holding company system. After the acquisition of Powergen by E.ON in 2001,
Powergen was reclassified as a foreign utility company under the 1935 Act, and E.ON became a
registered public utility holding company system under the 1935 Act. LG&E Energy, LG&E and
KU became part of E.ON's newly registered holding company system.

14



PUHCA 2005 requires holding companies and their affiliate companies,
unless they meet narrow exemptions or waivers, to maintain and make available
books and records necessary and appropriate for the protection of utility
customers.® In addition, PUHCA 2005 requires holding company service
companies, such as E.ON U.S. Services, to maintain their records in accordance
with FERC's Uniform System of Accounts.” Further, PUHCA 2005 mandates that
holding companies and holding company service companies comply with FERC'’s
record retention rules.®. PUHCA 2005 also grants authority to state regulatory
commissions to obtain access to books and records of a holding company and its
affiliate companies, if the state commission determines such books and records
are relevant to the costs incurred by the electric or gas distribution utility it
regulates and access is necessary for the effective discharge by the state
commission of its responsibilities.® More importantly, nothing in PUHCA 2005
precludes FERC or a state commission from exercising its jurisdiction under
otherwise applicable law to protect utility customers.'®

PPL currently is exempt from certain FERC regulations under PUHCA
2005 because the bulk of its operations, as relevant to PUHCA 2005, are

1

intrastate in character.! After the completion of the proposed acquisition, PPL

® 18 C.F.R. § 366.2 (2009).

’ 18 C.F.R. § 366.22(b) (2009).
® 18 C.F.R. § 366.22(a) (2009); the record retention rules are contained in 18 C.F.R. pts. 125 and
225.

° Energy Policy Act, § 1265, codified at 42 U.S.C. 16453.

"% Energy Policy Act, § 1269, codified at 42 U.S.C. 16457.

' After the completion of the proposed acquisition, PPL expects to lose its “single-state holding
company system” exemption under 18 C.F.R. § 366.(3)(c)(1) and to be subject to FERC's
requirements as provided under PUHCA 2005. PPL Services and E.ON US Services will operate
as centralized service companies with pricing “at cost” for any services provided to LG&E, KU
and PPL Electric as was the standard under the 1935 Act. See Order No. 667, Repeal of the
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will no longer qualify as a single-state holding company system under PUHCA
2005, and LG&E and KU will become part of PPL’s holding company system
under PUHCA 2005 and will be subject to the same regulation to which they are
subject today. As noted above, there will be no change in the corporate structure
of E.ON U.S. as a result of the transaction, including the use of E.ON US
Services in compliance with PUHCA 2005. E.ON US Services has no plans at
this time to engage in any specific affiliate transactions with PPL's subsidiaries.
E.ON US Services may enter into affiliate service agreements with subsidiaries
of PPL after the completion of the proposed acquisition, if such agreements
would enhance operational flexibility.

The existing Power Supply System Agreement (*PSSA") and
Transmission Coordination Agreement (“TCA”") between LG&E and KU, each
dated October 9, 1997, will remain in place and will not be affected by the
proposed acquisition. '?

Thus, after the completion of the proposed acquisition, LG&E will continue
in existence as a corporation organized under Kentucky law; KU will continue in
existence as a corporation organized under Kentucky and Virginia law; both

LG&E and KU will continue to use E.ON US Services in compliance with PUHCA

Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 and Enactment of the Public Utility Holding Company
Act of 2005, 113 F.E.R.C. STATS. & REGS, 1 61,248, 70 Fed. Reg. 75592-01 (to be codified at 18
C.F.R. pts. 365,366); order on reh’g, Order No. 667-A, F.E.R.C. STATS & REGS. ] 31,213 (2006),
order on reh’g, Order No. 667-B, F.E.R.C. STATs & ReGS. Y] 31,224 (2008), order on reh’g, Order
No. 667-C, 118 F.E.R.C. §1 61,133 (2007).

2 In the Order issued on September 12, 1997 in Case No. 97-300 approving the merger of the
LG&E and KU holding companies, the Commission noted that the PSSA and the TCA "establish
the post-merger relationships between KU and LG&E with respect to the operation and planning
of their generation and transmission system [and] will be filed with and subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the FERC.” /d. at p. 18. PPL, E.ON U.S,, LG&E and KU have committed that any
proposed amendments to the PSSA or the TCA will be submitted to the Commission for its review
30 days in advance of filing the amendment with FERC. [Regulatory Commitment No. 7]
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2005; and the Commission will have the same ratemaking and regulatory
authority to regulate the rates and services of LG&E and KU under federal and
Kentucky law as it does today.

Because the proposed acquisition has received all necessary corporate
approvals, because all federal and state regulatory filings incident to the
proposed acquisition will be made on a timely basis and all required government
approvals will be received before closing the transactions contemplated by the
PSA, and because the proposed acquisition will not change the regulatory status
of LG&E and KU under Kentucky law, the proposed acquisition will be made in
accordance with law. '?

D. The Proposed Acquisition is for a Proper Purpose.

The proposed acquisition, like the previous acquisitions, will cause LG&E
and KU to be part of a larger utility system with the size and resources to permit
LG&E and KU to continue to provide superior service, and the experience and
expertise to succeed in the rapidly evolving energy industry. Thus, the proposed
acquisition, like the previous acquisitions, will permit LG&E and KU to continue to

meet their commitments to their customers, their communities and the

" The application of KRS 278.218 to the proposed acquisition is not entirely clear, but the

Applicants believe that it does not apply. KRS 278.218 was enacted in 2002 in response to the
crisis that resulted when Cailifornia utilities divested generation assets. The Commission and the
General Assembly wanted to ensure that the Commission would have oversight over any transfer
of generation assets by a Kentucky utility to ensure that the crisis that occurred in California could
not happen here. Accordingly, KRS 278.218 applies to a transfer of control of “assets” while KRS
278.020(5) and (6) apply to a transfer of ownership and control of a “utility.” The proposed
acquisition does not involve a direct transfer of assets, although it does result in the change in the
ownership and control of LG&E and KU. Therefore, KRS 278.218 should not apply to the
proposed acquisition, because the controi of the assets of LG&E and KU will remain entirely with
LG&E and KU. If, however, the Commission determines that KRS 278.218 does apply, the
Commission should approve the proposed acquisition under that section as well as KRS
278.020(5) and (6), because the proposed acquisition is for a proper purpose and is consistent
with the public interest.
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Commonwealth as a whole. In its orders in Case Nos. 2000-095 and 2001-104,
the Commission found these were proper purposes for the previous acquisitions
of control of LG&E and KU.

PPL did not assume the existence of any synergies when it made the
economic decision to purchase E.ON U.S. Nevertheless, PPL has committed
that within 60 days after the completion of the proposed acquisition it will file with
the Commission a petition setting forth a formal analysis of any potential
synergies and benefits from the acquisition and a proposed methodology for
allotting an appropriate share of the potential synergies and benefits to LG&E's
and KU’s ratepayers. [Regulatory Commitment No. 39]

The proposed acquisition, in contrast to the previous acquisitions, will be
made by a domestic company that is headquartered in the United States and that
is aware from its domestic operations of the importance and viability of coal as a
fuel supply for the generation of electric power. PPL understands that the
proposed acquisition would be the third change of control of LG&E and KU in 12
years. PPL intends to acquire and operate LG&E and KU as important core
assets. After the completion of the proposed acquisition, LG&E and KU will
continue to be regulated utilities subject to the Commission’s jurisdiction, and
they will continue to emphasize ~ as PPL’s regulated utility subsidiaries currently
do — customer satisfaction and commitment to their communities.

PPL is firmly committed to maintaining and supporting the historic
relationships among E.ON U.S., LG&E and KU and the communities that they

serve. After the completion of the proposed acquisition, PPL Kentucky and
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LG&E will continue to maintain their headquarters and presence in Louisville, and
KU will continue to maintain its headquarters and presence in Lexington. PPL
has committed to maintain these headquarters locations for 15 years. The
proposed acquisition will serve the interest of LG&E's and KU's customers, their
communities and the Commonwealth as a whole and is, therefore, for a proper
purpose.

E. The Proposed Acquisition is Consistent with the Public
Interest.

The proposed acquisition will result in the transfer of control of LG&E and
KU to a substantial, financially strong and well-managed utility holding company
that has a core strength in operating rate-regulated utilities with an extraordinary
degree of customer satisfaction. The proposed acquisition will not be a financial
investment by a global energy company; it will be a strategic combination of two
companies that have similar business profiles and operating philosophies. For
that reason, PPL will have every incentive to operate LG&E and KU with the goal
of sustainable long-term growth for the benefit of those companies and their
customers, employees, managers and community stakeholders. PPL's long-term
commitment to this goal is underlined by its understanding of, and agreement to,
the Regulatory Commitments.

In an order issued on October 6, 1988 in Case No. 10296, the
Commission approved the application of KU to reorganize as a subsidiary of a
non-regulated holding company. The Commission noted in the order that the
proposed reorganization presented regulatory concerns relating to the protection

of utility resources, the monitoring of the holding company and its subsidiaries,
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and the adequacy of reporting to the Commission. The Commission addressed
those concerns by imposing certain regulatory requirements on KU and the
holding company. In later cases, the Commission imposed similar, and
additional, regulatory requirements in connection with the approval of the
application of LG&E to reorganize as a subsidiary of a non-regulated hoiding
company;' the approval of the merger of the LG&E and KU holding
companies;'® the approval of the acquisition of control of LG&E and KU by
Powergen;'® and the approval of the acquisition of control of LG&E and KU by
E.ON."”

As noted above, PPL is aware of the regulatory requirements that the
Commission imposed in the previous cases, and the importance of those
requirements to the Commission. For that reason, PPL and E.ON US
Investments agreed in the PSA that PPL would offer to make to the Commission
in this proceeding the Regulatory Commitments that are listed in Exhibit B to the
PSA. A copy of Exhibit B to the PSA is attached as Exhibit D to this Application.
PPL’s action in this regard is further evidence of PPL's commitment to the
communities, customers and employees of E.ON U.S., LG&E and KU, and to the
Commission, and PPL’s business philosophy of taking a broad view in the
conduct of its businesses.

The Regulatory Commitments begin with an overarching commitment that

PPL, PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU (referred to for convenience in the following

' Order issued on May 25, 1990 in Case No. 89-374.

'S Order issued on September 12, 1997 in Case No. 97-300.

'® Order issued on May 15, 2000 in Case No. 2000-095, Appendices A and B.
' Order issued on August 6, 2001 in Case No. 2001-104, Appendix A.
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part of this Application as “PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries”) will adhere to the
conditions described in the Commission’s orders in Case Nos. 10296, 89-374,
97-300, 2000-095 and 2001-104, except to the extent expressly superseded by
KRS 278.2201 through 278.2219, the jurisdiction of FERC or the findings and
conditions of the Commission in response to this Application. [Regulatory
Commitment No. 1] This general commitment is supported by additional specific
commitments.'®

The Commission’'s concerns with regard to the protection of utility
resources are addressed by commitments that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries
will not assert that FERC’s jurisdiction under PUHCA 2005 legally preempts the
Commission from disallowing recovery in retail rates for costs arising from
affiliate transactions; that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will not cross-
subsidize between regulated and non-regulated businesses; that PPL and its
Kentucky subsidiaries will obtain Commission approval before transferring any
LG&E or KU property, plant or equipment with an original book value exceeding
$10 million; that PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU, and their ratepayers, directly or
indirectly, will not incur any additional costs, liabilities, or obligations in
connection with the proposed acquisition (other than in connection with the
repayment and refinancing of closing indebtedness in accordance with its terms);

that PPL Kentucky will hold 100% of the stock of LG&E and KU and will not

'"® The description of the Regulatory Commitments in this Application, including any statements

regarding the intent of the Regulatory Commitments in the written testimony that is filed as
collective Exhibit M to this Application, is intended as a summary for the convenience of the
Commission. The full language of each Regulatory Commitment, as contained in Exhibit B to the
PSA (Exhibit D to this Application), sets forth the actual commitments that are being offered to the
Commission. Some of the Regulatory Commitments are made by PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU
collectively, and some are made by PPL individually. None of the Regulatory Commitments is
made by E.ON or E.ON Investments.
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transfer any of the stock without prior Commission approval; that any diversified
holdings and investments of PPL such as non-utility businesses or foreign utilities
will not be held by LG&E or KU or their subsidiaries; that for as long as PPL
owns, controls, or manages LG&E or KU, PPL will endeavor to have an individual
resident of Kentucky on PPL's Board of Directors; that when budgets,
investments, dividend policies, projects, and business plans are being
considered by PPL's Board of Directors for the Kentucky business, at a
minimum, the CEOs of LG&E and KU or their designees will be present to offer a
Kentucky perspective to the decision and be permitted to participate in any
debates on the issues; and that PPL will use its reasonable best efforts to
address market power concerns of FERC, DOJ and the FTC through mitigation
measures that do not require participation by LG&E or KU in a Regional
Transmission Organization, divestiture of operating assets of LG&E or KU, or
LG&E or KU to decline to use their generating facilities to serve native load
customers. [Regulatory Commitments No. 3(a), 3(e), 6, 8, 41, 44, 46, 50 and 53]

The Commission’s concerns with regard to the monitoring of the holding
company and its subsidiaries are addressed by commitments that the books and
records of PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU will be kept in Kentucky; that the
Commission may audit the accounting records of PPL and its subsidiaries that
are the bases for charges to LG&E or KU, to determine the reasonableness of
allocation factors; that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will provide the
Commission access to all books and records which pertain to transactions

between LG&E or KU and affiliated companies; and that PPL and its Kentucky
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subsidiaries will provide the Commission with 30 days prior notice of any FERC
filing that proposes new allocation factors [Regulatory Commitments No. 2, 3(b)
and 4]

The Commission’s concerns with regard to the adequacy of reporting are
addressed by commitments that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will file on a
timely basis all applications and reports regarding affiliated transactions required
by applicable statutes and regulations; that LG&E and KU will file annually a
report regarding affiliated interests; that PPL Kentucky will notify the Commission
as soon as practicable before issuing new debt or equity in excess of $100
million; that PPL will notify the Commission as soon as practicable after any
public announcement of any acquisition of a business representing 5% or more
of PPL’'s capitalization, or any change in effective control or acquisition of a
material part of PPL Kentucky, LG&E or KU, that PPL will report annually to the
Commission detailing PPL Kentucky's proportionate share of PPL’'s assets,
revenues, expenses and employees; that PPL will notify the Commission 30 days
before LG&E or KU pays any dividend or transfers more than 5% of its retained
earnings; that any proposed amendment to the PSSA or the TCA will be
submitted to the Commission for its review 30 days in advance of filing the
amendment with FERC,; that PPL will file with the Commission a copy of its
annual and quarterly reports on Securities and Exchange Commission Forms 10-
K and 10-Q; that PPL will file with the Commission such additional financial
reports as the Commission reasonably determines to be necessary to effectively

regulate LG&E and KU,; that LG&E and KU will file with the Commission
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informational copies of applications that are filed with any other state utility
commission with jurisdiction over PPL and its affiliates and relate to a money
pool arrangement or capital contributions to LG&E or KU; that PPL and its
Kentucky subsidiaries will notify the Commission 30 days before making any
capital contributions to LG&E or KU, and will provide the related accounting
entries within 60 days after the end of the month in which the contribution was
made; and that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will notify the Commission in
writing 30 days before any material changes in their participation in funding for
research and development, including an explanation and the reasons for any
change in policy. [Regulatory Commitments No. 3(c), 3(d), 6, 7, 18, 19, 20, 21,
22,23, 24 and 30]

The Regulatory Commitments also address the continuity of the Kentucky
presence of LG&E and KU, and their current management. These concerns are
addressed by commitments that the headquarters of PPL Kentucky and LG&E
will remain in Louisville, and the headquarters of KU will remain in Lexington, for
a period of 15 years; that all persons who are corporate officers of LG&E and KU
during the 15-year period will reside in Kentucky; that the corporate headquarters
of PPL Kentucky will include the corporate management personnel of PPL
Kentucky; that the corporate officers of PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU will
maintain their current titles and responsibilities; that PPL will develop a retention
and incentive program for managers of PPL Kentucky, LG&E and KU; and that

PPL Kentucky's Board of Managers will consist of at least three members, one of
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whom will be the CEO of PPL Kentucky. [Regulatory Commitments No. 9, 15,
34, 42, 47 and 48]

The Regulatory Commitments also address the continuity of quality
service by LG&E and KU. These concerns are addressed by commitments that
the transaction will have no impact on the base rates or the operation of the fuel
adjustment clauses, environmental surcharges, gas supply clause and demand
side management clause of LG&E or KU; that customers will experience no
adverse change in utility service due to changes, if any, related to E.ON US
Services; that PPL will maintain PPL Kentucky's level of commitment to high
quality service and will fully maintain the LG&E and KU track record for superior
service quality; that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will adequately fund and
maintain LG&E’'s and KU’s transmission and distribution systems to supply their
customers’ service needs; that LG&E and KU will continue to operate through
regional offices with local service personnel and field crews; that local customer
service offices will not be closed as a result of the proposed acquisition; that any
future closures of customer service offices will take into account the impact on
customer service; that LG&E's and KU's existing and future generation facilities
will be dedicated to the requirements of LG&E’s and KU's existing and future
native load customers; that if any subsidiary or business unit of PPL considers a
potential renewable energy project in Kentucky, the subsidiary or business unit
will inform KU and LG&E of the potential project and will allow KU and LG&E to
make a reasonable business judgment whether to pursue the project as a

generation resource for their customers; that the proposed acquisition will have
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no effect or impact on KU’s contractual relationships with its municipal customers
or Berea College; that KU will maintain a contact person in Lexington to respond
to special needs in the Lexington area; that the current policies of LG&E and KU
for low-income customers will not change as a result of the proposed acquisition,
and that PPL will review with LG&E and KU whether policies more sympathetic to
the needs of those customers would be appropriate; that PPL and its Kentucky
subsidiaries will minimize any negative impacts on customer service and
satisfaction resulting from workforce reductions; and that LG&E and KU will
periodically file with the Commission the various reliability and service quality
measurements they currently maintain. [Regulatory Commitments No. 5, 25, 26,
28, 29, 31, 32, 33, 35, 37, 43, 45 and 49]

Finally, the Regulatory Commitments address the relationships of PPL
and its Kentucky subsidiaries with government, the community, employees and
other stakeholders. These concerns are addressed by commitments that PPL
will take an active and ongoing role in managing and operating LG&E and KU in
the interests of customers, employees, and the Commonwealth, and will enhance
LG&E’s and KU’s relationship with the Commission, with state and local
government, and with other community interests, including, but not limited to,
meetings between PPL's CEO and the Commission at least twice a year; that
LG&E and KU will maintain a substantial level of involvement in community
activities, through annual charitable and other contributions, on a level
comparable to or greater than the participation levels before the proposed

acquisition; that PPL will maintain and support the relationship between LG&E
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and KU and the communities that each serves for a period of 10 years from the
closing of the proposed acquisition; that PPL will maintain LG&E’s and KU's pro-
active stance on developing economic opportunities in Kentucky and supporting
economic development, and social and charitable activities, throughout their
service territories; that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will work with the
Governor and state agencies designated by the Governor to promote economic
development in Kentucky; that PPL and its Kentucky subsidiaries will consult with
the Governor and state agencies designated by the Governor regarding clean
coal technologies and the development of programs by Kentucky that qualify for
federal funding for research and development and projects utilizing clean coal
technologies; that no planned reductions in the employee workforces of PPL
Kentucky, LG&E or KU will be made as a result of the transaction; that PPL will
maintain a sound and constructive relationship with labor organizations that
represent employees of PPL Kentucky, LG&E, and KU, and will remain neutral
respecting an individual's right to choose whether or not to be a member of a
trade union; that PPL will continue to recognize the unions that currently have
collective bargaining agreements and will honor those agreements; that in any
Commission proceeding involving safety violations by employees of independent
contractors, LG&E and KU will be responsible for the acts of the employees of
the independent contractors to the same extent that LG&E and KU are
responsible for the acts of their own employees; that the proposed acquisition will
have no effect or impact on various agreements associated with the unwind and

termination of the lease agreement with Big Rivers Electric Corporation; and that
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wholesale customers should be held harmless. [Regulatory Commitments No.
10, 11, 14, 16, 36, 38, 40, 51, 52 and 54]

The Regulatory Commitments fully address the regulatory concerns that
the Commission has historically expressed in previous cases involving a change
of control of LG&E and KU, to the extent that those concerns have not been
addressed by intervening legislation and regulation.’® In addition, the Regulatory
Commitments address other matters that are of substantial public importance to
the Commonwealth and its citizens. For all of the reasons set forth above, the
proposed acquisition is consistent with the public interest.

IV. Testimony in Support of Application.

The Applicants have filed with this Application the written testimony of
eight witnesses, attached collectively as Exhibit M to this Application, that
discusses in greater detail the manner in which the proposed acquisition satisfies
the requirements of KRS 278.020(5) and (6).

James H. Miller, the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of
PPL, has prepared written testimony regarding PPL and its business operations,
the strategic purposes for the proposed acquisition, and PPL’s expectations for
the future of LG&E and KU.

Paul A. Farr, the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of

PPL, has prepared written testimony regarding PPL's financial ability to

" In the orders in Case Nos. 2000-095 and 2001-104, the Commission noted that some of its
original concerns may have been superseded by the enactment of KRS 278.2201 through
278.2219 and the regulations of FERC and the Securities and Exchange Commission. Order
issued on May 15, 2000, pp. 33 to 36; Order issued on August 6, 2001, Appendix A, p. 1. As
noted above, with the enaciment of PUHCA 2005, the proposed acquisition will not create conflict
between state and federal regulation of public utility holding company systems.
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consummate the proposed acquisition and the financial strength of the PPL
companies after the closing of the proposed acquisition.

William H. Spence, the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of PPL, has prepared written testimony regarding PPL’s technical and
managerial abilities in the generation, transmission and distribution of electric
power systems, and PPL’s experiences with, and policies regarding, retail
customers.

Karl-Heinz Feldmann, the General Counsel and Executive Vice President
of E.ON, has prepared written testimony regarding the proposed acquisition from
E.ON's perspective.?°

Victor A. Staffieri, the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of
E.ON U.S., LG&E and KU, has prepared written testimony regarding the
compliance of the proposed acquisition with the U.S. law and the expected
operations of LG&E and KU after the closing of the proposed acquisition.

S. Bradford Rives, the Chief Financial Officer of E.ON U.S., LG&E and
KU, has prepared written testimony regarding affiliate transactions and the
accounting issues raised by the proposed acquisition and the Commission’s

authority regarding those matters after the closing of the proposed acquisition.

% E.ON and E.ON US Investments have joined in this Application because the Applicants

believe that KRS 278.020(5) and (6) require that the proposed transferor, in addition to the
proposed transferee, obtain the approval of the Commission to any transfer of ownership and
control of a utility. The involvement of E.ON and E.ON investments in the preparation of this
Application has been limited to confirmation of their respective corporate information in the
Introduction and preparation of the testimony of Mr. Feldmann.
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Paul A. Coomes, a Professor of Economics at the University of Louisville,
has prepared written testimony regarding whether the proposed acquisition is
consistent with the public interest.

Lonnie E. Bellar, the Vice President of State Regulation and Rates of
LG&E and KU, has prepared written testimony regarding regulatory issues
affecting LG&E and KU after the closing of the proposed acquisition.

WHEREFORE, the Applicants regpectfully request that the Commission,
after hearing, enter a final order as follows:

Finding that, after the purchase of E.ON U.S. from E.ON US Investments
by PPL, PPL will have the financial, technical and managerial abilities to cause
LG&E and KU to continue to provide reasonable service to their respective
customers, and that the purchase of E.ON U.S. will be in accordance with law,
for a proper purpose and consistent with the public interest;

Approving, under KRS 278.020(5) and (6), the acquisition by PPL of
control of LG&E and KU through the purchase of E.ON U.S. subject to the
Regulatory Commitments proposed by PPL, E.ON U.S., LG&E and KU;

Finding that PPL, PPL Kentucky and any intermediate company between
PPL and PPL Kentucky will not, by reason of its direct or indirect ownership of
stock of LG&E and KU, be a utility as defined in KRS 278.010(3); and

Finding that KRS 278.218 does not apply to the proposed acquisition as
set forth in the PSA because the control of the assets of LG&E and KU will
remain entirely with LG&E and KU, or in the alternative, if the Commission

determines that KRS 278.218 does apply, approving the proposed acquisition
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under KRS 278.218 because the proposed acquisition is for a proper purpose

and is consistent with the public interest.
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT, dated as of April 28, 2010 (this
“Agreement”), is by and between E.ON US Investments Corp., a Delaware corporation
(“Seller”™), and PPL Corporation, a Pennsylvania corporation (‘“‘Purchaser”) and, solely for
purposes of Article VI, Article IX and Article X hereof, E.ON AG (“Parent”), a German
corporation.

WHEREAS, Seller owns all of the issued and outstanding limited liability
company interests (the “Interests”) of E.ON U.S. LLC, a Kentucky limited liability company (the
“Company”);

WHEREAS, Parent is the ultimate parent company of Seller; and

WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase
from Seller, all of the Interests.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and of the representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto hereby agree as
follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

Section 1.1  Definitions. The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall
have the following meanings:

“2009 Company Financial Statements” means the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009.

“Action” means any civil, criminal or administrative claim, notice of claim,
action, suit, order, proceeding or arbitration, at law or in equity, by or before any Governmental
Authority.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that, directly or
indirectly, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person as of the date
on which, or at any time during the period for which, the determination of affiliation is being
made. For purposes of this definition, the term “control” (including the correlative meanings of
the terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”), as used with respect to any Person,
means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
Contract or otherwise.

“Alternative Permanent Financing” means any (i) public offering of shares of
common or preferred stock by Purchaser (or securities convertible or exchangeable into shares of
common or preferred stock of Purchaser), (ii) issuance of First Mortgage Bonds by the
Subsidiaries of the Company, (iii) issuance of senior unsecured debt securities by the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to a private or public offering and/or (1v) issuance of senior or
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subordinated unsecured debt securities by the Purchaser or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to a
private or public offering.

“Business Day” means a day ending at 11:59 p.m. (Eastern Time), other than a
Saturday, a Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York or
Diisseldorf, Germany are authorized or required by Law or Governmental Order to close.

“Closing Indebtedness™ means the outstanding indebtedness of the Company and
its Subsidiaries plus the amount of (i) any accrued and unpaid interest and (ii) any prepayment
penalties or “make-whole” premiums that are due and payable in accordance with the terms of
such borrowings upon prepayment thereof and that are unpaid, as of the close of business on the
day immediately preceding the Closing Date, determined with reference to the line items set
forth on Section 1.1(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule in accordance with GAAP, such
GAAP applied in a manner consistent with the Company Financial Statements.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Company Books and Records” means all books, records, ledgers, reports, plans,
files and accounts, manuals, material correspondence and other similar materials related to the
conduct of the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries in paper, electronic or other forms
that are maintained by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

“Company Disclosure Schedule” means the disclosure schedule delivered by
Seller to Purchaser prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

“Company Employee” means a current or former employee of the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries, whether full-time or part-time, including an employee who, as of the
Closing Date, is absent from employment due to illness, vacation, injury, military service or
other authorized absence (including an employee who is “disabled” within the meaning of the
short-term disability plan currently in place for the Company, or who is on approved leave under
the Family and Medical Leave Act), provided that the term “Company Employee” shall not
include any person listed in Section 1.1(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

“Company Governmental Authorizations” means the Governmental
Authorizations that are required for the Company and its Subsidiaries to conduct their respective
businesses as presently conducted.

“Company Joint Venture” means any Person that is not a Subsidiary of the
Company but in which the Company or one of the Company’s Subsidiaries owns, directly or
indirectly, an equity, voting or other membership interest, representing five percent (5%) or more
of any class of the outstanding equity, voting or other membership interests of such Person.

“Company Material Adverse Effect” means any change, effect, event,
circumstance, occurrence, fact, condition, or development that, taken together with all other
changes, effects, events, circumstances, occurrences, facts, conditions, and developments, (i) is
materially adverse to the condition (financial or otherwise), businesses, assets, liabilities or
results of operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole or (ii) would impede,
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impair or prevent consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however,
that none of the following shall constitute or be taken into account in determining whether there
has been or is a Company Material Adverse Effect: (a) any changes, events or developments in
the international, national, regional, state or local economy or financial, securities or credit
markets (including changes in prevailing interest rates); (b) any changes, events or developments
in the international, national, regional, state or local (x) electric generating, transmission or
distribution industries or natural gas transmission or distribution industries (including any
changes in the operations thereof), (y) engineering or construction industries, or (z) wholesale or
retail markets for commodities, materials or supplies (including equipment supplies, steel,
concrete, electric power, fuel, coal, natural gas, water or coal transportation) or the hedging
markets therefor; (c) any changes, events or developments in any political conditions (including
acts of war (whether or not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism or changes imposed by a
Governmental Authority associated with national security) or the regulatory environment
generally to the extent that any such changes, events or developments do not cause physical
damage or destruction, or render unusable, any facility or property of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries; (d) any changes that result from natural disasters or “acts of God” or other “force
majeure” events to the extent that any such changes do not cause physical damage or destruction,
or render unusable, any facility or property of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; (¢) any
changes in weather conditions to the extent that any such changes do not cause physical damage
or destruction, or render unusable, any facility or property of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries; (f) any changes in customer usage patterns; (g) any performance by Purchaser,
Seller or any of their respective Affiliates of their respective obligations, covenants or
agreements contained in this Agreement (including any actions taken by Purchaser, Seller or any
of their respective Affiliates, to the extent expressly required by this Agreement, to facilitate the
Debt Financing or any Alternative Permanent Financing, to settle the Rate Cases as permitted by
Section 5.18 or to obtain any Purchaser Required Regulatory Approval or Company Required
Regulatory Approval and any action by any Governmental Authority that requires Purchaser or
the Company or any of their respective Subsidiaries to accept the Regulatory Commitments and
agreements to implement the Regulatory Commitments as a condition of any approval of the
Purchase); provided that, actions taken to comply with the obligation in the first sentence of
Section 5.1(a) to act in the Company Ordinary Course of Business shall not be included in the
scope of this clause (g); (h) any action taken by Seller at the express written request of
Purchaser; (i) any effects or conditions (including any loss of, or adverse change in, the
relationship of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with their respective customers,
employees (including any employee departures or labor union or labor organization activity),
regulators, financing sources or suppliers) demonstrated by Seller as proximately caused by, or
resulting from, the announcement of this Agreement, and the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, or the identity of Purchaser or any of its Affiliates; (j) any changes in (x) any Law
(including Environmental Laws and any final, binding interpretation or enforcement of Laws by
any Governmental Authority), regulatory policies or industry standards or (y) GAAP (including
any final, binding interpretation thereof by any applicable Governmental Authority) or regulatory
accounting requirements applicable to U.S. utilities organizations generally; or (k) any reduction
in the credit rating of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to the extent attributable to any
action of Purchaser or its Affiliates or the acquisition of the Company by Purchaser pursuant
hereto; provided, further, that, with respect to the matters included in clauses (a), (b), (c), (f) and
(j), such matters may constitute or be taken into account in determining whether there has been a
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Company Material Adverse Effect to the extent such matters affect the Company and/or its
Subsidiaries in a manner that is materially disproportionate to other similarly situated companies
operating in the utility industry.

“Company Ordinary Course of Business” means actions or omissions, as
applicable, that are (a) taken in the ordinary course of operations of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, as applicable, and (b) consistent with the past practice of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, as applicable.

“Confidentiality Agreement” means the confidentiality agreement, dated February
11, 2010, between Parent and Purchaser.

“Contract” means any contract, agreement, license, note, mortgage, indenture note
or other binding agreement (written or oral).

“Cut-Off Date” means December 31, 2009.

“Debt Financing Sources” means the entities that have committed to provide or
otherwise entered into agreements in connection with the Debt Financing Commitments or other
debt financings in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including the parties
named in Section 4.5(b) and any joinder agreements, indentures or credit agreements entered into
pursuant thereto or relating thereto together with their Affiliates, officers, directors, employees
and representatives involved in the Debt Financing and their successors and assigns.

“Environmental Claim” means any Action by any Person, alleging potential
Environmental Liabilities.

“Environmental Law” means all Laws that address or are concerned with
environmental, health or safety issues (including occupational safety and health), including
without limitation any federal, state, local or foreign law, regulation, code, license, permit, order,
decree or injunction from any Governmental Authority relating to (a) the protection of the
environment (including air, water, soil and natural resources) or (b) the use, storage, handling,
release or disposal of Hazardous Substances, in each case as presently in effect.

“Environmental Permit” means any Permit that is authorized pursuant to an
Environmental Law.

“Environmental Liabilities” means any liabilities (including any notices, claims or
complaints, whether verbal or written) that (a) concern any environmental, or health and safety
(as it relates to Hazardous Substance handling or exposure) violations or liabilities, and (b) are
based upon or concerning any provision of Environmental Law. The term “Environmental
Liabilities” includes (without limitation): (A) fines, penalties, judgments, awards, settlements,
losses, damages (including without limitation tort), costs, fees (including attorneys’ and
consultants’ fees), expenses and disbursements; (B) defense and other response to an
administrative or judicial action (including notices, claims, complaints, Governmental Orders,
suits and other assertions of liability); and (C) cleanup costs and injunctive relief, including
removal, remedial or response actions and activities covered by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, (42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq.), as amended, Comprehensive Environmental
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Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. § 9601, et seq., as amended, and
comparable state and local Laws.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Expected Closing Indebtedness” means $5,563 million.

“Federal Power Act” means the Federal Power Act, as amended, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.
“GAAP” means the United States generally accepted accounting principles.

“Governmental Authority” means any federal, state, local or foreign
governmental or regulatory authority, agency body, arbitrator, commission, court or other
legislative, executive, regulatory or judicial entity or instrumentality.

“Governmental Authorization” means any license, permit, franchise, certificate,
approval, consent, registration, variance, exemption or other authorization issued by or obtained
from a Governmental Authority.

“Governmental Order” means any order, writ, judgment, injunction, subpoena,
indictment, decree, stipulation, determination or award entered by or with any Governmental
Authority.

“Hazardous Substance™ means any substance presently listed, defined, designated
or classified as a hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste, or as a pollutant or a
contaminant or as radioactive under any applicable Environmental Law, and including without
limitation any coal combustion waste, coal combustion product or byproduct, petroleum and any
derivative or by-product of petroleum, solvent, flammable or explosive material, radioactive
material, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), dioxins, dibenzofurans, heavy metals,
radon gas, mold, mold spores, mycotoxins, or air pollutant.

“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as
amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Indebtedness” means, without duplication, (a) the principal of and accrued
interest or premium (if any) and premiums, due and payable and unpaid “make-wholes” or
penalties arising as a result of prepayment of liabilities for borrowed money, whether secured or
unsecured, and obligations evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar debt instruments
and liabilities, contingent or otherwise, for reimbursement in respect of any letter of credit,
banker’s acceptance or similar credit transaction, (b) liabilities for the deferred purchase price of
any property outside the Company Ordinary Course of Business, (c) liabilities in respect of any
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lease of (or other arrangements conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a
combination thereof, which liabilities are required to be classified and accounted for under
GAAP as capital leases, and (d) any guarantee, pledge or grant of a security interest in respect of
or securing obligations of a type described in the foregoing clause (a), (b) and (c) to the extent of
the obligation secured.

“Indemnified Party” means a Purchaser Indemnified Party or a Seller Indemnified
Party, as the case may be.

“Indemnifying Party” means Seller and Parent for the purpose of Section 6.2 and
Section 9.2 and Purchaser for the purpose of Section 6.3 and Section 9.3, as the case may be.

“Intellectual Property” means all (i) United States federal, state and foreign
trademarks, service marks, brand names, Internet domain names, logos, designs, insignias,
symbols, trade dress and trade names, and other indicia of origin, all applications and
registrations for the foregoing, including all renewals of the same and all goodwill associated and
symbolized therewith, (ii) United States and foreign patents, patent applications, renewals, re-
examinations, extensions, registrations, continuations, continuations-in-part, divisions or
reissues, (iii) trade secrets, know-how and similar proprietary confidential information protected
by the Uniform Trade Secrets Act or similar legislation, and (iv) works of authorship in any
media and the copyrights therein and thereto recognized by the United States and foreign
copyright laws.

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

“Knowledge” means the actual knowledge, without inquiry, of (a) with respect to
Seller, any person listed in Section 1.1(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and (b) with
respect to Purchaser, any Person listed in Section 1.1(b) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule.

“KPSC” means the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

“KU” means Kentucky Utilities Company, a Kentucky corporation and Virginia
corporation and a Subsidiary of the Company.

“Law” means any federal, state, local or foreign statute, code, ordinance, rule or
regulation enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered by any Governmental Authority and
common law, including any judicial or administrative interpretation thereof.

“LEM” means LG&E Energy Marketing Inc., a Oklahoma corporation and a
Subsidiary of the Company.

“LG&E” means Louisville Gas and Electric Company, a Kentucky corporation
and a Subsidiary of the Company.

“Liability” means any and all Indebtedness, liabilities, commitments, damages,
fines, fees, penalties, settlements and obligations, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, matured
or unmatured, accrued or not accrued, liquidated or unliquidated, determined or determinable,
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secured or unsecured, disputed or undisputed, asserted or not asserted, known or unknown,
whenever or however arising.

“LIBOR” means, with respect to a given date, the rate per annum equal to the rate
for deposits in United States dollars for a period equal to three months appearing on the Reuters
Screen LIBORO1 Page as of 11:00 a.m., London time, two Business Days prior to such date. In
the event that such rate does not appear on such page (or otherwise on such screen), LIBOR shall
be determined by reference to such other comparable publicly available service for displaying
eurodollar rates as may be mutually agreed between Purchaser and Seller.

“Lien” means any lien, pledge, charge, claim, encumbrance, security interest,
option, mortgage, easement, conditional sales agreement or other title retention agreement, lease,
hypothecation, deed of trust, right of first refusal or first offer or other restriction on transfer.

“Losses” means losses, damages, claims, fees, fines, costs and expenses, interest,
awards, settlements, Liabilities, recourses, judgments and penalties (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses) whether or not involving a third party claim.

“New Source Review” means requirements under the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.
§ 7401 et seq., as amended, regarding New Source Performance Standards (42 U.S.C. § 7411),
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (42 U.S.C. §§ 7470-7492), Nonattainment New Source
Review (42 U.S.C. § 7503), and related or comparable state and local Laws, and including any
applicable judicial or administrative interpretation, order, or decree thereunder.

“QOrganizational Documents” means a Person’s charter, articles of organization,
certificate of incorporation, certificate of formation, limited liability company agreement,
partnership agreement, by-laws or other similar organizational documents, as applicable.

“Permit” means any permit, license, certification, approval, registration, consent
or other authorization issued pursuant to any Law or Governmental Order.

“Permitted Liens” means (a) Liens reflected or reserved against or otherwise
expressly disclosed in the Company Financial Statements (including the notes thereto); (b) Liens
incurred in the Company Ordinary Course of Business since the Cut-Off Date; (c) pledges or
deposits to secure obligations under worker’s compensation Laws or similar legislation or to
secure statutory obligations arising or incurred in the Company Ordinary Course of Business
which would not materially impair the operation of the business of the Company or its
Subsidiaries; (d) mechanics’, materialmen’s, warehousemen’s, carriers’, workers’ or repairmen’s
Liens or other similar common law or statutory Liens arising out of or incurred in the Company
Ordinary Course of Business which would not materially impair the operation of the business of
the Company or its Subsidiaries; (e) Liens that relate to Taxes, assessments and other
governmental charges (x) that are not yet due and payable or (y) that are due but not delinquent
or (z) that are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings; (f) (1) easements, quasi-
easements, leases, subleases, licenses, covenants, rights-of-way, rights of re-entry or other
restrictions affecting the real property owned or leased by the Company none of which,
individually or in the aggregate, materially impair the conduct of the business of the Company
and/or its Subsidiaries or materially impair the existing use or operation of the relevant real
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property, (ii) zoning, building, entitlement, subdivision or other similar requirements or
restrictions, (iii) any utility company or Governmental Authority rights, easements or franchises
for electricity, water, sanitary sewer, steam, surface water drainage, gas, telephone or other
service or the right to use and maintain poles, lines, wires, cables, pipes, boxes and other fixtures
and facilities in, over, under and upon any of the real property owned or leased by the Company
or other general easements granted to Governmental Authorities in the ordinary course of
developing or operating any real property, and (iv) leases or other occupancy agreements,
pursuant to which third parties (other than Seller or any of its Affiliates) occupy a portion of the
real property owned by the Company, provided that copies of such leases and agreements (to the
extent material) have been made available to Purchaser prior to the date hereof; (g) Liens created
by Purchaser; (h) Contracts or arrangements relating to Intellectual Property entered into in the
Company Ordinary Course of Business; (1) Liens incurred in connection with any Alternative
Permanent Financing at Purchaser’s request; and (j) without regard to any limitation imposed
through any of the clauses (a) through (i), Liens that, individually or in the aggregate, do not
have and are not reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

“Person” means an individual, corporation (including not for profit), general or
limited partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, association, trust,
unincorporated organization, Governmental Authority or other entity of any kind or nature.

“Projected Investment” means capital expenditures from the Cut-Off Date
through December 31, 2010 in an aggregate amount not less than the aggregate of the amounts
set forth in Section 5.1(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

“Purchaser Disclosure Schedule” means the disclosure schedule delivered by
Purchaser to Seller prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

“Rate Cases” means, collectively, the Company’s rate case filed on September 28,
2008 and currently pending with FERC (Docket No. ER08-1588-000 and associated dockets),
the Company’s rate case filed on June 3, 2009 and currently pending with the Virginia State
Corporation Commission (Case No. PUE 2009 00029), the Company’s wind power approval
filing, filed on August 28, 2009 and currently pending with the KPSC (Case No. 2009-00353)
and the rate cases filed by LG&E and KU with the KPSC (Case Nos. 2009-00549 and 2009-
00548).

“Regulatory Commitments” means the substantive terms, conditions, liabilities,
obligations, commitments, or sanctions set forth on Exhibit B which are to be offered by
Purchaser and its Affiliates and/or the Company and its Subsidiaries in the required notices,
reports or other filings that are required to be made to obtain the Company Required Regulatory
Approvals and the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals.

“Release” means any spilling, emitting, leaking, pumping, pouring, emptying,
injecting, escaping, dumping, disposing, discharging or leaching into the environment (including
the placing, discarding or abandonment of any barrel, container or other receptacle containing
any Hazardous Substance or other material), or into or out of any property owned, used, leased
or operated by the applicable party.
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“Sarbanes-Oxley Act” means the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, and
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Securities Laws” means, collectively, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and any state securities and “blue sky” laws.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person of which at
least a majority of (x) the economic interests in or (y) the securities or ownership interests,
having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors or other
Persons performing similar functions, is directly or indirectly owned or controlled by such
Person and/or by one or more of its Subsidiaries.

“Tax” means all federal, state, local and foreign taxes, including all income,
profits, franchise, license, gross receipts, environmental, customs duty, capital stock, severances,
estimated, escheat, alternative minimum, stamp, payroll, sales, employment, unemployment,
disability, use, property, withholding, excise, production, value added, conveyance, transfer,
occupancy and similar taxes, together with all interest, penalties and additions imposed with
respect to such amounts and any interest in respect of such penalties and additions.

“Tax Returns” means all returns and reports (including elections, declarations,
disclosures, schedules, estimates and information returns) required to be supplied to a
Governmental Authority relating to Taxes, including any amendments thereof or attachments
thereto.

“Tax Sharing Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Tax Allocation
Agreement, dated March 31, 2009, among Seller and its Subsidiaries signatories thereto.

“Unplanned Capital Expenditures” means capital expenditures (a) as required by
any Law enacted or Governmental Order issued after the date hereof or to meet service
requirements following an extraordinary weather related or other emergency, (b) for annual
capital expenditures and annual operation and maintenance expenditures in respect of
expenditures required to discharge regulatory responsibilities for service reliability, or (c) as
incurred in connection with the repair or replacement of facilities destroyed or damaged due to
casualty or accident (whether or not covered by insurance).

“UST” means an underground storage tank, including as that term is defined,
construed and otherwise used in the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. § 6901
et seq.), as amended, and all rules, regulations and standards issued thereunder and under
comparable state and local Laws.

“WKE” means Western Kentucky Energy Corp., a Kentucky corporation and a
Subsidiary of the Company.
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“WKE Counterparties” means, collectively, Big Rivers Electric Corporation,
Century Aluminum of Kentucky General Partnership, Alcan Primary Products Corporation, the
City of Henderson Utility Commission and the City of Henderson.

Other Defined Terms. The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in the corresponding Sections set forth below:

Defined Terms Section
“A0T(K) PIAN” ...ooieieeciicceceetee et 5.6(e)
“Adjusted AMT Cut-Off Date Amount”...........ooccoviniiininnnnnn. 6.9(a)
“Adjusted Non-AMT Cut-Off Date Amount”.......c..ccccocviriennn. 6.9(a)
“Affiliate Indebtedness” .......ccceveveeeeeeneeeireerecnesseeesernsnennns 9.1
“Affiliate Transaction” ........cccceveeerecerieceereennninsese e 3.17
“CAGTECINENE ...ttt Preamble
“ASSISTANICE COSES” orveerreeeereeeeereeeeressnssesenseseseseerensesesnessensnsnsns 9. 19(D)
“Bankruptcy and Equity EXCeptions”.......c.ccooeensensniinnncnns 3.2
“Base Purchase Price” ....ccccovvvvieeciniiiiiicrieneeeineeeeeccees 2.2
“Benefit PIans .....ccoveovieieierieeeceineene st 3.12(a)
CCAP” orreereneeeserescemreeae st b bbb 9.4(b)(111)
“CIAIMN NOLICE .o icveeeeireeetecereee e ereesre e e s r e b s s 9.5(b)
CCIOSIIE .evereeeerereereeereeees et 2.5(a)
“ClOSING DAte” ...t 2.5(a)
“Closing Day Payment” .......cccooiiimimnnninnnccninnns 2.3(c)
“COMPAIY” ...ervieicrerercieresesess et s Recitals
“Company AMT Tax Attributes” ........coovioii 6.9(a)
“Company Benefit Plan” ........c.cccccvevimmrrinmmnniesinscisnsisennennees 3.12(@)
“Company Financial Statements”.........c.ooveiiiinn 3.7(a)
“Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes”........ccocoevinniniininns 6.9(a)
“Company Material Contract”..........cccoevnnniniininiiinen. 3.15(a)
“Company POIICIES” ......vcweerurereirrmrrnriirissssseissssssesresniscncnns 3:18
“Company Required Regulatory Approvals”...........ccccnvnnnnn. 34
“Company Trading Guidelines” ..o 3.19
“D&E&O INSUMANCE” ...oeiiiieerreeie et 5.5(b)
“Debt FINANCINE . .cveerieieiciieninnieneietnses et 4.5(b)
“Debt Financing Commitment” ... 4.5(b)
“Debt INSITUMENTS” +..veeeeeeeeeeeeeieveeeesseeesesesessssessesesrssnsesesnecenes 3.0(8)
CDEAUCHDIE” ..ot 9.4(b)(1)
“PIe MINIINIS™ wooivvierveeereerieeeseesineseeeneeessaesssesreessassesbessesanessstenes 9.4(b)(i1)
“Disclosure Schedules™ ........occeveriieininiriiee e 10.9
“Equity INVESMENTS” ......ccoovomiiiiiiineeicsicnenic s 2.2
CERISA AFfIHALE” ..oeveeeeeeeeeeeeeerereesesesnesressessesesessccnenensnsnnes . 3:12(C)
SBRISA Plan” ....ooeeveeecreeeeeseenevensesnnessssesecsesseseesessssssesninsnienes . 3. 12(D)
CEXLENSION NOLICE . .oeeeiiiriieeeeeeiceieire e eres st 2.5
“Extenston Period” .......oooeeverniniiiii 2.5
“Estimated Closing Indebtedness” ..........ccoovoeniininciniinnn. 2.3(a)
“Estimated Purchase Price” ..o 2.3(a)
10
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Defined Terms Section

“Estimated Statement” ........cc.oooviveereniniree e 2.3(a)
“FINAl OFder” ...ooeeiiie ettt esns e 7.1(b)
“Government Antitrust AuthOrity”.......cccvvermnniicinniiiiiieie 5.2(c)(i)
“Intercompany Items Balance Sheet”............ccccccvnvcniniinnne. 5.7(b)
INEETESES™ weveeiieeeieete ettt e e e Recitals
L ICEIISE” wvveveeiiereeeerereesstesestessebeeseseesatenessessaesssnaassntassnneesasaaeesares 5.8(b)
CMBLETIALS™ oviiiiieeriiieee e esreeerteseeaesesteessbeesersessnaesesersseeanassesenans 5.8(b)
“Multiemployer Plan” ..........cccovvevmevnincncnccnniccennicccnnnn. 3.12(€)
“Net Company Position” ..........cccccovecceeninenininecnsincsiinnne. 3,19
“Notice of Purchase Price Adjustment Disagreement”.............. 24
CPATEIE ..o cieeeiet et te et e sre e r sttt e et et cnesreeane s ra s Preamble
“Pension Plan”........cccccevveeviveieieeneeecrieeceneeeneeeseereecssennenees . 3.12(b)
“Pre-Closing Claims” .......ccocceereircerrerenencneneerecscsnceeennees. 9.19(b)
“Pre-Cut-Off Date Tax Period” ........ccovreeciiiinniniiiiiccnnee 6.2
“Prohibitive Order” .....c..oooveevieiiniiiece et 7.1(c)
CPUICHASE™ ...ttt s 2.1
“Purchase PriCe™ ..o 2.2
CPUICRASET™ . vttt Preamble
“Purchaser Benefit Plan.........cccoovvveennieniniinicnicnneee 5.6(d)
“Purchaser Indemnified Party”.......c..coccovvvinviniinnnniiniiinaen, 9.2
“Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals”.............cccovvinnnn. 4.4(a)
“Purchaser Termination Fee” .........cccevmnmeverieenvieneeeenieecnen, 8.2(a)
“Reduced AMT Post-Closing Tax Attribute” .......ccocvvecrnne. 6.9(a)
“Reduced Non-AMT Post-Closing Tax Attribute” .................... 6.9(a)
“Representatives” ......coevviimieeinniieeire et 5.3(a)
“Required Information”..........cccoovrciiiiinnrciciicceceeenen 5.13(¢)
G RILET™ .ottt et s s Preamble
“Seller Benefit P1ans”........ccccooviiiininnniccieiiicncciene, 3.12(a)
“Seller Consolidated Group”.......c.ccoccvmvernecrieceninncccinecneneeene. 3.9(m)
“Seller Indemnified Party” .......ccccccooivennniniiiincceen 9.3
“Seller INSUTanCe”.......cc.coveeirererirereeerieenesneneeseereresenneseennenees 9.19(b)
“Seller Marks” ....oooeverieiieieeeeieeee e 5.8
“State COMMISSIONS” ....c.veoviiririeeecereneriecsreeeeeeseeesenresnenesneees 3.4
“Straddle Period”....c..oovereeeiereneeiene e 6.4
“Subject EMPIOYEEs”.......ccccovveervrerccninincinicccrenineineeceeneeeeeens. 9.6(a)
“Tax Package” .....cooviiveeninicencee 6.5(a)
“Termination Date” .........coviieiiciriecre e r e e e e 8.1(b)
“Third Party Claim” ........cccvceririirinenreienrieese i 9.5(b)
“Transition COMMULEEE™ .........cccieevieiereeiereeiere e seree e seennees 5.1(c)
“WEKE DOCUMENES™ ...t riensnssnenesneennes 30239

11
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Section 1.2 Interpretation and Rules of Construction. (a) The words “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereto” and “hereunder” and words of similar import shall refer to this Agreement as
a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement.

9 &g

(b)  Whenever the words “include,” “includes” or “including” appear, they
shall be read to be followed immediately by the words “without limitation” or words having
similar import.

(c) Both the word “Dollars” and the symbol “$” mean United States Dollars.

(d) The use of the word “or” is not intended to be exclusive unless otherwise
expressly indicated.

(e) The terms defined in the singular shall have a comparable meaning when
used in the plural, and vice versa.

63} References to the Preamble or a specific Recital, Article, Section or
Exhibit shall refer, respectively, to the Preamble and the specific Recital, Article and Section of
and Exhibit to this Agreement.

() References to a Person shall also be references to its successors and
permitted assigns.

(h) References to any agreement (including this Agreement), contract, statute,
regulation or rule are to the agreement, contract, statute, regulation or rule as amended, modified,
supplemented, restated or replaced from time to time (in the case of any agreement or contract, to
the extent permitted by the terms thereof), and references to any section of any statute, regulation
or rule include any successor to such section.

(1) The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are for
reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement.

) All terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when
used in any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant to this Agreement, unless
otherwise defined therein.

(k) The parties hereto have participated jointly in drafting and negotiating this
Agreement.” In the event that an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this
Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties hereto, and no presumption or
burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party hereto by virtue of the authorship of
any provision hereof.

ARTICLE 11
SALE AND PURCHASE

Section 2.1  Sale and Purchase. Upon the terms and subject to the satisfaction
or waiver of the conditions set forth in this Agreement, at the Closing, Seller shall sell, transfer
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and deliver all the issued and outstanding Interests to Purchaser, free and clear of any Liens and
Purchaser shall purchase, acquire and accept all the issued and outstanding Interests from Seller
(the “Purchase”).

Section 2.2 Purchase Price. At the Closing, subject to satisfaction or waiver of
the Conditions set forth in Article VII hereof, in consideration for the sale and transfer of all the
issued and outstanding Interests by Seller to Purchaser, Purchaser shall pay to Seller an
aggregate amount in cash equal to $2,062 million (the “Base Purchase Price”) (w) minus an
amount equal to the aggregate amount of payments made by the Company and its Subsidiaries
pursuant to Section 5.10, (x) plus the dollar amount of all equity investments made by Seller or
any of its Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) in the Company after the date
hereof (“Equity Investments™) and the aggregate amount of Indebtedness borrowed by the
Company or its Subsidiaries from Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company and its
Subsidiaries), which Indebtedness is not issued to refinance existing Indebtedness, after the date
hereof not in violation of Section 5.1(a)(v), solely to the extent that (i) capital expenditures have
been funded in an aggregate amount equal to or greater than the aggregate of the amounts set
forth in Section 5.1(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule since the Cut-Off Date for the time
periods expired at such time (pro-rated for the quarterly period in which the Closing occurs), (ii)
the proceeds of such Equity Investments and/or such Indebtedness are used to fund capital
expenditures that are Unplanned Capital Expenditures and (iii) the aggregate amount of such
Equity Investments and Indebtedness does not exceed (A) $200 million, if the Closing has
occurred no later than December 31, 2010 or (B) $250 million if the Closing occurs thereafter,
(y) plus, without duplication of amounts for which the Base Purchase Price is adjusted pursuant
to clause (x) of this Section 2.2, the dollar amount of all Equity Investments and the aggregate
amount of Indebtedness borrowed by the Company or its Subsidiaries from Seller and its
Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries), which Indebtedness is not issued to
refinance existing Indebtedness, after December 31, 2010 not in violation of Section 5.1(a)(v),
solely to the extent that Seller or its Affiliates have caused the Projected Investment to occur
prior to funding such additional Equity Investments and/or such Indebtedness after December 31,
2010, and further to the extent that (i) the aggregate amount of such Equity Investments and/or
such Indebtedness does not exceed $100 million, and such amounts are used to fund capital
expenditures not in excess of the amounts set forth on Section 5.1(d) of the Company Disclosure
Schedule for the time periods beginning after December 31, 2010 and expired at that time
(including pro rata amounts for any incomplete periods) and (ii) the internal cashflows of the
Company and its Subsidiaries (before such capital expenditures and after any dividends or other
distributions after the date hereof in respect of the Interests not exceeding $25 million in any
calendar quarter), maintaining a level of working capital consistent with past practice, are
insufficient to fund such capital expenditures without such additional Indebtedness or Equity
Investment, and (z) minus the dollar amount equal to any dividends or other distributions made
in respect of the Interests in excess of $25 million in any calendar quarter between the date
hereof and the Closing Date (other than any distributions made in respect of any repayment of
Indebtedness outstanding to Subsidiaries of Parent (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries)
and the payment of any “make-whole” premium payable in accordance with the terms of such
borrowings upon prepayment thereof). The Base Purchase Price shall further be (x) decreased, if
the Estimated Closing Indebtedness (as defined in Section 2.3(a)) minus the Expected Closing
Indebtedness is a positive number, on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the amount equal to the
Estimated Closing Indebtedness minus the Expected Closing Indebtedness or (y) increased, if the
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Estimated Closing Indebtedness minus the Expected Closing Indebtedness is a negative number,
on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the amount equal to the Expected Closing Indebtedness minus the
Estimated Closing Indebtedness. The Base Purchase Price as increased or decreased in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Section 2.2 shall be referred to herein as the
“Purchase Price”.

Section 2.3  Closing Day Payments. (a) No fewer than five Business Days
prior to the anticipated Closing Date (or as far in advance of Closing as is reasonably practicable
to the extent that the parties cannot reasonably anticipate the projected Closing Date at least five
Business Days in advance of such Closing Date), Seller shall prepare and deliver to Purchaser a
statement (the “Estimated Statement™), prepared in good faith, calculating and setting forth its
estimate of the Purchase Price (the “Estimated Purchase Price”) and including an estimate of
Closing Indebtedness as of the close of business on the day immediately preceding the
anticipated Closing Date (the “Estimated Closing Indebtedness™), together with reasonably
detailed supporting documentation. In the event that, no fewer than two Business Days prior to
the anticipated Closing Date Purchaser notifies Seller of any errors that Purchaser believes are
contained in the Estimated Statement, Seller shall in good faith consider Purchaser’s comments
relating to such errors.

(b) At the Closing, Purchaser shall pay to Seller the amount in cash specified
as the Estimated Purchase Price in the Estimated Statement by wire transfer of immediately
available funds to an account or accounts designated by Seller to Purchaser in writing (such
designation to be delivered no later than two (2) Business Days prior to the Closing Date),
without any deduction, set-off or withholding, except as provided in Section 2.7.

(c) The payment made pursuant to Section 2.3(b) (the “Closing Day
Payment™), shall be subject to a post-Closing adjustment in accordance with the provisions of
Section 2.4.

Section 2.4  Adjustment to Payment at Closing. Within 60 days following the
Closing Date, Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing (the “Notice of Purchase Price Adjustment
Disagreement”) if Purchaser disagrees with the amounts that were set forth on the Estimated
Statement. The Notice of Purchase Price Adjustment Disagreement shall set forth in reasonable
detail the basis for such disagreement, the amounts involved and Purchaser’s determination of
the amount of the Estimated Purchase Price with reasonably detailed supporting documentation.
Seller and Purchaser shall seek in good faith to resolve any disagreement that they may have
with respect to the matters specified in the Notice of Purchase Price Adjustment Disagreement.
If Seller and Purchaser are unable to resolve such disagreements, Seller and Purchaser shall
submit all matters that remain in dispute to Deloitte & Touche L.L.P. (or, if Deloitte and Touche
L.L.P. refuses or is unable to act, another independent certified public accounting firm in the
United States of national recognition selected by the parties or, if the parties cannot agree, by the
American Arbitration Association) for a binding resolution of the matters in dispute. In the event
that upon final determination, pursuant to this Section 2.4, of the actual amount of the Purchase
Price, the parties determine that the Estimated Purchase Price exceeds such actual Purchase
Price, then Seller shall pay to Purchaser an amount equal to such excess. In the event that upon
final determination, pursuant to this Section 2.4, of the actual amount of the Purchase Price, the
parties determine that the Estimated Purchase Price is less than such actual Purchase Price, then
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Purchaser shall pay to Seller an amount equal to the difference between such actual Purchase
Price minus the Estimated Purchase Price. Any such payments shall be made by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to an account designated by Seller or Purchaser (as applicable)
within two (2) Business Days after the date on which a final determination of the actual Purchase
Price is made pursuant to this Section 2.4.

Section 2.5  Closing. (a) The closing of the Purchase (the “Closing”) shall
take place at the offices of Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP, 425 Lexington Avenue, New York,
New York 10017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern time) on the third Business Day following the date on
which all of the conditions set forth in Article VII (other than those conditions that by their
nature can only be satisfied at the Closing but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such
conditions) have been satisfied or waived in accordance with this Agreement or at such other
location, time or date as may be mutually agreed upon in writing by the parties hereto (the date
on which the Closing occurs, the “Closing Date™); provided, however, that upon satisfaction or
waiver of all the conditions set forth in Article VII (excluding conditions that, by their terms,
cannot be satisfied until the Closing Date, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such
conditions) Purchaser may on one occasion, by giving written notice (an “Extension Notice”) to
Parent no later than two Business Days prior to the date the Closing is scheduled to occur, elect
to postpone the Closing Date for such period of time, not to exceed the period of time necessary
to provide Purchaser with a 15 consecutive Business Day period during which period Purchaser
has all of the Required Information (including financial statements that are Required Information
that would be current for purposes of an offering registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission) (the “Extension Period”), as Purchaser advises Parent is necessary to permit
Purchaser to complete an Alternative Permanent Financing to reduce the cost of financing the
Closing Day Payment and the other payments to be made or provided by Purchaser pursuant to
Section 5.7(a), provided, that if such Extension Period has not ended (A) on or prior to August
20, 2010, the Extension Period shall commence no earlier than September 6, 2010, (B) on or
prior to December 17, 2010, the Extension Period shall commence no earlier than January 3,
2011 and (C) on or prior to August 19, 2011, the Extension Period shall commence no earlier
than September 5, 2011 and provided further, that any such postponement shall be for no more
time than is reasonably necessary for Purchaser to complete an Alternative Permanent Financing
and shall continue only for so long as Purchaser reasonably believes such offering of securities is
likely to occur. In the event Purchaser postpones the Closing Date in accordance with the
foregoing provisions of this Section 2.5(a), the conditions set forth in Sections 7.2(a) and 7.2(c)
shall each be deemed to be fully satisfied as of the date of the Extension Notice, except that prior
to Closing Seller shall nevertheless deliver to Purchaser a certificate of a duly authorized officer
of Seller to the effect that the condition specified in Section 7.2(a) was satisfied as of the date of
the Extension Notice.

(b) At the Closing, Purchaser shall, in addition to the payment of the Closing
Day Payment and the provision of funds to the Company and its Subsidiaries as set forth in
Section 5.7(a), deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Seller the following:

(1) the certificate to be delivered by Purchaser pursuant to
Sections 7.3(a) and 7.3(b); and
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the following:

(ii)  such other documents and instruments as may be reasonably
required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

() At the Closing, Seller shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Purchaser

) the certificate or certificates representing the Interests, duly
endorsed in blank in proper form for transfer;

(if)  the certificate to be delivered by Seller pursuant to Sections 7.2(a)
and 7.2(b);

(iii)  a mutual release in substantially the form of Exhibit A, duly
executed by the Company, on behalf of itself and each of its Subsidiaries, and
Parent, on behalf of itself and each of its Affiliates (other than the Company and
its Subsidiaries);

(iv)  aduly executed certificate of Seller, dated as of the Closing Date,
certifying that Seller is not a foreign person in the form provided for in Treasury
Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b)(2)(iv);

(v)  with respect to each of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and to
the extent not held by such entities, the Company Books and Records;

(vi)  resignation letters from each of the directors and managers of each
of the Company and its Subsidiaries (other than individuals who will continue to

act as full-time employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries after Closing); and

(vii)  such other documents and instruments as may be reasonably
required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 2.6 Interest. All computations of interest with respect to any payment

due to a Person under this Agreement shall be based on a year of 365 days, in each case for the
actual number of days (including the first day but excluding the last day) occurring in the period
for which such interest is payable. Whenever any payment under this Agreement will be due on
a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business
Day, and such extension of time shall be included in the computation of payment of interest.

Section 2.7 Withholding. All payments to be made by Purchaser to Seller

hereunder shall be made without deduction of any Tax, provided that in the event of a change in
Law affecting Taxes after the date hereof requiring the deduction or withholding of Tax with
respect to such payments, Purchaser may deduct or withhold such Tax subject to providing Seller
with any reasonable cooperation in order to eliminate or mitigate such deduction or withholding
of Taxes. Any amounts so deducted and withheld will be treated for all purposes of this
Agreement as having been paid to the Seller.
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ARTICLE 111
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Seller hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser as of the date hereof and
(except to the extent that any representation or warranty expressly speaks as of the date hereof or
another specified date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be given only as of
such date) as of the Closing Date, except as set forth in the Company Disclosure Schedule, as
follows:

Section 3.1  Organization. Seller is a corporation duly incorporated, validly
existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of Delaware. The Company and each
of its Subsidiaries is a legal entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing (with
respect to jurisdictions that recognize the concept of good standing or a similar local concept)
under the Laws of its respective jurisdiction of organization, has all requisite corporate or limited
liability company or similar power and authority, as applicable, to own, lease and operate its
properties and assets and to carry on its business as presently conducted, and is qualified to do
business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation or other legal entity in each jurisdiction
(with respect to jurisdictions that recognize the concept of such qualifications) where the
ownership, leasing or operation of its properties or assets or the conduct of its business requires
such qualification, except for those jurisdictions where the failure to be so organized, existing, in
good standing or qualified, or to have such power or authority, is not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. A correct and
complete copy of the Organizational Documents of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries, as
amended to the date of this Agreement, has been made available to Purchaser, and each such
Organizational Document so delivered is in full force and effect and neither the Company nor
any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of its Organizational Documents in any material respect.

Section 3.2 Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation. Seller has the
requisite corporate or similar power and authority and has taken all corporate or similar action
necessary to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered by Seller, and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this
Agreement by Purchaser, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable
against Seller in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
conveyance, reorganization, moratorium and other similar Laws of general applicability relating
to or affecting creditor’s rights and to general equitable principles, whether considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law (collectively, the “Bankruptcy and Equity Exceptions”).

Section 3.3  Non-Contravention. The execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement by Seller do not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby
by Seller will not, (a) conflict with or result in any breach or violation of the Organizational
Documents of any of Seller, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (b) constitute, result in or
give rise to a breach or violation of, a termination (or a right of termination), default (or an event
that with notice or lapse of time would become a default), creation or acceleration of any
obligation or loss of any benefit under, any Company Material Contract, (c) result in the creation
of any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) upon the properties or assets of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries or (d) result in a violation of any Law or Governmental Order to which the
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Company or any of its Subsidiaries is subject or a violation or revocation of any Company
Governmental Authorization (in each case, assuming the receipt and effectiveness of, and the
compliance with, all Company Required Regulatory Approvals), except, in the case of the
foregoing clauses (b), (c) and (d), for any such breach, violation, termination, default, creation or
acceleration that is not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company
Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.4  Governmental Approvals and Filings. Except for (i) the filing of a
premerger notification and report form and the expiration or early termination of the related
waiting periods under the HSR Act, (i1) the filings with, notices to, and orders, consents and
approvals of, the FERC under the Federal Power Act, (iii) the filings with, notices to, and orders,
consents and approvals of, the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”), (iv) filings with,
notices to, and orders, consents and approvals of, the KPSC, the Virginia State Corporation
Commission and the Tennessee Regulatory Authority (collectively, the “State Commissions”),
(v) notices, reports, filings, approvals and/or consents identified in Section 3.4 of the Company
Disclosure Schedule and (vi) the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals ((i) through (v),
collectively, the “Company Required Regulatory Approvals”), no notices, reports or other filings
are required to be made by Seller, the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any of the Company
Joint Ventures with, nor are any Governmental Authorizations required to be obtained by Seller,
the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or the Company Joint Ventures from, any Governmental
Authority in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of, and the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by, this Agreement, except for such notices, reports, other
filings or Governmental Authorizations where the failure to make or obtain the same is not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect (it
being understood that references in this Agreement to “making” or “obtaining” such Company
Required Regulatory Approvals shall mean giving such notices; making such reports or other
filings; obtaining such Governmental Authorizations; and having such waiting periods expire as
are necessary to avoid a violation of Law or any applicable Governmental Order).

Section 3.5  Title to the Interests. Scller is the sole legal and beneficial owner
of all issued and outstanding Interests, free and clear of any Liens (other than Liens that will be
removed prior to the Closing without cost to the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or the
Company Joint Ventures or any Liabilities being created in respect of such entities in connection
with such removal). Seller is not party to any option, warrant, purchase right, commitment,
undertaking, Contract or understanding of any kind (other than this Agreement) that could,
directly or indirectly, restrict the transfer of, or otherwise restrict the voting, dividend rights, sale
or other disposition of the Interests or any other capital stock or equity interest in the Company.
Upon delivery to Purchaser at the Closing of the certificate or certificates representing the
Interests, duly endorsed by Seller in proper form for transfer, Seller’s record, legal and beneficial
ownership interest in and to the Interests will pass to Purchaser, free and clear of any Liens.

Section 3.6 Capitalization. (a) The authorized limited liability company
interests of the Company consist of 10,000,000 units of limited liability company interests, of
which 1,001 units are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. Except for the Interests, there
are no issued or outstanding equity interests in the Company. There are no issued or outstanding
bonds, debentures, notes, obligations or other Indebtedness (together, “Debt Instruments™) of the
Company entitling the holders thereof to vote on any matters that the Company’s members may
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vote on. There are no Debt Instruments of the Company that are convertible or exchangeable
into or exercisable for any securities or other Debt Instruments, entitling the holders thereof to
vote on any matters that the Company’s members may vote on. The Interests have been duly
authorized, are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable free and clear of any Lien and free of
any other limitation or restriction (including any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise
dispose of such ownership interests). The Interests have not been issued in violation of (i) any
right of first refusal, preemptive or similar right or subscription right (and are not subject to any
such right) or (i) the Organizational Documents of the Company.

(b) Section 3.6(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth, with
respect to each Subsidiary of the Company, (i) its name and jurisdiction of organization, (ii) the
number of shares of capital stock or other equity interest of such Subsidiary that are authorized,
and (iii) the number of shares of capital stock or other equity interest of such Subsidiary that are
issued and outstanding and the names of the record holders thereof. All issued and outstanding
shares of capital stock or other equity interests in each of the Company’s Subsidiaries have been
duly authorized, are validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. None of the issued and
outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity interests of any Subsidiary of the Company
has been issued in violation of (i) any right of first refusal, preemptive or similar right or
subscription right (and are not subject to any such right) or (i1) the Organizational Documents of
such Subsidiary. There are no issued or outstanding Debt Instruments of any of the Company’s
Subsidiaries having the right to vote, or which are convertible or exchangeable into or
exercisable for any securities or other Debt Instruments having the right to vote, on any matters
that the shareholders or owners of the Company’s Subsidiaries, as applicable, may vote on. All
of the outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity interest in each Subsidiary of the
Company are owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company, free and clear of any Liens other
than Permitted Liens and free of any limitation or restriction on the right to vote such ownership
interests.

(c) Section 3.6(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of
each of the Company Joint Ventures, including, with respect to each Company Joint Venture, its
name and the Company’s interest therein and also including, as to each Company Joint Venture,
a brief description of its principal line or lines of business. Except as set forth in Section 3.6(c)
of the Company Disclosure Schedule or in the Organizational Documents of the Company Joint
Ventures (a copy of which has been provided to Purchaser prior to the date hereof) the Company
and its Subsidiaries have no obligation to contribute additional capital to the Company Joint
Ventures.

(d) There are no options, warrants or other securities authorized, issued or
outstanding, calls, purchase rights, right of first offer, right of first refusal, subscription rights,
exchange rights, convertible or exchangeable securities, stock appreciation rights, Contracts or
undertakings of any kind, to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which
it is bound, (i) obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to (A) issue, deliver or sell, or
cause to be issued, delivered or sold, additional shares of capital stock or other equity interests in
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (B) pay cash in respect of the value of the shares of
capital stock or other equity interests in the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (ii) obligating
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, grant, extend or enter into any such option,
warrant, call, right, security, Contract or undertaking. There are no outstanding contractual
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obligations of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire
any shares of capital stock or other equity interest in the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
There is no voting trust, proxy or other agreement or understanding in favor of any Person other
than the Company or a Subsidiary wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company with
respect to the voting of any capital stock or other equity interest in any Subsidiary of the
Company.

(e) Other than with respect to the Company’s Subsidiaries and the Company
Joint Ventures, as set forth in Section 3.6(b) and Section 3.6(c) of the Company Disclosure
Schedule none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries owns, directly or indirectly, any capital
stock, limited liability company or partnership interest, joint venture interest, profit, voting or
other equity interest in, or any interest convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for, any
capital stock or limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, profit, voting or other equity
interest in, any other Person.

Section 3.7  Financial Information. (a) Section 3.7 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule contains a true and complete copy of the 2009 Company Financial Statements and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 (collectively, together with the 2009 Company
Financial Statements, the “Company Financial Statements™).

(b) The Company Financial Statements (i) were prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied, as at the dates and for the periods
presented (except as may be expressly indicated therein or in the notes thereto), and (ii) together
with the notes thereto, present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis
as of the dates or for the periods presented.

(c) The Company and its Subsidiaries have no Liabilities of a type required to
be reflected on a balance sheet in accordance with GAAP, other than (i) Liabilities reflected,
reserved against or otherwise disclosed in the Company Financial Statements (including the
notes thereto), (ii) Liabilities incurred after the Cut-Off Date in the Company Ordinary Course of
Business or pursuant to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (iit) Liabilities set forth
in Section 3.7(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule and (iv) Liabilities that are not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.8 Conduct in the Company Ordinary Course of Business. Except as
may be reflected in the Company Financial Statements (including the notes thereto but excluding
any statements therein that are cautionary, risk factor, predictive or forward-looking in nature),
since the Cut-Off Date:

(a) until the date hereof, the Company and its Subsidiaries have conducted
their respective businesses, in all material respects, only in the Company Ordinary Course of
Business;

(b) there has been no Company Material Adverse Effect; and
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(c) until the date hereof, without limitation to the foregoing clauses (a) and
(b), the Company and its Subsidiaries have not taken or omitted to take any action that, if such
action had been taken or omitted to be taken after the date hereof, would have constituted a
violation of Section 5.1(a) hereof.

Section 3.9  Taxes. (a) All material Tax Returns that are required to be filed on
or before the Closing Date in respect of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries have been or
will be timely filed (taking into account any valid extension of time to file);

(b) the Tax Returns referred to in clause (a) of this Section 3.9 that have been
filed are complete and accurate in all material respects;

() all material Taxes of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries (whether or
not shown as due and payable on the Tax Returns referred to in clause (a) of this Section 3.9)
have been or will be timely paid in full, and, where payment of such Taxes is not yet due,
adequate reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP;

(d) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has agreed to any
extension or waiver of the statute of limitations applicable to any material Tax Return referred to
in clause (a) of this Section 3.9 or agreed to any extension of time with respect to any material
amount of Tax assessment or deficiency, which period of time (after giving effect to such
extension or waiver) has not yet expired;

(e) except for obligations contemplated in Section 6.7 in respect of the Tax
Sharing Agreement, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any Tax
sharing agreement (other than agreements exclusively between or among the Company and its
Subsidiaries), pursuant to which it will have any obligation to make any payments with respect to
Taxes to any Person after the Closing; provided, however, that leases and other Contracts that
provide tangentially for an allocation or apportionment of Liabilities with respect to Tax
generated or related to such leases or Contracts shall not constitute Tax sharing agreements;

® there is no pending, ongoing or, to the Knowledge of the Seller, threatened
audit, examination, investigation or other proceeding against the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries in respect of any material Taxes of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries;

(2) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries (i) has been a member of
an affiliated group of corporations within the meaning of Section 1504 of the Code (other than a
group the common parent of which is Seller) within the last five (5) years or (ii) has any Liability
for Taxes of any other Person (other than any other legal entity that is a member of the affiliated
group filing a U.S. federal consolidated income tax return, of which the Company or such
Subsidiary is currently a member) under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar
provision of state, local or foreign Law) or as a transferee or successor under applicable Law;

(h)  there are no material Liens upon any of the assets or properties of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of Taxes, other than Permitted Liens;
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1) each of the Company and its Subsidiaries have duly and timely withheld
and paid over to the appropriate taxing authorities all material amounts of Taxes required to be
withheld and paid over for all periods under all applicable Laws and regulations;

0 the Company and each of its Subsidiaries have collected all material sales
and use Taxes required to be collected, and has remitted, or will remit on a timely basis, such
amounts to the appropriate taxing authorities, or has been furnished properly completed
exemption certificates and has maintained all such records and supporting documents in the
manner required by all applicable sales and use Tax Laws;

(k) Section 3.9(k) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) all
material “closing agreements” as described in Section 7121 of the Code (or any corresponding or
similar provision of state or local income Tax Law) in respect of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries executed within the two-year period ending on the date hereof, (ii) all material
“deferred intercompany gains” described in Treasury Regulations under Section 1502 of the
Code in respect of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries as of the date hereof and (iii) all
material changes in method of accounting of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries made within
the two year period ending on the date hereof;

)] neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has been either a
“distributing corporation” or a “controlled corporation” within the last two years in a distribution
in which the parties to such distribution treated the distribution as one to which Section 355 of
the Code is applicable;

(m) (i) the portion of the loss carryforwards and credits of the U.S. federal
income Tax consolidated group, the common parent of which is the Seller, (the “Seller
Consolidated Group™) set forth in Section 3.9(m) of the Company Disclosure Schedule that is
attributable to the Company and its Subsidiaries pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section
1.1502-21(b) as of the Cut-Off Date will be at least equal to the amount set forth opposite such
carryforward or credit in Section 3.9(m) of the Company Disclosure Schedule and (i) the
Company and its Subsidiaries have, in the aggregate, a “net unrealized built-in gain” within the
meaning of Section 382 (h)(3)(A) of the Code as of the date of this Agreement;

(n) the Seller shall make a timely election pursuant to Treas. Reg.
§ 1.1502-36(d)(6) in connection with the sale of the Interests to avoid any tax attribute reduction
of the Company or its Subsidiaries that would arise absent such election; and

(0) KU is eligible for an 80% deduction in respect of dividends received from
Electric Energy Inc. and each of KU and LG&E are eligible for a 70% deduction in respect of
dividends received from Ohio Valley Electric Corp.

Section 3.10 Litigation; Investigations. Except as expressly set forth in the
Company Financial Statements (including the notes thereto) or as set forth in Section 3.10 of the
Company Disclosure Schedule, (a) there are no Actions pending or, to Seller’s Knowledge,
threatened in writing (i) against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except for those that are
not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse
Effect, or (ii) as of the date hereof, against Seller or any of its Affiliates that challenge or seek to
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prevent, enjoin or otherwise delay the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (b) there
are no (i) Governmental Orders or pending investigations by a Governmental Authority as to
which the Company has received written notification or (ii) to Seller’s Knowledge, any other
pending investigations by a Governmental Authority, in each of clauses (i) and (ii) to which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties or assets are subject that
would, individually or in the aggregate, be reasonably likely to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect.

Section 3.11 Compliance with Law and Governmental Authorizations;
Regulation as a Utility. (a) Except as set forth in the Company Financial Statements (including
the notes thereto), except as are not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect:

(1) each of the Company and its Subsidiaries is, and since December
31, 2007 has been, conducting its business in substantial compliance with
applicable Laws and Governmental Orders including with respect to the
ownership, operation, control and sale of energy, capacity and ancillary services
and environmental attributes;

(i)  each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has all Governmental
Authorizations necessary to conduct its business as presently conducted; and

(ili)  no suspension, cancellation, revocation, non-renewal or adverse
modification of any Governmental Authorizations that are necessary to the
conduct of the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ respective businesses as presently
conducted is pending, or to Seller’s Knowledge, threatened in writing against the
Company or its Subsidiaries, and to Seller’s Knowledge there exists no material
likelihood for any such suspension, cancellation, revocation, non renewal or
adverse modification.

(b) The Company is a “holding company” under the Public Utility Holding
Company Act of 2005 (“PUHCA 2005”) and it and its Subsidiaries and “affiliates” under and as
defined in PUHCA 2005 are subject to regulation thereunder. The Company is not subject to
regulation as an “electric utility” or a “gas utility”, a “public utility” or “utility” under applicable
state law. Each of LG&E, KU, LEM and WKE, each of which is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of
the Company, is a “public utility” under and as defined in the Federal Power Act and as such are
each subject to regulation thereunder. LG&E and KU are each also regulated as a “utility” under
Kentucky state law, KU is also regulated as a “public utility” under Virginia state law and as a
“public utility” under Tennessee state law. Except for regulation of the Company and its
Subsidiaries under PUHCA 2005, the regulation of LG&E, KU, LEM and WKE by FERC under
the Federal Power Act, the regulation of LG&E and KU by the KPSC, the regulation of KU by
the Virginia State Corporation Commission and the regulation of KU by the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to regulation as
a public utility or public service company (or similar designation) by FERC, any state in the
United States or in any foreign nation. LG&E, KU, LEM and WKE have each been authorized
by FERC to make certain wholesale sales of energy and capacity at market-based rates pursuant
to the Federal Power Act.
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Section 3.12 Employee Benefits. (a) All benefit and compensation plans,
contracts, policies, agreements, or arrangements covering Company Employees or current or
former directors or consultants under which (i) any Company Employee, director, or consultant
has any present or future right to benefits which are contributed to, sponsored by, or maintained
by Seller, the Company, or any of their respective Subsidiaries or (ii) the Company or any of its
respective Subsidiaries has had or could have any liability, including, without limitation,
“employee benefit plans” within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA; employment
agreements; severance, change of control, deferred compensation, stock option, stock purchase,
phantom stock, stock appreciation rights, stock-based, incentive, employee loan, fringe benefit,
or bonus plans; and all other employee benefit plans, agreements, programs, policies, or other
arrangements, whether or not subject to ERISA (including any trust instrument, insurance
contract or similar arrangement intended to fund any of the foregoing) (the “Benefit Plans™), that
are material are listed in Section 3.12(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and
Section 3.12(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule separately identifies which Benefit Plans
are maintained or sponsored by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (the “Company Benefit
Plans”) and which Benefit Plans are maintained or sponsored by Seller or any of its Affiliates
(but excluding the Company and its Subsidiaries) (the “Seller Benefit Plans™). Each Benefit Plan
which is intended to be qualified within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Code has received
a favorable opinion or determination letter as to its qualification from the IRS National Office,
and nothing has occurred, whether by action or failure to act, that could reasonably be expected
to cause the loss of such qualification, and each such Benefit Plan has been separately identified.
Seller has made available to Purchaser true, current, and complete copies (or to the extent no
such copy exists, an accurate description) of each Benefit Plan including, to the extent
applicable: any trust instruments, insurance contracts or similar arrangements intended to fund
such Benefit Plans; all amendments thereto; the most recent opinion or determination letter; any
summary plan description and other material written communications in the last three years by
Parent, the Company, or any of their respective Subsidiaries to Company Employees or current
or former directors or consultants concerning the extent of the benefits provided under a Benefit
Plan; and for the three most recent years, with respect to each Benefit Plan, (i) the Form 5500
and attached schedules and (ii) actuarial valuation reports.

(b) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be likely
to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, each Benefit Plan is in substantial compliance with
ERISA, the Code, and other applicable Law, and has been established and administered in
accordance with it terms. Each Benefit Plan which is subject to ERISA (an “ERISA Plan”) that
is an “employee pension benefit plan” within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA (a “Pension
Plan™) and that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, has received a
favorable opinion or determination letter from the IRS. Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has engaged in a transaction with respect to any ERISA Plan that could subject the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to a tax or penalty imposed by either Section 4975 of the
Code or Section 502(i) of ERISA except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Since the Cut-Off Date (but
excluding actions permitted pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(xiv)), there has been no amendment to or
change (other than changes in the value of assets or liabilities or the number of participating
employees) in any Company Benefit Plan which would increase the expense of maintaining such
a plan above the level of the expense incurred therefor for the most recent fiscal year, except as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be likely to have a Company Material
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Adverse Effect). Since the Cut-Off Date (but excluding actions permitted pursuant to Section
5.1(a)(xiv)), there have been no announcements by the Company or its Subsidiaries of any
amendments to any Company Benefit Plan that would increase the expense of maintaining any
Company Benefit Plan above the level of the expense incurred therefor for the most recent fiscal
year, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be likely to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect.

(c) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be likely
to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, no liability under Subtitle C or D of Title IV of
ERISA has been or is expected to be incurred by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with
respect to any ongoing, frozen or terminated “single-employer plan”, within the meaning of
Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA, currently or formerly maintained by any of them, or the single-
employer plan of any entity which is considered one employer with the Company under
Section 4001 of ERISA or Section 414 of the Code (an “ERISA Affiliate””). No Benefit Planis a
“multiemployer plan” (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) (a “Multiemployer Plan”) and
none of the Company, its Subsidiaries, nor any of their respective ERISA Affiliates has at any
time sponsored or contributed to, or has had any liability or obligation to contribute to, any
Multiemployer Plan. Neither any Pension Plan nor any single-employer plan of an ERISA
Affiliate is in “at-risk” status within the meaning of Section 303 of ERISA and no ERISA
Affiliate has an outstanding funding waiver. As of the date of this Agreement, neither any
Pension Plan nor any single-employer plan of an ERISA Affiliate has been required to file
information pursuant to Section 4010 of ERISA for the current or most recently completed plan
year.

(d) There is no material pending or, to Seller’s Knowledge threatened in
writing, litigation relating to the Company Benefit Plans, except as would not, individually or in
the aggregate, reasonably be likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. As of the date
hereof, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be likely to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect, no written or material oral communication has been received
from the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) in respect of any Benefit Plan
subject to Title IV of ERISA concerning the funding status of any such plan in connection with
the transactions contemplated herein. No material administrative investigation, audit or other
administrative proceeding by the Department of Labor, the PBGC, the Internal Revenue Service,
or other governmental agencies is, to Seller’s Knowledge, pending, threatened, or in progress.
Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has any current or projected material obligations
for retiree health, medical, or life benefits (other than as an incidental benefit under a Benefit
Plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, as a benefit continuation right under the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, or as required to avoid
an excise tax under Section 4980B of the Code or otherwise except as may be required pursuant
to any other applicable law) under any ERISA Plan or collective bargaining agreement for
Company Employees or current or former directors or consultants.

(e) Except as provided in Section 5.6(g) of this Agreement, neither the
execution of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, nor
any action taken to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby (whether alone or in
connection with any subsequent event(s)) could (i) entitle any Company Employees to severance
pay or any increase in severance pay upon any termination of employment after the date of this
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Agreement, (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting or result in any payment or funding
(through a grantor trust or otherwise) of compensation or benefits under, or increase the amount
payable pursuant to, any of the Benefit Plans or (iii) limit or restrict the rights of the Company to
merge, amend or terminate any of the Company Benefit Plans. The total gross fair market value
of the Interests is not equal to or more than one-third of the total gross fair market value of all of
the assets of Parent.

() No notice of a “reportable event”, within the meaning of Section 4043 of
ERISA for which the reporting requirement has not been waived or extended, other than
pursuant to Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation Reg. Section 4043.33 or 4043.66, has been
required to be filed for any ERISA Plan that is an “employee pension benefit plan” within the
meaning of Section (3)(2) of ERISA or by any ERISA Affiliate within the 12-month period
ending on the date hereof or will be required to be filed in connection with the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement.

(2) Each Benefit Plan that is a “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (as
defined in Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) that is subject to Section 409A of the Code has been
operated in good faith compliance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

Section 3.13 Labor. (a) (i) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a
party to any collective bargaining agreement or other labor Contract with a labor union or labor
organization and (ii) in the three years immediately preceding the execution of this Agreement,
to Seller’s Knowledge, (A) no labor organization or group of Company Employees has made a
demand for recognition to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (B) there has been no pending
or threatened in writing representation or certification proceedings or petitions seeking a
representation proceeding to be brought or filed with the National Labor Relations Board or any
other labor relations tribunal or authority by or on behalf of any Company Employees, (C) there
have been no organizational activities by or on behalf of any labor organization with respect to
any Company Employees, (D) there has been no strike or work stoppage by the Company
Employees nor is any such strike or work stoppage pending or, to Seller’s Knowledge,
threatened, and (E) there have been no Actions pending against the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries arising out of any employment relationships with any of the Company Employees.
There are no consent decrees or government or judicial orders against the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, affecting their relationships with any of the current or former Company Employees,
and the Company and its Subsidiaries have paid in full all wages and compensation due and
payable to all Company Employees as of the date hereof.

(b)  The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all material
respects with all Laws and applicable Governmental Orders regarding the employment of labor,
including those affecting wage/hour, immigration, plant closing/mass layoffs and health and
safety matters in any country (or political subdivision thereof) in which they transact business
except for such violations as have not had, and are not reasonably likely to have, individually or
in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.14 Intellectual Property. Except as set forth in Section 3.14 of the
Company Disclosure Schedule, each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has sufficient rights to
use the Intellectual Property used by it and that is material in its respective business as presently
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conducted. Except as set forth in Section 3.14 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, none of the
Company or its Subsidiaries is in default (or with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both,
would be in default) under any license to use such Intellectual Property, except for such defaults
that would not be reasonably likely to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company
Material Adverse Effect. Except as set forth in Section 3.14 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, there are no pending claims or, to Seller’s Knowledge, no claims threatened against
any of the Company or its Subsidiaries alleging that the business of the Company or of its
Subsidiaries as presently conducted violates or infringes upon the material Intellectual Property
of any Person, in each case, except as would not be reasonably expected to have, individually or
in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.15 Material Contracts. (a) Section 3.15(a) of the Company
Disclosure Schedule identifies the Contracts (excluding Benefit Plans) in effect as of the date of
this Agreement to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which their
respective assets are bound and which (x) would be required to be filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s annual report on Form 10-K if the Company were a registrant under the Exchange
Act or (y) are one of the following types of Contract (each of the Contracts referenced in clauses
(x) and (y) of this Section 3.15, a “Company Materia] Contract”):

(1) any Contract for the purchase or sale by the Company and/or its
Subsidiaries of supplies, equipment, products, other assets or services which the
Company reasonably anticipates will involve the annual consideration in excess
of $15 million or aggregate consideration during the term of the Contract (without
taking into account any extensions or re-openings thereof, the occurrence of
which is at the option or requires consent of the Company or its Subsidiaries, as
applicable) in excess of $50 million;

(ii)  any partnership, joint venture or other similar agreement or
arrangement and any Contract relating to the joint ownership or operation of
assets;

(ili)  any Contract containing any covenant or provision prohibiting the
Company and/or its Subsidiaries from engaging in any line or type of business or
competing with any Person;

(iv)  any Contract that (A) limits or contains restrictions on the ability
of the Company and/or its Subsidiaries to declare or pay dividends on, to make
any other distribution in respect of or to issue or purchase, redeem or otherwise
acquire its capital stock, to incur Indebtedness, to incur or suffer to exist any
Liens, or (B) requires the Company or its Subsidiaries to maintain financial ratios
or levels of net worth; and

) any Contract, entered into since December 31, 2007, for the
purchase of any Person or business or any division thereof (by merger,
consolidation, or sale or acquisition of stock or assets or any other business
combination).
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Seller has made available to Purchaser accurate and complete copies of each Company Material
Contract together with all material amendments, waivers or other changes thereto.

(b)  Except as, in each case, is not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably
likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) each Company Material Contract is in full
force and effect and constitutes the legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation (except for
any Company Material Contracts terminated in the Company Ordinary Course of Business after
the date hereof) of the Company or such of its Subsidiaries that is a party thereto, as the case may
be, and, to Seller’s Knowledge, each other party thereto, in accordance with its terms, subject to
the Bankruptcy and Equity Exceptions, and (ii) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries,
nor, to Seller’s Knowledge as of the date hereof, any other party thereto, is in breach or violation
of, or default under, any Company Material Contract, and none of Seller, the Company or its
Subsidiaries has given or received written notice to or from any Person relating to any such
breach or default (or any event or condition that with notice or lapse of time or both would
constitute a breach, violation or default) under any Company Material Contract that has not been
cured.

Section 3.16 Environment. Except as, in each case, is not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect:

(a)  To Seller’s Knowledge, other than those closed in place in compliance
with applicable Environmental Laws, there are no USTs located in, at, on, or under any real
property owned, operated or leased by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries other than the
USTs identified in Section 3.16 of the Company Disclosure Schedule as USTs; and each of those
USTs is in compliance with all Environmental Laws.

(b) There is and has in the past been no Environmental Claim pending or, to
Seller’s Knowledge, threatened against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that would
require reporting, investigation, remediation, or other corrective or response action that has not
otherwise been addressed through such reporting, investigation, remediation or other corrective
or responsive action by the Company or its Subsidiaries.

(©) To Seller’s Knowledge, (1) there has been no Release of any Hazardous
Substance at or emanating from any real property currently or formerly owned, leased, used or
operated by, or any real property used for off-site disposal of any Hazardous Substance
originating from, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in concentrations or under
circumstances that would require reporting, investigation, remediation, or other corrective or
response action by, or give rise to any Environmental Liability of the Company or any
Subsidiary and (ii) no coal ash pond used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is in a
condition that would reasonably be expected to result in a sudden and material release (for the
avoidance of doubt, the disclosure of any seepage in the Company Disclosure Schedule shall not
constitute disclosure of a sudden and material release) of a Hazardous Substance prior to the date
that is one year following the Closing.

(d) To Seller’s Knowledge there are no PCBs, lead paint, asbestos (of any
type or form), or materials, articles or productions containing PCBs, lead paint or asbestos,
located in, at, on, under or a part of any real property (including, without limitation, any building,
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structure, or other improvement that is a part of the real property) currently owned, operated or
leased by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries except as in compliance with all Environmental
Laws.

(e) The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all applicable
Environmental Laws.

® The Company and its Subsidiaries have obtained or maintain and are in
compliance with all Environmental Permits and other environmental Governmental
Authorizations that are necessary to conduct their respective businesses as presently operated.

(g)  To Seller’s Knowledge, the Company and its Subsidiaries and their
predecessors have not operated any real property (including any of the properties, materials,
articles, products, or other things included in or otherwise a part of any real property and
facilities located on such real property), in a manner that would give rise to Environmental
Liabilities.

(h)  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has made or received any
offer to settle any threatened or actual Environmental Claim.

Notwithstanding any other representation or warranty contained in this
Agreement, the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.16 and
Section 3.11(a)(i) and Section 3.25 constitute the sole representations and warranties of Seller in
this Agreement relating to any Environmental Law or Hazardous Substance.

Section 3.17  Affiliate Transactions. Except as set forth in Section 3.17 of the
Company Disclosure Schedule and other than employment Contracts, relocation agreements,
reimbursement agreements and other similar compensation agreements with any Company
Employee or other Benefit Plans entered into in the Company Ordinary Course of Business,
there are no Contracts, transactions, agreements or arrangements between the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and Seller or any of its Affiliates (including any director or
officer of such entity but excluding the Company and any of the Company’s Subsidiaries) or any
officer or director of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or, to Seller’s Knowledge, any
Affiliate of any of them, on the other hand (each, an “Affiliate Transaction™).

Section 3.18 Insurance. Section 3.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets
forth a true and complete list of the material current insurance policies naming the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries or any director or officer thereof as an insured or beneficiary or covering
any assets or property currently or formerly owned or leased by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or covering any conduct or action of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
(including without limitation off-site disposal of Hazardous Substances), or for which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to pay all or part of the premiums, and with
respect to each of the foregoing as of the date hereof (the “Company Policies™). Except as is not
reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) as of the date hereof, neither
the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice of any pending or threatened
cancellation or material premium increase (retroactive or otherwise) with respect to any of the
Company Policies or of any material changes that are required in the conduct of the business of
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the Company or any of its Subsidiaries as a condition to the continuation of coverage under, or
renewal of, any such Company Policy, (ii) each of the Company and its Subsidiaries are in
compliance in all material respects with all conditions contained in the Company Policies and
(iii) Seller believes that the insurance covering the Company and its Subsidiaries is customary
for companies of similar size in the industries in which the Company and its Subsidiaries operate
and that all Company Policies are with reputable insurance carriers and provide adequate
coverage for all normal risks incidental to the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries
and their respective properties and assets.

Section 3.19 Trading and Derivative Products. The Company has established
risk parameters, limits and guidelines in compliance with the risk management policy reviewed
by the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Company Trading Guidelines”) to restrict the level
of risk that the Company and its Subsidiaries are authorized to take with respect to, among other
things, the net position resulting from all physical electricity transactions, exchange-traded
futures and options transactions, over-the-counter transactions and derivatives thereof, in each
case in respect of electricity (the “Net Company Position”) and monitors compliance by the
Company and its Subsidiaries with such Company Trading Guidelines. The Seller has provided
a copy of the Company Trading Guidelines to Purchaser prior to the date of this Agreement as in
effect as of such date. The Net Company Position is within the risk parameters that are set forth
in the Company Trading Guidelines, except for waivers or exceptions granted or utilized
consistent with the terms of the Company Trading Guidelines. From the Cut-Off Date to the
date of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has, in accordance with
its mark-to-market accounting policies, experienced an aggregate net loss in its electricity trading
operations that would be material to the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. The
Company and its Subsidiaries do not engage in trading activities with respect to commodities
other than electricity.

Section 3.20 Brokers. Except for Goldman, Sachs & Co. and The Blackstone
Group, whose fees and expenses will be paid by Parent, no broker, investment banker, financial
advisor or other Person is entitled to any broker’s, finder’s, financial advisor’s or other similar
fee or commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries will be liable after the Closing.

Section 3.21 No Ownership of Nuclear Power Plants. Neither the Company nor
any of its Subsidiaries owns, directly or indirectly, any interest in any nuclear generation station
or manages or operates any nuclear generation station.

Section 3.22  Credit Support Arrangements. All guaranties, letters of credit,
bonds, sureties or other credit support or assurances provided by Seller or its Affiliates or any
third party (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) as of the date hereof in support of any
obligations of the Company or its Subsidiaries are set forth in Section 3.22 of the Company
Disclosure Schedule.

Section 3.23  Takeover Statutes. No “fair price,” moratorium,” “control share
acquisition” or other similar anti-takeover statute or regulation enacted under state or federal
laws of the United States applicable to the Company is applicable to the transactions
contemplated hereby.
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Section 3.24 Real Property. Except as is not reasonably likely to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and its Subsidiaries have either good title, in
fee or valid leasehold, easement or other rights, to the land (including subsurface strata),
buildings, wires, pipes, structures and other improvements thereon (including without limitation
electric transmission and distribution facilities) and fixtures thereto, necessary to permit the
Company and its Subsidiaries to conduct their business as currently conducted free and clear of
any Liens other than Permitted Liens.

Section 3.25 WKE Matters. The Contracts and other documents set forth on
Section 3.25 of the Company Disclosure Schedule (the “WKE Documents™) constitute, as of the
date hereof, all of the Contracts and material other documents which have created or are
reasonably likely to create material financial obligations for the Company and its Subsidiaries to
the WKE Counterparties or any other counterparties to such Contracts or other material
documents relating to relationships, Contracts and arrangements between the Company and its
Affiliates, including without limitation, WKE and LEM, on the one hand, and the WKE
Counterparties, on the other hand, and, prior to the date hereof, true and complete copies of the
WKE Documents have been provided to Purchaser. With respect to indemnification or other
ongoing obligations set forth in the WKE Documents, the 2009 Company Financial Statements
include reserves attributable to such matters that reflect a good faith assessment, in accordance
with GAAP and as of the date of such 2009 Company Financial Statements, by the management
of the Company of the scope of Liabilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries in respect of such
indemnification or other ongoing obligations. Such assessment has been prepared on the basis of
reasonable assumptions. Except as set forth on Section 3.25 of the Company Disclosure
Schedule, as of the date hereof (i) Seller and its Affiliates have not made, or received from any
Person, any written claim, notice or assertion indicating that matters have arisen, or events have
occurred, that could give rise to a right of indemnification pursuant to the WKE Documents, and
(i1)(A) to Seller’s Knowledge, no such claim, notice or assertion is pending or threatened and (B)
to the actual knowledge, without inquiry, of the persons listed on Section 3.25 of the Company
Disclosure Schedule, no circumstances exist which would form the basis of such claim, notice or
assertion.

Section 3.26 No Breach. Purchaser shall not be entitled to claim a breach under
any of the representations and warranties set forth in Sections 3.6(b), (c), (d) or (e) to the extent
that any inaccuracy thereof was caused by an action taken by Seller or its Affiliates between the
date hereof and the Closing Date and such action has been set forth on Section 5.1(a) of the
Company Disclosure Schedule, expressly consented to by Purchaser in writing or is expressly
required by any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 3.27 No Other Representations or Warranties. Except for the
representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Article III, neither Parent, Seller, the
Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries nor any other Person makes any other express or
implied representation or warranty on behalf of any of Parent, Seller, the Company or the
Company’s Subsidiaries with respect to any of Parent, Seller, the Company or the Company’s
Subsidiaries or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The representations and
warranties made in this Article III with respect to Parent, Seller, the Company, the Company’s
Subsidiaries, the Interests and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are in lieu of all
other representations and warranties Parent, Seller, the Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries
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might have made or given to Purchaser or any of its Affiliates, including implied warranties of
merchantability and implied warranties of fitness for a particular purpose. Purchaser hereby
acknowledges that all other representations and warranties that Parent, Seller, the Company, the
Company’s Subsidiaries or any other Person purporting to represent any of Parent, Seller, the
Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries gave or might have given, or which might be provided
or implied by applicable Law or commercial practice, with respect to Parent, Seller, the
Company, the Company’s Subsidiaries, the Interests or the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, are hereby expressly excluded.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER

Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to Seller as of the date hereof and
(except to the extent that any representation or warranty expressly speaks as of the date hereof or
another specified date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be given only as of
such date) as of the Closing Date, as follows:

Section4.1  Organization. Purchaser is a corporation duly incorporated, validly
existing and in good standing (with respect to jurisdictions that recognize the concept of good
standing) under the Laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, has all requisite corporate or
similar power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and assets and to carry on its
business as presently conducted, and is qualified to do business and is in good standing as a
foreign corporation or other legal entity in each jurisdiction (with respect to jurisdictions that
recognize the concept of such qualification) where the ownership, leasing or operation of its
properties or assets or the conduct of its business requires such qualification, except for those
jurisdictions where the failure to be so organized, existing, in good standing or qualified, or to
have such power or authority, is not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to
prevent, materially delay or materially impair the ability of Purchaser to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section4.2  Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation. Purchaser has
the requisite corporate or similar power and authority and has taken all corporate or similar
action necessary to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly executed
and delivered by Purchaser, and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this
Agreement by Seller, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Purchaser, enforceable
against Purchaser in accordance with its terms, subject to the Bankruptcy and Equity Exceptions.

Section 4.3  Non-Contravention. The execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement by Purchaser do not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby by Purchaser will not, (a) conflict with or result in any breach or violation of the
Organizational Documents of Purchaser, (b) constitute, result in or give rise to a breach or
violation of, a termination (or a right of termination), default (or an event that with notice or
lapse of time would become a default), creation or acceleration of any obligation or loss of
benefit under, any material Contract to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser or any
of Purchaser’s properties or assets are bound, (c) result in the creation of any Lien upon the
properties or assets of Purchaser or (d) result in a violation of any Law or Governmental Order to
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which Purchaser is subject (assuming the receipt and effectiveness of, and the compliance with,
all Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals), except, in the case of the foregoing clauses (b),
(c) and (d), for any such breach, violation, termination, default, creation or acceleration that is
not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to prevent, materially delay or materially
impair the ability of Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section4.4  Governmental Approvals. (a) Except for (i) the filing of a
premerger notification and report form and the expiration or early termination of the related
waiting periods under the HSR Act, (ii) the filings with, notices to, and orders, consents and
approvals of, the FERC under the Federal Power Act, (iii) the filings with, notices to, and orders,
consents and approvals of, the FCC, (iv) the filings with, notices to, and orders, consents and
approvals of, the State Commissions (which consents to be obtained pursuant to clauses (ii) and
(iv) shall include the consent of the FERC and the State Commissions to the issuance of
securities by the Company and its Subsidiaries as contemplated by an Alternative Permanent
Financing for the purposes of the repayment of Affiliate Indebtedness in accordance with Section
5.7 hereof), (v) filings and/or notices required as a result of facts and circumstances solely
attributable to Seller or its Affiliates, and (vi) notices, reports, filings, approvals and/or consents
identified in Section 4.4(a) of the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule ((i) through (v), collectively,
the “Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals”), no notices, reports or other filings are required
to be made by Purchaser with, nor are any Governmental Authorizations required to be obtained
by Purchaser from, any Governmental Authority in connection with the execution, delivery and
performance of, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by, this Agreement,
except for such notices, reports other filings or Governmental Authorizations where the failure to
make or obtain the same is not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to prevent,
materially delay or materially impair the ability of Purchaser to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement (it being understood that references in this Agreement to
“making” or “obtaining” such Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals shall mean giving such
notices; making such reports or other filings; obtaining such Governmental Authorizations; and
having such waiting periods expire as are necessary to avoid a violation of Law or any applicable
Governmental Order).

(b)  Neither Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates is a party to any Contract or
subject to any Governmental Order which is reasonably likely to delay or prevent Purchaser from
obtaining the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals in order to permit the consummation of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement on a timely basis.

Section 4.5  Availability of Funds; Financing;. (a) The Debt Financing
Commitments provide Purchaser with financial commitments that, when funded at Closing,
together with cash held by the Purchaser, provide it with sufficient funds to pay the Closing Day
Payment, to provide the funds required to be provided by Purchaser pursuant to Section 5.7(a)
and to pay any other amounts required to be paid by it in connection with the consummation of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including all related fees and expenses.

(b) Prior to the date hereof, Purchaser has delivered to Seller a true and
complete copy of the commitment letter, dated as of the date of this Agreement, among
Purchaser, Bank of America N.A. and Credit Suisse N.A. (the “Debt Financing Commitment”),
pursuant to which the lenders party thereto have committed to lend the amounts set forth therein
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for the purposes of financing the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and related fees
and expenses (the “Debt Financing™). Prior to the date hereof, none of the Debt Financing
Commitments has been amended or modified, no such amendment or modification is
contemplated, and the respective commitments contained in the Debt Financing Commitments
have not been withdrawn or rescinded in any respect. Purchaser has fully paid any and all
commitment fees or other fees in connection with the Debt Financing Commitments that are
payable on or prior to the execution of this Agreement. As of the date hereof, the Debt
Financing Commitments are in full force and effect and are the legal, valid and binding
obligations of Purchaser and, to Purchaser’s Knowledge, each of the other parties thereto, subject
to the Bankruptcy and Equity Exceptions. Except for the payment of customary fees, there are
no conditions precedent or other contingencies related to the funding of the full amount of the
Debt Financing, other than as set forth in the Debt Financing Commitments. As of the date
hereof, no event has occurred that, with or without notice, lapse of time or both, would constitute
a default on the part of Purchaser under any of the Debt Financing Commitments. As of the date
hereof, Purchaser has no reason to believe that any of the conditions to the Debt Financing
contemplated by the Debt Financing Commitments will not be satisfied or that the Debt
Financing will not be made available to Purchaser on the Closing Date. The Debt Financing
Commitments (including engagement and fee letters entered into in connection therewith, copies
of which, redacted as to fee amounts, have been provided to Parent prior to the date hereof)
constitute the entire and complete agreements between the parties thereto with respect to the
Debt Financing.

Section 4.6  Investment Intent. Purchaser is acquiring the Interests solely for
its own account, solely for the purpose of investment and not with a view to, or for offer or sale
in connection with, any distribution thereof in violation of applicable Securities Laws.

Section 4.7  Litigation. Except as expressly set forth in Section 4.7 of the
Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, as of the date hereof there are no Actions pending or, to
Purchaser’s Knowledge, threatened in writing against Purchaser, except for those that are not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably likely to prevent, materially delay or materially
impair the ability of Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
Purchaser is not subject to any Governmental Order that is, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably likely to prevent, materially delay or materially impair the ability of Purchaser to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.8  Access. Purchaser is an informed and sophisticated purchaser that
is, and has engaged expert advisers that are, experienced in the valuation and purchase of stock,
property and assets such as the Interests as contemplated hereby. Purchaser acknowledges that
Seller and the Company have given Purchaser access to employees and documents related to the
businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries and that Purchaser has reviewed books, records
and Contracts of the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries and has met with officers
and other representatives of Seller and the Company for the purpose of investigating and
obtaining information regarding the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ operation of their
respective businesses and their financial and legal affairs in order to enable Purchaser to make a
decision with respect to the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
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Section4.9  No Material Impediment. Since the Cut-Off Date through the date
hereof, no event has occurred or circumstance has arisen that, individually or in the aggregate,
has or is reasonably likely to prevent, materially delay or materially impair the ability of
Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.10 Brokers. No broker, investment banker, financial advisor or other
Person is entitled to any broker’s, finder’s, financial advisor’s or other similar fee or commission
in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements
made by or on behalf of Purchaser or its Affiliates which will be a Liability of Seller or its
Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries), or, in the event that the Closing does
not occur, Seller or its Affiliates, (including the Company and its Subsidiaries).

Section 4.11 No Seller Breach of Representations and Warranties. As of the
date hereof, to the actual knowledge, without inquiry, of the persons set forth in Section 4.11 of
the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in
Article III are true and correct in all material respects. For the purposes of the immediately
preceding sentence, (a) any qualification of representations and warranties by reference to
materiality or “Company Material Adverse Effect” or words of similar effect shall be
disregarded for purposes of determining any breach thereof; provided that (x) with respect to
Section 3.8(b) the reference to “Company Material Adverse Effect” shall not be disregarded, (y)
(i) with respect to Section 3.11(a)(iii), the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before
the reference to “likelihood”, (ii) with respect to Section 3.15(a), the word “material” shall be
deemed to be included before the reference to “amendments, waivers or other charges”, (iii) with
respect to Section 3.18 the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before the first
reference to “current insurance policies”, before the first reference to “premium increase” and
before the first reference to “changes”, (iv) with respect to Section 3.19 the word “material” shall
be deemed to be included before the reference to “to the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a
whole” in the penultimate sentence thereof and (v) with respect to Section 3.25, the word
“material” shall be deemed to be included before the references to “other documents” and the
reference to “financial obligations” and (b) the representations and warranties of Seller shall be
deemed to be true and correct in all material respects so long as any inaccuracy thereof would be
excluded from indemnification liability by the De Minimis.

Section 4.12 No Other Representations or Warranties. Except for the
representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Article IV, neither Purchaser nor any
other Person makes any other express or implied representation or warranty on behalf of
Purchaser with respect to Purchaser or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The
representations and warranties made in this Article IV with respect to Purchaser and the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement are in lieu of all other representations and
warranties Purchaser might have made or given Seller or any of its Affiliates. Seller hereby
acknowledges that all other representations and warranties that Purchaser or any other Person
purporting to represent Purchaser gave or might have given, or which might be provided or
implied by applicable Law or commercial practice, with respect to Purchaser or the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, are hereby expressly excluded.
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ARTICLE V
COVENANTS

Section 5.1  Interim Operations. (a) Seller covenants and agrees that, except as
(w) set forth in Section 5.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (x) as Purchaser may otherwise
consent in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed),
(y) required by this Agreement, or (z) required by applicable Law or Governmental Order, from
the date of this Agreement until the Closing, it will cause the Company and each of the
Company’s Subsidiaries to conduct their respective businesses in the Company Ordinary Course
of Business and, to the extent consistent therewith and subject to prudent management of
workforce needs and on-going programs in force as of the date hereof (to the extent such
programs are set forth in Section 5.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule), use their respective
commercially reasonable efforts to preserve their respective business organizations intact,
maintain in effect their respective Governmental Authorizations that are required for the
continued operation of the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ respective businesses as they are
presently conducted, to preserve intact and maintain existing relations with their respective
customers, suppliers and employees, each in all material respects, to make the regulatory filings
as the Company and its Subsidiaries would have otherwise made in the Company Ordinary
Course of Business and to maintain with financially responsible insurance companies (or through
self insurance, consistent with past practice) insurance in such amounts and against such risks
and losses as are customary for companies engaged in their respective businesses and consistent
with the past practice of the Company and its Subsidiaries. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, from the date of this Agreement until the Closing, except as (A) set forth in Section
5.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (B) as Purchaser may otherwise consent in writing
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), (C) required by this
Agreement (provided that, actions taken to comply with the obligation in the first sentence of this
Section 5.1(a) to act in the Company Ordinary Course of Business shall not be included within
the scope of this clause (C)), or (D) required by applicable Law or Governmental Order, Seller
will cause each of the Company and each of the Company’s Subsidiaries not to:

(1) adopt any change to its Organizational Documents other than
amendments which are ministerial in nature or otherwise immaterial;

(i)  (A) split, combine or reclassify any of its limited liability interests
or shares of capital stock or issue or authorize or propose the issuance of any
other securities in respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for limited liability
interests or shares of its capital stock, directly or indirectly redeem, repurchase or
otherwise acquire any limited liability interests or shares of its capital stock,
except for any such transaction in the Company Ordinary Course of Business by a
wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company which remains a wholly owned
Subsidiary after consummation of such transaction and that does not adversely
affect the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (B) merge or
consolidate itself with any other Person, except for any merger or consolidation
among wholly owned Subsidiaries of the Company that does not adversely affect
the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or (C) restructure, reorganize
or completely or partially liquidate or dissolve itself (except as permitted by
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clause (B) in the Company Ordinary Course of Business that does not adversely
affect the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole);

(ii1)  1issue or sell, or authorize the issuance or sale of (x) any shares of
its limited liability company interest or capital stock, as applicable (other than the
issuance of shares of limited liability company interest or capital stock, as
applicable, by the Company to Seller or by a wholly owned Subsidiary of the
Company to the Company or to another wholly owned Subsidiary of the
Company), (y) any securities convertible into or exercisable for any shares of its
limited liability company interest or capital stock, as applicable, or (z) any
options, calls, warrants or other rights to acquire any shares of its limited liability
company interest or capital stock, as applicable, or such convertible or exercisable
securities;

(iv)  declare, set aside or pay any dividend or other distribution, payable
in cash, stock or property, with respect to its limited liability company interest or
capital stock, as applicable (except for dividends or other distributions declared,
set aside or paid by any direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary of the
Company to the Company or to any other direct or indirect wholly owned
Subsidiary of the Company) in excess of $25 million in each calendar quarter
between the date hereof and the Closing Date (other than any distributions made
in respect of any repayment of Indebtedness outstanding to Subsidiaries of Parent
(other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) and the payment of any “make-
whole” premium payable in accordance with the terms of such borrowings upon
prepayment thereof);

) create or incur any Indebtedness or guarantee Indebtedness of
another Person, or issue or sell any debt securities or warrants or other rights to
acquire its debt securities or enter into any “keep well” or other agreement to
maintain the financial condition of another Person, or enter into any arrangement
having the same economic effect as the foregoing (including any capital leases,
“synthetic leases” or conditional sale or other title retention agreements), except
for (i) Indebtedness or issuances or sales of debt securities or warrants or other
rights to acquire its debt securities incurred under existing credit facilities,
commercial paper facilities, lines of credit or the extension or refinancing thereof
or the extension or refinancing of any other Indebtedness (provided that (x) with
respect to the entry into, extension or renewal of any Indebtedness, such
Indebtedness shall only be entered into, extended or renewed as it matures, on
commercially reasonable terms and shall be prepayable at the Closing and (y) to
the extent that after the date hereof, the Company and its Subsidiaries incur any
additional Indebtedness owed to Seller and its Affiliates, such additional
Indebtedness shall be on terms substantially similar to the Affiliate Indebtedness
in existence on the date hereof, except that it may omit provisions for “make-
whole” payments), (ii) guarantees in connection with the extension or refinancing
of Indebtedness permitted by this Section 5.1(a)(v), (iii) Indebtedness used solely
to fund Unplanned Capital Expenditures or related non-capital expenditures; and
(iv) Indebtedness not exceeding $600 million in the aggregate;
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(vi)  make any loans or advances or capital contributions to, or
investments in, any other Person (other than loans or advances or capital
contributions to the Company or any direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary
of the Company) in excess of $5 million in the aggregate;

(vii) create or incur any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on its
material properties or assets;

(viii) other than in the Company Ordinary Course of Business, acquire
any business or any division thereof (by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of
stock or assets or any other business combination) from any other Person (other
than the Company or its Subsidiaries) in excess of $5 million in any one
transaction (or related series of transactions) and $20 million in the aggregate,
other than acquisitions pursuant to Contracts, to which it is a party or by which it
is bound, in effect as of the date of this Agreement, solely to the extent such
Contracts have been provided to Purchaser prior to the date hereof and are set
forth in Section 5.1(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule;

(ix)  permit any capital expenditure to be made which is not in
accordance with “good utility practice”;

(x) other than (x) in the Company Ordinary Course of Business, (y) to
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or (z) pursuant to Contracts, to which it is
a party or by which it is bound, in effect as of the date of this Agreement, solely to
the extent such Contracts have been provided to Purchaser prior to the date hereof
and are set forth in Section 5.1(a)(x) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, sell,
lease or otherwise dispose of any of its assets or properties having an aggregate
value in excess of $20 million, except for sales of obsolete assets in the Company
Ordinary Course of Business;

(xi)  other than in the Company Ordinary Course of Business or as
otherwise expressly permitted by this Section 5.1, enter into, amend, modify or
terminate (other than at the end of a term) any Company Material Contract in any
material respect (or any Contract that would be a Company Material Contract if in
existence on the date hereof);

(xii) make any material changes with respect to its financial or
regulatory accounting principles or procedures (other than as required by changes
in GAAP or applicable regulatory accounting requirements);

(xiii) settle or compromise any material Action (other than the Rate
Cases or any other federal or state regulatory proceeding), if such settlement or
compromise, individually or in the aggregate, is reasonably likely to adversely
affect in any material respect the post-Closing operation of its business or will
require a material payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries; provided that,
before entering into any settlement or compromise of any material Action, which
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Purchaser may settle or compromise under this Section 5.1(a)(xiii), Seller consults
with Purchaser with respect to such settlement or compromise;

(xiv) except as required by Contracts or Benefit Plans, in each case in
effect as of the date of this Agreement and set forth on Section 3.12(a) or Section
5.1(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (A) grant any new (or increase the)
rights to severance or termination payments or benefits to any of its current or
former directors, officers or employees (other than to officers or employees newly
hired or promoted to fill any vacancies in the Company Ordinary Course of
Business consistent with past practice), (B) except as in the Company Ordinary
Course of Business consistent with past practice, pay any severance or
termination payments or benefits to any of its current or former directors, officers
or employees, (C) increase the salary, annual bonus opportunity, long-term
incentive opportunity or other compensation opportunities of any of its current or
former directors, officers or employees, except for (1) increases in salary, annual
bonus opportunity and long-term incentive opportunity in connection with
promotions and (2) any annual increases in salary (and, to the extent based on
salary, any corresponding increases in annual bonus or long-term incentive
opportunities) for 2011 that are in the Company Ordinary Course of Business
consistent with past practices, (D) pay any bonus or long-term incentive amounts
in excess of the amounts earned based on actual performance, (E) establish, adopt,
enter into, amend or terminate, or materially increase the benefits under, any
Company Benefit Plan or any plan, agreement, program, policy, trust, fund, or
other arrangement that would be a Company Benefit Plan if it were in existence as
of the date of this Agreement, other than (1) agreements with newly hired or
promoted officers or employees, (2) routine or administrative amendments to
Company Benefit Plans that do not materially increase the costs under the
Company Benefit Plans, or (3) as expressly permitted by other provisions of this
Section 5.1(a)(xiv), (F) enter into or materially amend any collective bargaining
agreement, (G) loan or advance any money or other property to any present or
former director, consultant, officer, or employee of the Company or its
Subsidiaries, other than routine (1) travel or expense advances or (2) tax
equalization advances to expatriate employees, (H) grant any equity or equity-
based compensation awards, with respect to equity interests of the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries or that are payable by the Company or its Subsidiaries, or
(1) change the actuarial or other assumptions used to calculate the funding
obligations or contribution rates of any Company Benefit Plan subject to Title IV
of ERISA, except as may be required by GAAP or applicable Law;

(xv) except for Tax items for which Seller is responsible pursuant to
this Agreement, make or change any material Tax election, change any annual
accounting period in respect of material Taxes, adopt or change any accounting
method with respect to material Taxes, file any amended material Tax Return,
enter into any material closing agreement, settle or compromise any proceeding
with respect to any material Tax claim or assessment relating to the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries, surrender any right to claim a refund of material Taxes, or
consent to any extension or waiver of the limitation period applicable to any
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material Tax claim or assessment relating to the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries;

(xvi) modify in any material respect the Company Trading Guidelines,
other than modifications that are not less restrictive to the Company and its
Subsidiaries or permit the Net Company Position to be outside of the risk
parameters that are set forth in the Company Trading Guidelines, except for
waivers or exceptions granted or utilized consistent with the terms of the
Company Trading Guidelines after consultation with Purchaser;

(xvii) except for transactions between (x) the Company and its
Subsidiaries or (y) among the Company’s Subsidiaries, in each case in the
Company Ordinary Course of Business and that do not adversely affect the
Company or its Subsidiaries, redeem, repurchase, defease, cancel, prepay, forgive
or otherwise acquire any Indebtedness or any debt securities or rights to acquire
debt securities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, other than (A) at stated
maturity, (B) any required amortization payments and mandatory prepayments
and (C) Indebtedness arising under the agreements disclosed in Section 5.1(a) of
the Company Disclosure Schedule, in each case in accordance with the terms of
the instrument governing such Indebtedness as in effect on the date of this
Agreement (for the avoidance of doubt, to the extent that, after the date hereof and
prior to the Closing, Seller does not cause the Company to distribute all amounts
that it is permitted to distribute to Seller pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(iv) hereof,
Seller may cause the Company to pay to Seller or its Affiliates an amount equal to
such undistributed amount pursuant to the repayment of existing Indebtedness
owed by the Company to Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company and its
Subsidiaries));

(xviii) other than with respect to the Rate Cases, which are addressed in
Section 5.18 hereof, agree or consent to any material agreement or material
modifications of existing agreements or course of dealings with any
Governmental Authority in respect of the operations of their businesses, except
(w) as required by Law or applicable Governmental Orders, (x) to obtain or renew
the Governmental Authorizations, (y) agreements in the Company Ordinary
Course of Business consistent with past practice or (z) to effect the consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereby to the extent such agreements or
modifications are not reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate, to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect;

(xix) other than with respect to new Indebtedness permitted pursuant to
this Section 5.1(a), enter into, amend, modify, terminate (except as such
termination is required pursuant to Section 5.7 hereof) or waive any rights under
any Contract with (A) Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Company and
its Subsidiaries) or (B) with any executive officer or director, or (other than on
arm’s-length terms in the Company Ordinary Course of Business) any Person in
which such executive officer or director or any immediate family member of such
executive officer or director, has over a 10% intcrest;
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(xx) fail to maintain a reasonable level of working capital consistent
with past practice and “good utility practice”; or

(xxi) enter into a binding Contract to do any of the foregoing.

(b) Purchaser shall not knowingly or willfully take, or permit any of its
Affiliates to take, or omit to take, or permit any of its Affiliates to omit to take, any action (i) that
would, or is reasonably likely to, prevent or materially delay the consummation of, or materially
impair Purchaser’s ability to consummate, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or
(i1) that is intended or is reasonably likely to result in (x) any of the conditions set forth in
Article VII not being satisfied, or (y) a breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement by
Purchaser; provided that, to the extent Purchaser omits to grant any consent hereunder, or delays
or conditions such consent, which consent Purchaser may either grant in its sole discretion or, to
the extent such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, Purchaser is
reasonably withholding, conditioning or delaying such consent, then such omission shall not
constitute a breach of this Section 5.1(b).

(c) As soon as practicable after the date hereof, Purchaser and Seller shall
establish a joint transition committee (the “Transition Committee”) which shall be comprised of
three nominees of Purchaser and three nominees of Seller. Each of the members of the
Transition Committee may be removed, with or without cause, by the person appointing the
same. Vacancies shall be filled by the person appointing the member whose departure gives rise
to such vacancy. The Transition Committee shall be jointly chaired by a nominee of Purchaser
and a nominee of Seller and shall have the objective of facilitating and coordinating (including,
without limitation, obtaining the consents and approvals in respect of the Company and its
Subsidiaries contemplated by Section 5.2) the transactions contemplated in this Agreement,
integration planning, strategic development, developing recommendations concerning the
structure and the general operation of the Company subsequent to the Closing, in each case
subject to applicable Law and Governmental Orders. The Transition Committee shall meet
monthly or upon such other date or dates, and in such places, as Purchaser and Seller may agree
from time to time and may be convened by telephone, video conference or similar means. Any
decisions of the Transition Committee shall require the vote, by person or proxy, of a majority of
the members thereof, whether or not in attendance at the meeting in which such decision is made,
or the written consent of a majority of the members of such committee. The provisions of this
Section 5.1(c) are subject to the provisions of Section 5.1(e) and the compliance by the parties
with applicable Law and Governmental Orders and their other covenants set forth in this
Agreement.

(d) From the date hereof through the Closing, Seller shall cause the Company
and its Subsidiaries to deploy capital expenditures such that after taking into account the capital
expenditures made by the Company and its Subsidiaries from the Cut-Off Date through the date
hereof, the Company shall have made capital expenditures from the Cut-Off Date through
Closing in an aggregate amount equal to the aggregate of the amounts set forth in Section 5.1(d)
of the Company Disclosure Schedule (pro-rated for any quarterly period in which the Closing
occurs); provided that, such obligation shall be subject to (i) variation in an aggregate amount not
in excess of 7.5% of the aggregate of such amounts set forth in Section 5.1(d) of the Company
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Disclosure Schedule for the period from the Cut-Off Date through Closing and (ii) the Company
and its Subsidiaries continuing to operate in accordance with “good utility practice”.

(e) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give Purchaser, directly or
indirectly, any right to control or direct the Company’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ operations of
their respective businesses prior to the Closing. Prior to the Closing, each of Seller, the
Company and its Subsidiaries shall exercise, consistent with the other terms and conditions of
this Agreement, complete control and supervision over their respective businesses.

Section 5.2 Cooperation; Approvals and Consents; Notification. (a) Subject to
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, each of Seller and Purchaser shall cooperate
with the other and use (and shall cause its respective Affiliates to use) their respective reasonable
best efforts to take or cause to be taken all actions, and to do or cause to be done all things,
reasonably necessary, proper or advisable on its part under this Agreement and applicable Laws
and Governmental Orders to consummate as promptly as practicable the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, including (i) preparation and filing as promptly as practicable
of all documentation to effect all necessary notices, reports and other filings and to obtain as
promptly as practicable all consents, registrations, approvals, permits and authorizations
necessary or advisable to be obtained from or renewed with any third party and any
Governmental Authority (including the Company Required Regulatory Approvals and the
Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals), in each case in order to consummate as promptly as
practicable the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) furnishing as promptly as
practicable all information to any Governmental Authority as may be required by such
Governmental Authority in connection with the foregoing, including obtaining the Company
Required Regulatory Approvals and the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals and (iii)
obtaining any third party consents necessary to waive any change of control or similar provisions
in Contracts to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries are party.

(b) Subject to applicable Laws and Governmental Orders relating to the
exchange of information, Seller and Purchaser shall have the right to review in advance and, to
the extent practicable, consult with the other on, and consider in good faith the views of the other
in connection with, all of the information relating to Purchaser, Seller or the Company, as the
case may be, and any of their respective Affiliates, that appears in any filing made with, or
written materials submitted to, any third party and any Governmental Authority in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except that nothing contained herein shall
require either party hereto to provide to or share with the other party hereto (i) any copy of any
pre-merger notification and report form to be filed with any Government Antitrust Authority in
connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby; and (ii) proprietary and
competitively sensitive information that is not normally disclosed to third parties, except as is
essential to obtain the Company Required Regulatory Approvals and the Purchaser Required
Regulatory Approvals. In exercising the foregoing rights, each of Seller and Purchaser shall act
reasonably and as promptly as practicable. Seller and Purchaser each shall, upon request by the
other, subject to applicable Laws and Governmental Orders relating to the exchange of
information, furnish the other with all information concerning itself, its Affiliates, directors,
officers and shareholders and such other matters as may be reasonably necessary or advisable in
connection with the statement, filing, notice or application made by or on behalf of Purchaser,
Seller or the Company or any of their respective Affiliates to any third party or any
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Governmental Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
Subject to Section 5.18, but notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Agreement, Seller and its Affiliates shall not be required to make available or disclose to
Purchaser any information relating to regulatory or compliance matters involving Seller and its
Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) that does not arise from or relate to this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

(c) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, without
limiting the generality of the undertakings under this Section 5.2, each of Seller (in the case of
clause (i) of this Section 5.2(c) set forth below) and Purchaser (in all cases set forth in this
Section 5.2(c) below) shall:

(1) to the extent consistent with applicable Law and Governmental
Orders, promptly provide to each and every Governmental Authority with
jurisdiction over enforcement of any applicable antitrust or competition Laws
(each, a “Government Antitrust Authority”) such non-privileged information and
documents as may be requested by such Government Antitrust Authority or that
are necessary, proper or advisable to permit consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement;

(i)  to the extent consistent with applicable Law and Governmental
Orders, promptly use its reasonable best efforts to avoid the entry of any
permanent, preliminary or temporary injunction or other order, decree, decision,
determination or judgment that would delay, restrain, prevent, enjoin or otherwise
prohibit consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
including (A) taking all reasonable steps to conduct the defense through litigation
on the merits of any claim asserted in any court, agency or other proceeding by
any Person or entity, including any Government Antitrust Authority, seeking to
delay, restrain, prevent, enjoin or otherwise prohibit consummation of such
transactions and (B) the proffer and agreement by Purchaser of its willingness to
sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of, or hold separate pending such
disposition, and promptly effect the sale, lease, license, disposal and holding
separate of, such assets, rights, product lines, licenses, categories of assets or
businesses or other operations or interests therein, of the Purchaser or its
Subsidiaries (but excluding any assets, rights, product lines, licenses, categories of
assets or businesses or other operations or interests therein of the Company and its
Subsidiaries) and the entry into agreements with, and submission to orders of, the
relevant Government Antitrust Authority giving effect thereto if such action
should be reasonably necessary or advisable to avoid, prevent, eliminate or
remove the actual, anticipated or threatened (x) commencement of any proceeding
in any forum or (y) issuance of any order, decree, decision, determination or
judgment that would delay, restrain, prevent, enjoin or otherwise prohibit
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by any
Government Antitrust Authority; and

(iii)  to the extent consistent with applicable Law and Governmental
Orders, promptly use its reasonable best efforts to take, in the event that any
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permanent, preliminary or temporary injunction, decision, order, judgment,
determination or decree is entered or issued, or becomes reasonably foreseeable to
be entered or issued, in any proceeding or inquiry of any kind that would make
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance
with the terms hereof unlawful or that would delay, restrain, prevent, enjoin or
otherwise prohibit consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, any
and all steps (including the appeal thereof, the posting of a bond or the taking of
the steps contemplated by clause (ii) of this Section 5.2(c) above) necessary to
resist, vacate, modify, reverse, suspend, prevent, eliminate or remove such actual,
anticipated or threatened injunction, decision, order, judgment, determination or
decree so as to permit the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement on a schedule as close as possible to that contemplated by this
Agreement; provided that, nothing contained in this Section 5.2 shall require
Purchaser or its Affiliates to take, and the Company and its Subsidiaries shall not
take, any action in connection with obtaining the Company Required Regulatory
Approvals or Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals to the extent that the
closing condition set forth in Section 7.2(c) hereof will not be satisfied after the
taking of such action.

(d) Subject to applicable Laws and Governmental Orders, Seller and
Purchaser each shall keep the other apprised of the status of matters relating to completion of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including promptly furnishing the other with (i)
copies of notices or other communications received by it or any of its Affiliates, from any third
party or any Governmental Authority with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and (i1) any understanding, undertaking or agreement (whether oral or written) that it
or any of its Affiliates proposes to make or enter into with any Governmental Authority with
respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Subject to applicable Laws and
Governmental Orders, and to the extent reasonably practicable, neither Seller nor Purchaser shall
permit any of its officers or any other representatives or agents to participate in any meeting with
any Governmental Authority in respect of any filings, investigation or other inquiry relating to
the transactions contemplated this Agreement, unless it consults with the other in advance and, to
the extent permitted by such Governmental Authority, gives the other the opportunity to attend
and participate thereat.

(e) From the date hereof until the Closing Date, each of Seller and Purchaser
shall promptly notify the other of any change or fact of which it is aware that will or is
reasonably expected to result in any of the conditions set forth in Article VII becoming incapable
of being satisfied.

Section 5.3 Access; Confidentiality. (a) Subject to applicable Law and
Governmental Orders, Seller shall, and shall cause the Company and each of its Subsidiaries to,
during the period from and after the date hereof until the Closing, upon reasonable advance
notice, (i) afford Purchaser and its authorized directors, officers, employees, accountants,
counsel, investment bankers and consultants (collectively, “Representatives”) reasonable access,
during normal business hours, in the presence of at least one (1) Representative of Parent, to the
employees, properties, books and records (with respect to income Tax records, only to the extent
directly related to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries), Contracts and other documents of the
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Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) furnish to Purchaser such financial and operating data
and other information relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries and, to the extent the
Company has such data or other information, the Company Joint Ventures, as Purchaser may
reasonably request, and (iii) instruct the appropriate Company Employees to cooperate
reasonably with Purchaser and its Representatives in connection with the foregoing; provided,
however, that, in each case, such access, furnishing of information and cooperation shall not (w)
unreasonably disrupt the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ operations, (x) require the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries to permit any inspection or to disclose any information that in the
reasonable judgment of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as applicable, would result in the
disclosure of any trade secrets or violate any of its obligations or policies with respect to
confidentiality, (y) require the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to disclose any privileged
information of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or (z) require Seller or any of its Affiliates
(including the Company and its Subsidiaries) to disclose any proprietary information of or
regarding Parent or its Affiliates (excluding the Company or any of its Subsidiaries). All
requests for information made pursuant to this Section 5.3(a) shall be directed to the General
Counsel of Parent or such other Persons designated by Seller in writing. All such information
shall be governed by the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement. Purchaser shall not, and shall
cause its Representatives not to, use any information obtained pursuant to this Section 5.3(a) (as
well as any other information provided to Purchaser or any of its Representatives by or on behalf
of Parent, Seller, the Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries prior to the date hereof) for any
purpose unrelated to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. To the extent
that Seller or any of its Affiliates incurs any incremental out-of-pocket costs in processing,
retrieving or transmitting any such information pursuant to this Section 5.3(a), Purchaser shall
reimburse Seller and such Affiliate for the reasonable out-of-pocket costs thereof (including
attorneys’ fees, but excluding reimbursement for general overhead, salaries and employee
benefits) promptly upon submission to Purchaser of an invoice therefor accompanied by
reasonable supporting documentation.

(b) From and after the Closing, Purchaser shall and shall cause its
Representatives to, upon reasonable notice, (i) furnish to Seller and its Representatives such
financial, tax and operating data and other information relating to the Company and its
Subsidiaries (including the Company Books and Records and information in connection with the
filing of Tax Returns in respect of the Tax Package or other required regulatory or other filings,
responses or reports and information relating to any Action or as required by any Law or
Governmental Order) and (ii) make available to Seller and its Representatives the directors,
officers and employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries as Seller may reasonably request to
cooperate with Seller in connection with the foregoing. After the Closing, Purchaser shall cause
the Company and its Subsidiaries to preserve such information and the Company Books and
Records for at least the later of ten (10) years after the Closing Date and the expiration of the
applicable statute of limitations with respect to Taxes for items included in the Company Books
and Records.

Section 5.4  Public Announcements. Seller and Purchaser shall consult and
coordinate with each other with respect to their and any of their respective Affiliates’ respective
initial press release regarding the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and thereafter
until the Closing, no press release or other public announcement in respect of this Agreement or
the transactions contemplated hereby shall be issued or made by any party hereto or any of such
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party’s Affiliates or Representatives without the prior written consent of the other party hereto
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), except, in each case,
for any such press release or other public announcement as Seller or Purchaser, as applicable,
may determine in good faith is required to be issued or made by it or any of its Affiliates by
applicable Law or Governmental Order, in which case Seller or Purchaser, as applicable, shall
use its commercially reasonable efforts to allow the other reasonable time to comment on such
press release or other public announcement in advance of such issuance or making; provided,
however, that Seller and its Affiliates and Purchaser and its Affiliates may make internal
announcements regarding this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby to their
respective directors, officers and employees.

Section 5.5  Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnification and Insurance. (a) Fora
period of six (6) years from and after the Closing Date, Purchaser shall cause the Company and
its Subsidiaries to continue all rights to indemnification, advancement of expenses and
exculpation from liabilities for acts or omissions that have occurred or will occur at or prior to
the Closing now existing in favor of the current or former directors and officers of the Company
and any of its Subsidiaries as provided in the Organizational Documents of the Company and its
Subsidiaries or any Contract between any of such directors or officers and the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries (solely to the extent such Contracts have been provided to Purchaser prior to
the date hereof), as applicable, in each case, as in effect on the date hereof.

(b) Prior to the Closing, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall, and, if the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is unable to, Purchaser shall cause the Company and any of
its Subsidiaries, as applicable, as of the Closing to, obtain and fully pay for “tail” insurance
policies with a claims reporting or discovery period of at least six (6) years from and after the
Closing Date from an insurance carrier with the same or better credit rating as the Company’s
and its Subsidiaries’ current insurance carriers (including coverage provided through Seller’s
Affiliates) with respect to directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and fiduciary liability
insurance (collectively, “D&O Insurance”) with benefits and levels of coverage at least as
favorable as the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ existing policies (including coverage provided
through Seller’s Affiliates) with respect to matters existing or occurring at or prior to the Closing
(including in connection with this Agreement and the transactions and actions contemplated
hereby). If the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for any reason fails to obtain such “tail”
insurance policies as of the Closing, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall, and Purchaser shall
cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to use reasonable best efforts to purchase comparable
D&O Insurance for a period of at least six (6) years from and after the Closing Date with benefits
and levels of coverage at least as favorable as provided in the Company’s and its Subsidiaries
existing policies (including coverage provided through Seller’s Affiliates) as of the date of this
Agreement; provided, however, that in no event shall Purchaser, the Company or any of the
Company’s Subsidiaries be required to expend for such policies, or any “tail” insurance policy
obtained pursuant to this Section 5.5(b), an annual premium amount in excess of $6 million.

() In the event that the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their
respective successors or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person and is not
the continuing or surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers
or conveys all or substantially all of its properties or other assets to any Person, then, and in each
such case, Purchaser shall cause proper provision to be made so that the successors and assigns
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of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, shall expressly assume the
obligations set forth in this Section 5.5.

(d) The provisions of this Section 5.5 are intended to be for the benefit of, and
will be enforceable by, each indemnified party, his or her heirs and representatives and are in
addition to, and not in substitution for, any other rights to indemnification or contribution that
any such Person may have by Contract or otherwise.

Section 5.6  Employee Benefits. (a) Purchaser agrees that during the period
beginning on the Closing Date and ending on the second anniversary of the Closing Date,
Purchaser shall, or shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to, provide (i) each of the then
current Company Employees (other than such employees covered by collective bargaining
agreements) who continue to be employed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (the
“Subject Employees™) with (A) annual cash compensation (which includes base salary or wage
rate, annual cash bonus opportunities and cash-based long-term incentive compensation
opportunities) that is materially no less favorable, in the aggregate, than the annual cash
compensation provided to each such Subject Employee immediately prior to the Closing Date
and (B) severance benefits that are no less favorable than those provided to each such Subject
Employee immediately prior to the Closing Date under the arrangements listed on Section 5.6(a)
of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and (ii) pension and welfare benefits that are materially no
less favorable in the aggregate than the benefits generally provided to Subject Employees
immediately prior to the Closing Date.

(b) Purchaser shall: (i) waive any preexisting condition limitations otherwise
applicable to Company Employees and their eligible dependents under any plan of Purchaser or
any of its Affiliates that provides health benefits in which such employees may be eligible to
participate following the Closing, other than any limitations that were in effect with respect to
such employees as of the Closing under any analogous Benefit Plan, (ii) honor any deductible,
co-payment and out-of-pocket maximums incurred by any Company Employee and his or her
eligible dependents under the health plans in which they participated immediately prior to the
Closing during the portion of the calendar year prior to the Closing in satisfying any deductibles,
co-payments or out-of-pocket maximums under health plans of Purchaser or its Affiliates in
which they are eligible to participate after the Closing in the same plan year in which such
deductibles, co-payments or out-of-pocket maximums were incurred and (i11) waive any waiting
period limitation or evidence of insurability requirement that would otherwise be applicable to
any Company Employee and his or her eligible dependents on or after the Closing, in each case
to the extent such employee of the Company and any of its Subsidiaries or eligible dependent
had satisfied any similar limitation or requirement under any analogous Benefit Plan prior to the
Closing.

(c) Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to honor
the terms of all Company Benefit Plans existing as of immediately prior to the Closing and
disclosed to Purchaser, provided, however, that nothing in this Section 5.6 shall prohibit
Purchaser from amending or terminating any particular Benefit Plan, arrangement, or agreement
in accordance with its terms as in effect from time to time. Except as otherwise required by
applicable Law, the participation of all Company Employees and their respective eligible
dependents under any Seller Benefit Plan shall terminate effective immediately prior to the

47

NY12528:449947.10A



Closing, provided that, except as set forth in Section 5.6(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule,
Seller shall remain responsible for any amounts under the Seller Benefit Plans that are vested and
accrued as of the Closing Date.

(d)  Purchaser shall (and shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to),
after the Closing, give credit for all service of each Company Employee with the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective predecessors under all Company Benefit Plans
and all employee benefit plans, agreements, programs, policies and arrangements of Purchaser
and its Affiliates (each, a “Purchaser Benefit Plan”) (including under newly established plans of
the Company and its Subsidiaries) to the same extent as such service was credited for such
purpose by Seller or its Affiliates, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under each Benefit
Plan in which such Company Employees are eligible to participate for purposes of eligibility,
vesting and benefit accrual, except that, with respect to benefit accrual, such service shall not be
given credit to the extent that it would result in a duplication of benefits and shall not be required
to be given credit for purposes of benefit accrual under any Purchaser Benefit Plan that is a
defined benefit pension plan.

(e) After the date hereof and through the Closing, Purchaser and the Company
and each of its Subsidiaries shall cooperate in good faith to determine whether to, effective as of
the Closing, maintain, or terminate and replace the benefits provided by, any and all Benefit
Plans intended to include a Code Section 401(k) arrangement (each a “401(k) Plan”), provided
that neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries shall be required, without its consent, to
terminate any of its 401(k) Plans.

3 Subject to Section 409A of the Code, for each Benefit Plan set forth in
Section 5.6(f) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Purchaser hereby agrees that a “change
of control” or “change in control” within the meaning of each such Benefit Plan (or an event of
similar effect under the terms of such Benefit Plan) will occur upon the Closing Date.

(g)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained herein shall (1) be
treated as an amendment of any particular Benefit Plan, (2) give any third party any right to
enforce the provisions of this Section 5.6 or (3) obligate Purchaser or any of its Affiliates to
(A) maintain any particular benefit plan or (B) retain the employment of any particular
employee. The provisions of this Section 5.6 are solely for the benefit of the respective parties to
this Agreement and nothing in this Section 5.6, express or implied, shall confer upon any
Company Employee, or legal representative, or beneficiary thereof, any rights or remedies,
including any right to employment or continued employment for any specified period, or
compensation or benefits of any nature or kind whatsoever under this Agreement.

(h)  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the terms and conditions
of employment for any Company Employee who is represented for purposes of collective
bargaining by any labor organization pursuant to a certification by the National Labor Relations
Board or a lawful recognition of such labor organization by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries shall be in accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of such collective
bargaining agreements and applicable law. Furthermore, the foregoing provisions of this Section
5.6 shall be subject to Seller’s statutory obligation to give notice to and engage in effects
bargaining, upon request, with labor organizations that represent certain Company Employees.

48

NY 12528:449947.10A



Section 5.7  Intercompany ltems.

(a) At the Closing, in addition to the Closing Day Payment to be paid
pursuant to Section 2.3(b), (i) Purchaser shall make available to the Company and its
Subsidiaries an amount of immediately available funds sufficient to permit the Company and its
Subsidiaries to repay the aggregate principal amount of the Indebtedness owed to Affiliates of
the Seller (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) outstanding as of the Closing Date and
accrued and unpaid interest incurred thereon, which Indebtedness shall include the amount of
any “make-whole” premium due and payable in accordance with the terms of such borrowings
upon prepayment thereof and that are unpaid (the “Affiliate Indebtedness”) and (ii) Seller shall
cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to pay in immediately available funds such amounts to,
or as directed by, the Subsidiaries of Parent to which such amounts are owed upon repayment of
the applicable borrowings; provided that an amount equal to the aggregate amount required to be
paid pursuant to this Section 5.7(a) is fully reflected in the calculation of Closing Indebtedness
pursuant to Section 2.3. After such payments are made, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall
have no further Liabilities with respect to the Affiliate Indebtedness. Except as set forth in
Section 5.7(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, Seller shall not, and shall cause its
Affiliates not to, cause or agree to any amendment to the terms of instruments governing the
Affiliate Indebtedness and, other than accrued interest accruing pursuant to normally recurring
regularly scheduled interest payments payable pursuant to the terms thereof, shall not increase
the interest rates, make-whole premiums, prepayments penalties or other similar provisions
relating thereto.

(b)  Except with respect to the Affiliate Indebtedness, which is addressed in
Section 5.7(a) hereof, all agreements between Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company
and its Subsidiaries) on the one hand and the Company and its Subsidiaries on the other hand,
shall be terminated as of Closing. Within twenty (20) calendar days after the last day of the
calendar month in which the Closing occurs, (i) Seller shall pay and cause its Affiliates (other
than the Company or its Subsidiaries) to pay to the Company and its Subsidiaries an amount in
cash equal to all Liabilities that Parent or such Subsidiaries have to the Company or its
Subsidiaries to the extent such Liability would be reflected as an asset (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding any deferred tax asset) on a consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of
the Closing Date prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently applied (an “Intercompany
Items Balance Sheet”) and (ii) Purchaser shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to pay to
Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) an amount in cash equal to
all Liabilities (other than the Liabilities set forth in Section 5.7(a) and, for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding any deferred tax liability) that the Company and its Subsidiaries have to Seller
or such Affiliates to the extent such Liability would be reflected as a liability on an Intercompany
Items Balance Sheet. Upon receipt of the payments set forth in the immediately preceding
sentence, all such obligations and Liabilities shall be discharged and released, except that the
agreements listed in Section 5.7(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, if any, shall remain in
full force and effect. Seller hereby agrees that the amounts payable by the Company and its
Subsidiaries pursuant to this Section 5.7(b) shall not exceed $4 million.

Section 5.8 Intellectual Property. (a) Following the Closing Date, Purchaser
will not, and Purchaser will cause the Company and its Subsidiaries and their respective
Affiliates not to, register, attempt to register, or use, except to the extent permitted pursuant to
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Section 5.8(b) of this Agreement, in any fashion, inchiding in signage, corporate letterhead,
business cards, Internet web sites, advertising materials, marketing brochures or other content in
connection with any products or services anywhere in the world in any medium, any trademark,
service mark, domain name, corporate name, trade name or other indicia of origin that is
registered with any Governmental Authority to Seller or its Affiliates (other than LG&E and KU)
as of the date hereof, or that is confusingly similar thereto (collectively, the “Seller Marks”).

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seller hereby
grants to Purchaser and the Company, effective as of the Closing Date, a non-exclusive, limited,
non-transferable right and license (“License”) to use and display the Seller Marks used in the
businesses of the Company as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date on any materials that
prior to Closing included any Seller Marks, including signage, advertising, promotional
materials, electronic materials, collateral goods, stationery, business cards, web sites, email
addresses, invoices, receipts, forms, product, training and service literature and materials and
other materials (“Materials”). The term of the License shall commence on the Closing Date and
shall continue for four (4) months following the Closing Date. Except as set forth above in this
Section 5.8(b), Purchaser shall not, and Purchaser will cause each of the Company and its
Subsidiaries and their respective Affiliates not to, hold itself out as having any affiliation with
Seller or any Affiliates of Seller; provided, however, that Purchaser may make reference to the
historical ownership of the Company. Purchaser agrees that any use of the Seller Marks by
Purchaser will be, and Purchaser will cause any use of the Seller Marks by the Company and its
Subsidiaries and their respective Affiliates to be, in a manner and form: (a) designed to maintain
the high quality of the Seller Marks that is consistent with the prior use of the Seller Marks and
(b) that complies with all applicable Laws. Upon Seller’s request, Purchaser will explain and
provide samples of its use of the Seller Marks for Seller to verify compliance with the foregoing.

(c) For the avoidance of doubt, nothing herein shall restrict the Company and
its Subsidiaries and their respective Affiliates from using the names set forth in Section 5.8(c) of
the Company Disclosure Schedule in any name of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
Except as otherwise expressly permitted in writing by Seller, Purchaser will cause, as soon as
practicable (but in no event more than three (3) months following the Closing Date), the
corporate names of the Company and its Subsidiaries to be changed to a name that does not
contain any of the Seller Marks. Furthermore, the parties will cause, as soon as practicable (but
in no event more than thirty (30) days following the Closing Date), any hypertext links to
Internet web sites operated by or at the direction of Seller or any of its Affiliates and any other
use of Seller Marks to be removed from any Internet web sites operated by or at the direction of
the Company and its Subsidiaries. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Section 5.8 will
preclude any references to the Seller Marks that are required by Law or that constitute “fair use”
under applicable Law.

Section 5.9  Seller Cure. If the condition to closing in Section 7.2(a) (as a
result of the breach or inaccuracy of the representation and warranty in Section 3.8(b)) or 7.2(c)
is not fulfilled at Closing, Seller (at its sole cost and expense) may, but shall not be required to,
make such payments to the Company to promptly cure such inaccuracy or breach; provided that
such payment, in Purchaser’s reasonable judgment, cures the matter that gave rise to such breach
or inaccuracy.

50

NY12528:449947.10A



Section 5.10 Payment of Certain Amounts by Seller. Whenever Seller has the
right or obligation to make a payment to the Company in connection with curing any violations
or breaches of this Agreement, in lieu of such payment to the Company, with Purchaser’s prior
written consent, Seller shall have the option of causing the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to
cure such violations or breaches at their expense by paying such amount, in which case an
amount equal to the payment that Seller would have otherwise had the obligation or right to
make, shall be deducted from the Base Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.2.

Section 5.11 Additional Matters. Following the Closing, the Company’s
headquarters shall continue to be located in Louisville, Kentucky for a period of at least 15 years.

Section 5.12 Non-Solicitation. (a) For the period commencing on the Closing
Date and expiring on the first anniversary of the Closing Date, neither Seller nor any of its
Affiliates shall directly or indirectly, without obtaining the prior written consent of Purchaser, (1)
induce, encourage or solicit any Company Employee who is at the senior management level to
leave such employment or to accept any other position or employment with Seller, any of its
Affiliates or any other Person or (ii) hire or assist any other Person in hiring any Company
Employee who is at the senior management level; provided, however, that the foregoing clauses
(1) and (ii) of this Section 5.12(a) shall not apply to any Company Employee who has left the
employment of Purchaser and its Affiliates and shall not prohibit general solicitations by Seller
or any of its Affiliates for employment through advertisements or other means.

(b) Other than with respect to the Company Employees, for the period
commencing on the date hereof and expiring on the first anniversary of the Closing Date, neither
Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates shall directly or indirectly, without obtaining the prior written
consent of Seller, (i) induce, encourage or solicit any employee of Seller or any of its Affiliates
who is at the senior management level and has been involved in the negotiation of the
transactions contemplated hereby to leave such employment or to accept any other position or
employment with Purchaser, any of its Affiliates or any other Person, so long as such employee
is employed by Seller or any of its Affiliates, or (ii) hire or assist any other Person in hiring any
such employee; provided, however, that the foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) of this Section 5.12(b)
shall not apply to employees who have left the employment of Seller and its Affiliates and shall
not prohibit general solicitations by Purchaser or any of its Affiliates for employment through
advertisements or other means.

Section 5.13  Financing. (a) Purchaser shall use its reasonable best efforts to
take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper
or advisable to arrange the Debt Financing on the terms and conditions, including the flex
provisions, described in the Debt Financing Commitments (provided that Purchaser may amend
the Debt Financing Commitment to add lenders, lead arrangers, bookrunners, syndication agents
or similar entities which had not executed the Debt Financing Commitment as of the date hereof,
or otherwise so long as such amendment does not (x) reduce the aggregate amount of the
committed financing (including by changing the amount of fees to be paid or original issue
discount) from that contemplated in the Debt Financing Commitment, or (y) impose new or
additional conditions or otherwise expand, amend or modify any of the conditions to the receipt
of the Debt Financing or (z) amend other terms in the case of this clause (z) in a manner that
would otherwise adversely impact the ability of Purchaser to timely consummate the
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transactions contemplated hereby or the likelihood of consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby and Purchaser provides Parent promptly after any such amendment with a
copy thereof), including using its reasonable best efforts to (i) maintain in effect the Debt
Financing Commitments, (ii) satisfy on a timely basis all conditions applicable to Purchaser to
obtaining the Debt Financing set forth in the Debt Financing Commitments that are within its
control, (iii) enter into definitive agreements with respect thereto on the terms and conditions
(including the flex provisions) contemplated by the Debt Financing Commitments or on other
terms reasonably acceptable to Purchaser that would not (x) reduce the aggregate amount of the
committed financing (including by changing the amount of fees to be paid or original issue
discount) from that contemplated in the Debt Financing Commitment, or (y) impose new or
additional conditions or otherwise expand, amend or modify any of the conditions to the receipt
of the Debt Financing or (z) amend other terms in the case of this clause (z) in a manner that
would otherwise adversely impact the ability of Purchaser to timely consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby or the likelihood of consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, (iv) enforce the obligations of the lenders under the Debt Financing
Commitments and (v) subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth herein
(excluding conditions that by their terms cannot be satisfied until the Closing Date, but subject to
the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions), consummate the Debt Financing at or prior to the
Closing, to the extent that the proceeds of the Debt Financing are necessary to finance the
transactions contemplated hereby. If any portion of the Debt Financing becomes unavailable on
the terms and conditions contemplated in the Debt Financing Commitments, Purchaser shall use
its reasonable best efforts to arrange to obtain alternative financing from alternative sources (on
terms and conditions that in the aggregate are not materially less favorable to Purchaser, taking
into account the flex provisions) in an amount sufficient to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as practicable following the occurrence of such
event. Purchaser shall give Seller prompt notice of any material breach by any party to the Debt
Financing Commitments, of which Purchaser becomes aware, or any termination of the Debt
Financing Commitments, to the extent Purchaser becomes aware of such termination. Purchaser
shall keep Seller informed on a reasonably current basis of the status of its efforts to arrange the
Debt Financing and provide copies of all documents related to the Debt Financing to Seller. In
furtherance of the foregoing, Purchaser agrees that it shall use its reasonable best efforts to enter
into definitive agreements with respect to the Debt Financing as contemplated by clause (a)(iii)
above not later than 45 calendar days after the date of this Agreement and that any failure to do
so shall be a material breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein, in no event shall Purchaser be required pursuant to this Agreement to agree to
pay to the lenders providing the Debt Financing, any material additional fees or to materially
increase any interest rates applicable to the Debt Financing, except as expressly required
pursuant to the Debt Financing Commitments (including the flex provisions) in existence as of
the date hereof.

(b)  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement is not conditional upon the receipt by Purchaser of
the proceeds of the Debt Financing Commitments and that any failure by Purchaser to have
available the funds necessary to consummate the Purchase at Closing shall constitute a material
breach by Purchaser of this Agreement.
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(c) Seller shall, and shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries, and its, and
their respective, officers, employees and advisors, including legal and accounting advisors, to
provide to Purchaser all cooperation reasonably requested by Purchaser in order for Purchaser to
complete the Debt Financing or any Alternative Permanent Financing as of the Closing and that
is customary in connection with a financing comparable to the Debt Financing and equity or debt
securities offerings (including, without limitation, first mortgage bonds) to the public including:
(1) furnishing the Purchaser (by a date that is not later than 60 days after the end of any fiscal
quarter after the date hereof that is not a fiscal year end, in respect of unaudited quarterly
financial statements required pursuant to this Section 5.13(c), 40 days after the date hereof in the
case of the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2010, or 90 days after December 31, 2010 in respect
of audited annual financial statements required pursuant to this Section 5.13(c), as applicable)
with: (A) the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Company and separately the audited
unconsolidated balance sheets of KU and LG&E as of December 31, 2010 to the extent that the
Closing has not occurred prior to March 30, 2011), and the related audited statements of income
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes and schedules thereto, (B) the unaudited
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and separately the unaudited unconsolidated balance
sheets of KU and LG&E as of March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2009 (and as of the end of any
subsequent quarterly period that is not a fiscal year end ended no less than 60 days prior to the
Closing Date along with the corresponding financial statements for the same period in the
immediately prior year) and the related unaudited statements of income and cash flows, which
shall have been reviewed by the Company’s accountants as provided in SAS 100, and (C) all
financial information related to the Company and its Subsidiaries reasonably required by
Purchaser for Purchaser to produce the pro forma financial statements required under SEC
Regulation S-X for equity or debt securities offerings of Purchaser to the public and specified in
writing by Purchaser to Seller not later than 20 days after the date hereof (information required to
be delivered pursuant to this clause (i) being referred to as, the “Required Information™);

(ii) participating in a reasonable and limited number of meetings, presentations, due diligence
sessions, drafting sessions and sessions with prospective lenders, investors and rating agencies in
connection with the Debt Financing and any Alternative Permanent Financing; (iii) assisting with
the preparation of materials for rating agency presentations, bank information memoranda,
offering circulars, prospectuses and prospectus supplements and similar documents required in
connection with the Debt Financing and any Alternative Permanent Financing (including
requesting any consents of accountants for use of their reports in any materials relating to the
Debt Financing and any Alternative Permanent Financing and the delivery of comfort letters and
customary representation letters); (iv) facilitating the pledging of collateral in connection with
any Alternative Permanent Financing in the form of an issuance of first mortgage bonds by the
Company’s Subsidiaries, including, executing and delivering any customary pledge and security
documents, currency or interest hedging arrangements or other definitive financing documents or
other certificates, legal opinions, surveys and title insurance (including non-imputation title
policy endorsements and affidavits reasonably required by the title company) and documents as
may be reasonably requested by Purchaser or otherwise facilitating the pledging of collateral
from and after the Closing as may be reasonably requested by Purchaser (provided that any
obligations contained in such documents shall be effective no earlier than as of the Closing),

(v) causing the taking of corporate actions (subject to the occurrence of the Closing) by the
Company and its Subsidiaries reasonably necessary to permit the completion of the Debt
Financing and any Alternative Permanent Financing, (vi) facilitating the execution and delivery
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(at the Closing) of definitive documents related to the Debt Financing and any Alternative
Permanent Financing (including mortgage indentures at KU and LG&E); and (vii) providing
such other financial and other information regarding the Company and its Subsidiaries as is
reasonably necessary for Purchaser to effect the Debt Financing or any Alternative Permanent
Financing; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 5.13(c) shall require any cooperation
to the extent that it would unreasonably interfere in any material respect with the business or
operations of Seller or its Affiliates, including the Company and its Subsidiaries. Purchaser shall
promptly, upon request by Seller, reimburse Seller for all costs and expenses (including
attorneys’ fees) incurred by Seller or its Affiliates, including the Company and its Subsidiaries,
in connection with the cooperation contemplated by this Section 5.13(c). Purchaser shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Seller Indemnified Parties from and against any and all
Losses actually suffered or incurred by any of the Seller Indemnified Parties, to the extent arising
out of any action taken by a Seller Indemnified Party at the request of Purchaser pursuant to this
Section 5.13(c) or in connection with the arrangement of the Debt Financing or any Alternative
Permanent Financing or any information utilized in connection therewith (other than information
with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries provided to Purchaser in writing by Seller, the
Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries expressly for use in connection with offering
documents or prospectuses for the Debt Financing or Alternative Permanent Financing), and this
indemnification shall survive termination of this Agreement and such Seller Indemnified Parties
shall be third party beneficiaries of this sentence. Seller, the Company and its Subsidiaries
hereby consent to the reasonable use of the Company and its Subsidiaries’ logos in connection
with the Debt Financing and any Alternative Permanent Financing, provided that such logos are
used in a manner that is not intended to harm or disparage Seller or its Affiliates, including the
Company and its Subsidiaries, or their marks and on such other customary terms and conditions
as Seller shall reasonably impose. Purchaser agrees that any breach of this Section 5.13(c), other
than the provision of the Required Information, shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement
that gives rise to or contributes to any failure of a condition set forth in Article VII; provided
that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the parties agree that any claim
by Purchaser resulting from a breach by Seller of this Section 5.13(c) shall survive the Closing or
the earlier termination of this Agreement. Purchaser agrees that this Agreement shall not
obligate the Company or its Subsidiaries to issue any securities or make any borrowings prior to
Closing.

Section 5.14 Regulatory Commitments. Seller and Purchaser agree (a) that the
applications submitted to the State Commissions with respect to the Purchase shall include the
information concerning the Purchase, the Company and its Subsidiaries, Seller and Purchaser
required by applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the Commonwealth of Virginia
and the State of Tennessee, as the case may be, (b) that such applications and any amendments or
supplements thereto shall include the commitments and agreements set forth in Exhibit B hereto
to the extent applicable to such jurisdictions and such additional agreements or commitments as
Seller and Purchaser agree are advisable to obtain prompt approval of such applications, and (c)
that neither Seller nor Purchaser shall agree to, or accept, any additional or different agreements,
commitments or conditions in connection with the Purchase pursuant to any settlement or
otherwise with the State Commissions or any other Person without the prior written consent of
the other party hereto, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
Purchaser further agrees that, subject to obtaining the consent of Seller as required by this
Section 5.14, it will agree to, or accept, any additional or different agreements, commitments or
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conditions reasonably necessary, proper or advisable to obtain any Governmental Authorizations
necessary to promptly consummate the Purchase, including any Company Required Regulatory
Approvals or any Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals, except to the extent that any such
agreements, commitments or conditions, individually or in the aggregate, would cause the
condition set forth in Section 7.2(c) to fail to be satisfied.

Section 5.15 Competing Transactions. Purchaser agrees that it shall not, and
shall not permit any of its Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, acquire or agree to acquire, whether
by merger, consolidation, purchasing a substantial portion of the assets of or equity in or by any
other manner, any assets, business or any Person, if the entering into of a definitive agreement
relating to or the consummation of such acquisition, merger, consolidation or purchase could
reasonably be expected to (w) impose any delay (other than in an immaterial respect) in the
expiration or termination of any applicable waiting period or impose any delay (other than in an
immaterial respect) in the obtaining of, or increase the risk of not obtaining, any Governmental
Authorizations necessary to consummate the Purchase, including any Company Required
Regulatory Approvals or any Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals, (x) increase the risk of
any Governmental Authority entering a Prohibitive Order, (y) increase the risk of not being able
to remove any such Prohibitive Order on appeal or otherwise or (z) other than in an immaterial
respect, delay or impede the consummation of the Purchase.

Section 5.16 Loss of Property. In the event that between the date of this
Agreement and the Closing Date, (i) any assets (other than immaterial assets) expected to be
owned by the Company and its Subsidiaries on the Closing Date have suffered property damage
(ordinary wear and tear excepted) or are subject to eminent domain or condemnation
proceedings, or (ii) are lost, in each of clauses (i) and (ii) other than in the Company Ordinary
Course of Business, Seller shall notify Purchaser reasonably promptly in writing upon it
becoming aware of such event. Seller shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, either (i) prior to the
Closing, use any insurance recoveries or other proceeds actually received by Seller or its
Affiliates in respect of such damage, regardless of materiality, by property damage, eminent
domain, condemnation proceedings or loss to repair, rebuild or replace the portion of the assets
damaged or lost prior to the Closing, or (ii) (x) to the extent of any insurance recoveries or other
proceeds actually received prior to the Closing and not used to repair, rebuild or replace such
portion of assets, hold such insurance recoveries or other proceeds in trust for the Purchaser and,
at the Closing, assign all of Seller’s or Seller’s Affiliates’, as applicable, right, title, and interest
in and to such insurance recoveries or other proceeds to Purchaser in compensation for such
damage or loss, or (y) to the extent of any insurance recoveries or other proceeds yet to be
received, use its reasonable best efforts to diligently pursue any and all claims related thereto and
assign all of Seller’s or Seller’s Affiliates’, as applicable, right, title, and interest to receive and
collect such insurance recoveries or other proceeds upon payment thereof; provided, however,
that Purchaser shall reimburse Seller for Seller’s costs and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
using its reasonable best efforts in pursuing such claims. For the avoidance of doubt,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Section 5.16 shall survive the
Closing solely to the extent any such lost or damaged assets exist, and then only until the
applicable insurance recoveries or other claim proceeds are received or denied.

Section 5.17  Further Assurances. Seller and Purchaser, subject to the provisions
of this Agreement, (i) shall execute and deliver, or shall cause to be executed and delivered, such
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documents and other instruments and shall take, or shall cause to be taken, such further actions
as may be reasonably required to carry out such party’s obligations under this Agreement and
give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and (ii) shall refrain from taking
any actions that could reasonably be expected to impair, delay or impede the Closing.

Section 5.18 Rate Cases. Between the date of this Agreement and the Closing,
Seller hereby agrees to cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to continue to diligently pursue
the Rate Cases consistent with past practice, and to the extent permitted by Law and
Governmental Order, notify Purchaser about any material developments, or material
communications with FERC or the State Commissions, relating thereto. Except as required by
Section 5.14 and Exhibit B, prior to making any commitments or settlement offers in the Rate
Cases, Seller shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to consult with Purchaser and to
consider in good faith any suggestions made by Purchaser in connection therewith. Seller shall
not permit the Company or its Subsidiaries to settle the Rate Cases without the prior written
consent of Purchaser (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) to
the extent that such settlement would result in an outcome for the Company and its Subsidiaries
that would be materially adverse to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, taking into account
the requests made by the Company and its Subsidiaries in the proceeding, the resolution of
similar recent proceedings under similar circumstances in the utility industry and the reasonable
expectations of Purchaser as of the date hereof for such outcome.

Section 5.19 Insurance. (a) Except as set forth in this Section 5.19, coverage of
the Company and its Subsidiaries or any of their respective businesses, operations, personnel and
other risks attributable to them under all insurance policies of Seller and its Affiliates (other than
the Company and its Subsidiaries) shall cease as of the Closing Date.

(b) To the extent that prior to the date hereof Seller and/or its Affiliates (other
than the Company and its Subsidiaries) retained in effect policies of insurance that covered the
business, assets and operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries, then Seller shall, or shall
cause its Affiliates to, maintain such insurance in effect for a period of one year following the
Closing Date (subject to the terms of those policies) for the Company and its Subsidiaries (the
“Seller Insurance”) for liabilities, costs or damages relating to any event occurring prior to the
Closing Date (but not occurring after the Closing Date), and upon the request of Purchaser,
Seller shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to assert any and all claims for payment made
by the Company at the request of Purchaser under the Seller Insurance (any such request to be
made no later than the first anniversary of the Closing Date) (“Pre-Closing Claims™); provided
that nothing herein shall require Seller and/or its Affiliates (other than the Company and its
Subsidiaries) to maintain or preserve in effect any policies of insurance which it does not
otherwise maintain or preserve in effect for entities other than the Company and its Subsidiaries
or for its business other than the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries. Any Pre-Closing
Claim shall be processed by Seller and/or its Affiliates in the same manner and shall be given the
same priority relative to other claims as if such claim had been made by Seller or one of its
Affiliates. Seller (or its designee) will reasonably promptly remit to the Company any and all
amounts recovered pursuant to Seller Insurance for any Pre-Closing Claim. The Company shall
provide all assistance and information reasonably requested by Seller in connection with
processing Pre-Closing Claims and providing information to its insurance underwriters, in each
case in a manner consistent with the practices of Seller and the Company prior to the date hereof
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and Seller shall consult with the Company, and keep the Company reasonably informed with
respect to, any of the foregoing. Seller shall coordinate with the Company to provide such
information relating to the Seller Insurance as the Company may reasonably request, in a manner
consistent with the practices of Seller and the Company prior to the Closing, including providing
the Company with notice of any cancellation or termination of such Seller Insurance as promptly
as practicable after (i) receiving any notice thereof or (i) reaching a final decision to provide a
notice of cancellation or termination. The Company shall pay the Company’s allocable cost for
such insurance (based on the amount paid by the Company with respect to coverage for the
period from December 31, 2008 to December 31, 2009) and shall promptly reimburse Seller or
its designee for all other reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses whatsoever incurred (a) at
Purchaser’s request or (b) in providing the assistance described in this Section 5.19 (“Assistance
Costs”). “Assistance Costs” shall include third party expenses, including without limitation
attorneys’ fees and claims adjustment expenses, paid in connection with investigating, preparing,
or pursuing recoveries from insurance contracts and retroactive or prospective premium
increases to the extent (and only to the extent) attributable to losses incurred in connection with
the Company and its Subsidiaries following the Closing.

ARTICLE VI
TAX MATTERS

Section 6.1  Section 338 Election. Purchaser agrees, except to the extent it has
received Seller’s express written consent, not to make (and to cause each of its Affiliates not to
make) any election under Section 338 (including but not limited to Section 338(h)(10)) of the
Code or any similar provision of any U.S. state or local or foreign law with respect to any of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 6.2 Seller Liability for Taxes. Effective as of the Closing Date, except
for Taxes provided for in the Company Financial Statements Seller and Parent shall, indemnify
and hold the Purchaser Indemnified Parties harmless from and against any Losses in respect of
(1) any Taxes imposed with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for the taxable
periods, or portions thereof, ended on or before the Cut-Off Date (a “Pre-Cut-Off Date Tax
Period™), (ii) any Taxes of Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries) and any Taxes for which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is held liable
under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 or similar provision by reason of the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries being included in any consolidated, affiliated, combined, or unitary group
with Seller or any of its Affiliates, other than the Company and its Subsidiaries, (ii1) any breach
of (A) any representation or warranty contained in Section 3.9 or (B) any covenant set forth in
Section 5.1(a)(xv) and (iv) Taxes imposed on the Company or any Subsidiary as a result of the
recognition of any “excess loss account”, as defined for federal income tax purposes, triggered
by the sale of the Interests to the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 6.3  Purchaser Liability for Taxes. Effective as of the Closing Date and
without duplication of any payment due to Seller pursuant to Section 6.7, Purchaser shall
indemnify and hold the Seller Indemnified Parties harmless from and against any Losses in
respect of Taxes with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries other than those Taxes
for which Seller is responsible pursuant to Section 6.2.
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Section 6.4  Proration of Taxes. To the extent necessary to allocate the liability
for Taxes, or any attribute relating to Taxes, for a portion of a taxable year or period that begins
before and ends after the Cut-Off Date (a “Straddle Period™), the determination of the Taxes for
the portion of the year or period ending on, and the portion of the year or period beginning after,
the Cut-Off Date shall be determined by assuming that the taxable year or period ended as of the
close of business on the Cut-Off Date, except that any property taxes, exemptions, allowances or
deductions that are calculated on an periodic basis shall be prorated on a time basis.

Section 6.5  Preparation of Tax Returns. (a) Seller shall prepare and file (or
cause to be prepared and filed) all Tax Returns relating to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
which are required to be filed after the Closing Date and which are filed on a consolidated,
unitary or combined basis with the Seller. With respect to any Tax Return to be prepared and
filed by the Seller pursuant to the preceding sentence, Purchaser shall cause the Company to
prepare and provide to Seller a package of Tax information materials (the “Tax Package™), which
shall be completed in accordance with past practice, and shall include drafts of the Tax Returns
(computed on a stand-alone basis with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries), schedules
and significant work papers (other work papers shall be made available to the Seller upon
request). With respect to any consolidated federal income Tax Return or any Kentucky
consolidated state income Tax Returns, Purchaser shall cause the Tax Package to be delivered to
Seller no later than 45 days in advance of the due date (giving effect to any extension thereof) for
the Tax Return to which such Tax Package relates. With respect to any Tax Return to be
prepared and filed by the Seller referred to in the first sentence of this Section 6.5 other than a
consolidated federal or Kentucky consolidated income Tax Return, Purchaser shall cause the Tax
Package to be delivered to Seller as promptly as reasonably possible prior to the filing of such
Tax Returns to enable Seller to review and timely file the Tax Return to which such Tax Package
relates. Purchaser shall prepare and file (or cause to be prepared and filed) all Tax Returns
relating to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to be filed after the Closing other than Tax
Returns referred to in the first sentence of this Section 6.5. With respect to any Tax Return to be
filed by one party for which the other party may have an indemnification obligation, the
Indemnified Party shall provide the Indemnifying Party adequate opportunity to review and
comment on such Tax Return and shall incorporate comments of the Indemnifying Party on such
Tax Returns to the extent such comments could affect the Indemnifying Party’s indemnity
obligations under this Agreement.

(b) With respect to any Tax Returns for any taxable period which begins
before and ends after the Closing Date, to the extent permissible, but not required, pursuant to
applicable Tax Law, the parties shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to, (i) take all steps
as may be reasonably necessary, including the filing of elections or returns with applicable
Governmental Authority, to cause such period to end on the Closing Date or (i1) if the foregoing
clause (i) of this Section 6.5(b) is inapplicable, report the operations of the Company and its
Subsidiaries only for that portion of such period ending on the Closing Date in a combined,
consolidated or unitary Tax Return filed by Seller or an Affiliate of Seller, notwithstanding that
such taxable period does not end on the Closing Date.

Section 6.6  Tax Cooperation. (a) Effective as of the Closing Date, Seller and
Purchaser shall provide each other, upon reasonable request, as promptly as practicable, with
such cooperation and information (including reasonable access to employees during normal
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operating hours) as either of them may reasonably request of the other (and Purchaser shall cause
the Company and its Subsidiaries to provide such cooperation and information) in filing any Tax
Return, amended Tax Return or claim for refund, making any Tax election, determining a
liability for Taxes or a right to a refund of Taxes, or participating in or conducting any audit,
contest or other proceeding in respect of Taxes, but only to the extent such information is
reasonably available to the other party. Seller’s and Purchaser’s cooperation shall include
providing copies of relevant Tax Returns or portions thereof, together with related work papers,
documents relating to rulings or other determinations by Governmental Authorities and any other
information or documentation which may be useful in connection with the preparation of any
Tax Return or management of any audit, contest or other proceeding in respect of Taxes. Seller
and Purchaser shall make themselves (and their respective employees) reasonably available on a
mutually convenient basis to execute any documents as required in connection with any audit,
contest or other proceeding in respect of Taxes covered by this Section 6.6; or to provide
explanations of any documents or information provided under this Section 6.6. Any information
obtained under this Section 6.6 shall be kept confidential, except as may be otherwise necessary
in connection with the filing of Tax Returns or claims for refund or in conducting an audit or
other proceeding. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, neither Purchaser
nor Seller shall have any access to any books and records, Tax Returns or other information of
the other party or its Affiliates that do not relate exclusively to the Company and its Subsidiaries.
Prior to the Closing Date, upon request of the other party, Seller and Purchaser shall cooperate
with each other and use their respective reasonable best efforts to provide the other with
information in each case as relevant to the Tax planning relating to the transition of the
ownership of the Interests, the Company and its Subsidiaries.

(b)  Effective as of the Closing Date, if a claim shall be made by any taxing
authority, which, if successful, might result in an indemnity payment to any Indemnified Party
pursuant to this Article VI, then such Indemnified Party shall give prompt notice to the
Indemnifying Party in writing of such claim; provided, however, the failure to give prompt
notice shall relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnity obligation only to the extent its
ability to contest such claim is prejudiced in a manner that is not immaterial as a result of such
failure.

() Effective as of the Closing Date, Seller shall be entitled to participate at its
expense in the conduct of, and, at its option, take sole and exclusive control of the conduct and
settlement of any Tax audit, contest or other proceeding in respect of Taxes for which Seller is
responsible pursuant to this Agreement, and to employ counsel and other advisors of its choice at
its expense; provided that Purchaser shall be permitted to participate in any such audit, contest or
other proceeding to the extent it relates to Taxes of the Company or its Subsidiaries and could
reasonably be expected to have an adverse effect on the Company or its Subsidiaries in a Tax
period ending after the Cut-Off Date.

(d) Effective as of the Closing Date, Purchaser shall control all Tax audits,
contests or other proceedings in respect of any Taxes of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
not described in paragraph (c).

(e) Effective as of the Closing Date and notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement, neither party may agree to settle any claim for Taxes for which the other party
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is responsible pursuant to this Agreement without the prior written consent of such other party
(such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned).

H Effective as of the Closing Date, at Seller’s request, Purchaser shall cause
the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries to make and/or join with Seller (or any of its
Affiliates) in making any Tax election if the making of such election (i) would not have any
adverse impact that is material on Purchaser and (ii) would not have any adverse impact that is
material on the Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries for any taxable period ending after the
Cut-Off Date.

(g)  Each party shall pay or cause to be paid to the other party any refunds or
credits of Taxes for which the other party is responsible pursuant to this Agreement (including
any interest thereon paid by the applicable Governmental Authority in respect of such refund or
credit) within thirty (30) Business Days after the receipt of such refund or the realization of such
credit. Each party shall, at the reasonable request of the other party, cooperate in good faith with
such other party in obtaining such refunds or credits, including through the filing of amended
Tax Returns or refund claims.

Section 6.7  Tax Sharing Matters. Any Tax sharing agreement or arrangement
between Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries), on the one
hand, and the Company and its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, including the Tax Sharing
Agreement, shall be terminated as of the Closing. All amounts payable under the Tax Sharing
Agreement as of the Closing shall be determined promptly after the Closing (for the avoidance of
doubt, such amounts to be determined without regard to the due dates for payments otherwise
applicable under the Tax Sharing Agreement and without regard to Section 7 of the Tax Sharing
Agreement) and shall be settled no later than the due date for the payment of the Tax to the
relevant Tax authority to which such amount relates.

Section 6.8  Post-Closing Actions Affecting Tax Liabilities for Pre-Closing and
Straddle Periods. (a) Except to the extent required by Law and subject to Sections 6.5 and 6.6,
neither Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates shall (nor shall cause or permit the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries to), without the prior written consent of Seller (such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), (i) amend, file, re-file, revoke or otherwise
modify any Tax Return previously filed with any Governmental Authority relating in whole or in
part to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any Pre-Cut-Off Date Tax Period
or (ii) make any Tax election, adopt or change any method of Tax accounting or undertake any
other extraordinary action on the Closing Date, if doing so could reasonably be expected to have
an adverse effect that is material on the Seller or any of its Affiliates or result in any
indemnification obligation of Seller for Taxes pursuant to this Agreement.

(b)  Except to the extent required by Law and subject to Sections 6.5 and 6.6,
neither Seller nor any of its Affiliates shail, without the prior written consent of Purchaser (such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), (i) amend, file, re-file, revoke
or otherwise modify any Tax Return previously filed with any Governmental Authority relating
in whole or in part to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any taxable period
ending after the Cut-Off Date or (ii) make any Tax election, adopt or change any method of Tax
accounting or undertake any other extraordinary action after the Closing Date, if doing so could
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reasonably be expected to have an adverse effect that is material on the Purchaser or any of its
Affiliates (including, for purposes of this Section 6.8(b), after the Cut-Off Date, the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries) or result in any indemnification obligation of Purchaser for Taxes
pursuant to this Agreement.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement,
neither Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates shall waive any statute of limitations or agree to any
extensions thereof in respect of any Pre-Cut-Off Date Tax Period without the prior written
consent of Seller.

Section 6.9  Rights With Respect to Loss Sharing With Respect to the
Company and its Subsidiaries.

(a) If any tax losses or credits of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
(including any portion of any consolidated net operating loss of the Seller Consolidated Group
that is attributable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and any corresponding losses
attributable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under applicable state or local Law)
reflected in Section 3.9(m) of the Company Disclosure Schedule (such tax losses or credits other
than the credit referenced by the item “Alternative Minimum Tax Credit Carryover”, the
“Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes”, and the credit referenced by the item “Alternative
Minimum Tax Credit Carryover”, the “Company AMT Tax Attribute”) are used to offset or to
reduce any Taxes for which Seller would otherwise be responsible pursuant to this Agreement,
whether utilizing such losses occurs by operation of law, pursuant to an election, such as an
election to surrender losses of one entity to another entity, or by any other means, and the effect
of such use is to either reduce (i) the aggregate amount of Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes
immediately following the Closing below the Adjusted Non-AMT Cut-Off Date Amount (such
reduced amount of Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes, the “Reduced Non-AMT Post-Closing
Tax_Attributes”) or (ii) the amount of the Company AMT Tax Attribute immediately following
the Closing below the Adjusted AMT Cut-Off Date Amount (such reduced amount of the
Company AMT Tax Attribute, the “Reduced AMT Post-Closing Tax Attribute”), then the Seller
shall pay to the Purchaser cash equal to the amount of Taxes so offset or reduced by the
difference between (i) the Adjusted Non-AMT Cut-Off Date Amount and the Reduced Non-
AMT Post-Closing Tax Attributes or (i1) the Adjusted AMT Cut-Off Date Amount and the
Reduced AMT Post-Closing Tax Attribute, as the case may be, within thirty (30) Business Days
after such offset or reduction. The “Adjusted Non-AMT Cut-Off Date Amount” and the
“Adjusted AMT Cut-Off Date Amount”, respectively, shall be the aggregate amount of the
Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes or the Company AMT Tax Attribute, respectively,
(i) reduced by the amount of Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes or the Company AMT Tax
Attribute, respectively, that are or is used to offset or to reduce any Taxes of the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries in respect of any taxable period, or portion thereof, ending on or prior to the
Closing Date, for which Purchaser would otherwise be responsible pursuant to this Agreement,
whether utilizing such losses occurs by operation of law, pursuant to an election, such as an
election to surrender losses of one entity to another entity, or by any other means and
(ii) increased by the amount of any such tax loss or credit of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries (other than any worthless security deduction with respect to LG&E International
Inc. realized after the Cut-Off Date) that is realized in respect of any taxable period or portion
thereof beginning after the Cut-Off Date and ending on or prior to the Closing Date unless such
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losses or credits are used to offset or reduce the income of the Company or its Subsidiaries. For
purposes of the preceding sentence, Taxes, tax losses and tax credits in respect of a taxable
period that begins before and ends after the Cut-Off Date or the Closing Date, as the case may
be, shall be allocated pursuant to the principles of Section 6.4. For purposes of determining the
aggregate amount of Company Non-AMT Tax Attributes, Adjusted Non-AMT Cut-Off Date
Amount and Reduced Non-AMT Post-Closing Tax Attributes, tax credits of the Company and its
Subsidiaries shall be taken into account after dividing the nominal amount of such tax credits by
0.35. Notwithstanding anything therein to the contrary, no amount shall be payable pursuant to
Section 6.9(a) to the extent such payment would duplicate any amount payable pursuant to the
Tax Sharing Agreement.

(b) Seller reserves the right to reduce any Taxes of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries for which Seller would otherwise be liable by utilizing any Tax losses of Seller or
any Affiliate of Seller (other than the Company or any of its Subsidiaries), whether utilizing such
losses occurs by operation of law, pursuant to an election, such an election to surrender losses of
one entity to another entity, or by any other means. For the avoidance of doubt, Seller shall not
be entitled to any payment from Purchaser or any of its Affiliates for such use of any such Tax
losses.

(©) To the extent permitted pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502
95, Seller shall elect to apportion all of any consolidated section 382 limitation of the Seller
Consolidated Group to the Company and its Subsidiaries and shall apportion to the Company and
its Subsidiaries the maximum permitted net unrealized built-in gain of any loss group of which
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries was a member.

Section 6.10 Miscellaneous. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in this Agreement, the covenants and agreements of Seller and Purchaser contained in
this Article VI shall survive the Closing and shall remain in full force and effect until the
expiration of the relevant statutes of limitation.

(b) Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Company and its Subsidiaries to, (1)
retain all Company Books and Records with respect to Tax matters pertinent to the Company and
any of its Subsidiaries relating to any taxable period beginning on or before the Closing Date
until the expiration of the statute of limitations of the respective taxable periods, and (ii) abide by
all record retention agreements entered into with any Governmental Authority and give Seller
reasonable written notice and opportunity to obtain possession (at Seller’s expense) prior to
transferring, destroying or discarding any such Company Books and Records.

Section 6.11  Exclusivity. Notwithstanding any other provision of this

Agreement, except as specifically provided in Sections 3.9, 5.1(a)(xv) and Article IX, any matter
related to Taxes shall be governed solely by this Article VI.
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ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

Section 7.1  Conditions to Obligations of Each Party. The respective
obligations of each party hereto to effect the Purchase are subject to the satisfaction or waiver at
or prior to the Closing of each of the following conditions:

(a) HSR Clearance. The waiting period (and any extension thereof)
applicable to the consummation of the Purchase under the HSR Act shall have expired or been
earlier terminated.

(b)  Regulatory Approvals. The Company Required Regulatory Approvals
and the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals shall have been obtained and shall have
become Final Orders. As used in this Section 7.1(b), the term “Final Order” means action by the
relevant Governmental Authority which has not been reversed, stayed, enjoined, set aside,
annulled or suspended, with respect to which any waiting period prescribed by Law or
Governmental Order before the transactions contemplated hereby may be consummated has
expired, and as to which all conditions (other than conditions the satisfaction of which is within
the control of a party) to the consummation of such transaction prescribed by Law or
Governmental Order have been satisfied.

(©) No Prohibitive Order. No court or other Governmental Authority of
competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Law or
Governmental Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that is in effect and
prevents, restrains, enjoins or otherwise prohibits the consummation of the Purchase
(a “Prohibitive Order”).

Section 7.2 Conditions to Obligations of Purchaser. Subject to Section 2.5(a),
the obligations of Purchaser to effect the Purchase are subject to the satisfaction or waiver by
Purchaser at or prior to the Closing of each of the following further conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties of Seller. The representations and
warranties of Seller set forth in this Agreement (without regard to materiality or “Company
Material Adverse Effect” qualifiers contained therein) shall be true and correct as of the Closing,
as if made on the Closing Date (except to the extent that any such representation or warranty
expressly speaks as of a specified date, in which case such representation or warranty shall be
true and correct as of such specified date) except where the failure of any such representations
and warranties to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, has not had and is not
reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect; provided, however, that,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the representations or warranties of
Seller (x) contained in Section 3.1 (Organization), Section 3.2 (Authorization of Transaction;
Binding Obligation), Section 3.5 (Title to the Interests), Section 3.6 (Capitalization) and
Section 3.20 (Brokers) shall be true and correct in all material respects, (y) contained in
Section 3.8(b) shall be true and correct without disregarding the reference to “Company Material
Adverse Effect” contained therein and (z) (i) with respect to Section 3.11(a)(iii), the word
“material” shall be deemed to be included before the reference to “likelihood”, (ii) with respect
to Section 3.15(a), the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before the reference to

63

NY12528:449947.10A



“amendments, waivers or other charges”, (iii) with respect to Section 3.18 the word “material”
shall be deemed to be included before the first reference to “current insurance policies”, before
the first reference to “premium increase” and before the first reference to “changes”, (iv) with
respect to Section 3.19 the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before the reference
to “to the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole” in the penultimate sentence thereof
and (v) with respect to Section 3.25, the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before
the references to “other documents” and the reference to “financial obligations.” Purchaser shall
have received a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer of Seller on behalf of Seller to the
effect that the conditions set forth in this Section 7.2(a) have been satisfied.

(b) Performance of Obligations of Seller. Seller shall have performed in all
material respects all obligations required to be performed by it hereunder on or prior to the
Closing Date, and Purchaser shall have received a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer
of Seller on behalf of Seller to such effect.

(c) Regulatory Approvals. The Company Required Regulatory Approvals
and the Purchaser Required Regulatory Approvals obtained in the form of Final Orders referred
to in Section 7.1(b) shall not, individually or in the aggregate, impose terms, conditions,
liabilities, obligations, commitments or sanctions upon the Company and the Company’s
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or Purchaser and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, that would
have, or be reasonably likely to have, a material and adverse effect on the condition (financial or
otherwise), assets, liabilities, businesses or results of operations of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or Purchaser and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any terms, conditions, liabilities, obligations, commitments or sanctions contained
in or arising out of any Final Order shall not constitute or be taken into account in determining
whether there has been or is such a material and adverse effect pursuant to this Section 7.2(c) to
the extent such terms, conditions, liabilities, obligations, commitments or sanctions implement
the Regulatory Commitments.

Section 7.3  Conditions to Obligations of Seller. The obligations of Seller to
effect the Purchase are subject to the satisfaction or waiver by Seller at or prior to the Closing of
each of the following further conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties of Purchaser. The representations and
warranties of Purchaser set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the Closing, as if made on the Closing Date (except to the extent that any such
representation or warranty expressly speaks as of a specified date, in which case such
representation or warranty shall be true and correct as of such specified date). Seller shall have
received a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer of Purchaser on behalf of Purchaser to
the effect that the conditions set forth in this Section 7.3(a) have been satisfied.

(b)  Performance of Obligations of Purchaser. Purchaser shall have performed
in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it hereunder on or prior to the
Closing Date, and Seller shall have received a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer of
Purchaser on behalf of Purchaser to such effect.
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ARTICLE VIII
TERMINATION

Section 8.1  Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior
to the Closing:

(a) by mutual written consent of Seller and Purchaser;

(b) by either Purchaser or Seller if (i) the Closing shall not have occurred on
or prior to April 28, 2011 (the “Termination Date”), provided that, if on April 28, 2011 the
conditions to Closing set forth in Section 7.1(a) or Section 7.1(b) shall not have been fulfilled but
remain capable of fulfillment and each of the other conditions to Closing set forth in Article VII
has been satisfied or waived or remains capable of satisfaction, then either Purchaser or Seller
may, by written notice to the other, extend the termination date to October 28, 2011 (which
extended date shall then be the “Termination Date”), or (ii) any Prohibitive Order permanently
preventing, restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Purchase
shall have become final and non-appealable; provided, however, that, in case of each of the
foregoing clauses (i) and (ii) of this Section 8.1(b), the right to terminate this Agreement
pursuant to this Section 8.1(b) shall not be available to any party hereto seeking to terminate this
Agreement if such party shall have failed to perform in any material respect its obligations under
this Agreement such that they shall have proximately caused the occurrence of the failure of the
Closing to occur on or prior to the Termination Date, or the occurrence of any Prohibitive Order;

(c) by Seller if (i) Purchaser has breached in any material respect any
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by Purchaser in this Agreement or
any such representation or warranty shall have failed to be true after the date of this Agreement,
such that the conditions set forth in Sections 7.1, 7.3(a) or 7.3(b) would not be satisfied and such
breach or failure to be true is not curable or, if curable, has not been cured prior to the earlier of
(x) thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is given by Seller to Purchaser and (y) the
Termination Date; provided, however, that Seller is not then in material breach of this
Agreement so as to cause any of the conditions set forth in Sections 7.1, 7.2(a) or 7.2(b) not to be
satisfied; or (ii) Purchaser has failed to consummate the Purchase on the date on which the
Closing would have occurred, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 2.5 hereof, if
Purchaser had not failed to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and all of the
conditions set forth in Section 7.1 would have been satisfied if the Closing were to have occurred
on such date; provided that Seller is not then in breach of this Agreement so as to cause the
conditions set forth in Section 7.2 not to be satisfied; or

(d) by Purchaser if Seller has breached in any material respect any
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by Seller in this Agreement or any
such representation or warranty shall have failed to be true after the date of this Agreement, such
that the conditions set forth in Sections 7.1, 7.2(a) or 7.2(b) would not be satisfied and such
breach or failure to be true is not curable or, if curable, has not been cured prior to the earlier of
(x) thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is given by Purchaser to Seller and (y) the
Termination Date; provided, however, that Purchaser 1s not then in material breach of this
Agreement so as to cause any of the conditions set forth in Sections 7.1, 7.3(a) or 7.3(b) not to be
satisfied.
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Section 8.2  Effect of Termination. (a) Except as provided in this Section 8.2,
in the event of a termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Article VIII, this Agreement shall
become void and of no effect, with no liability to any Person on the part of any party hereto (or
of any of its Representatives or Affiliates); provided, however, that (x) the confidentiality
obligations set forth in Section 5.3, Section 5.4, this Section 8.2, Article X and the
Confidentiality Agreement shall survive any termination of this Agreement; and (y) except as
provided in the next succeeding sentence, nothing herein shall relieve any party hereto from any
liability or damages to the other party hereto resulting from any willful misconduct or fraud or
any willful material breach of this Agreement occurring prior to such termination. In the event
that (i) the conditions set forth in Section 7.2 are satisfied, (ii) the Closing has failed to occur
because the lenders under the Debt Financing Commitments have failed to fund such
commitments, (iii) Purchaser has used its reasonable best efforts to satisfy all conditions
precedent to the receipt of the Debt Financing and enforce such commitments and Debt
Financing definitive agreements and otherwise complied in all material respects with its
obligations under this Agreement, including to obtain alternative financing pursuant to and
subject to the terms of Section 5.13(a) and (iv) the proceeds of the Debt Financing are not
available to the Purchaser, or would not have been received by Purchaser if the Closing had
occurred on the date of such termination, then Purchaser shall pay $450 million (the “Purchaser
Termination Fee™), to Seller no later than two Business Days after termination of this Agreement
by Seller pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(ii) hereof, and the right to so terminate and receive such
Purchaser Termination Fee shall be the sole and exclusive remedy of Seller and its Affiliates
against Purchaser or any of its current, former or future Affiliates and representatives (including
the Debt Financing Sources) for any Losses suffered in connection with this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby. Purchaser acknowledges that the agreements contained in this
Section 8.2 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and that,
without these agreements, Seller and Parent would not enter into this Agreement. Accordingly,
if Purchaser fails to promptly pay the amounts due pursuant to this Section 8.2 and, in order to
obtain such payment, Seller and/or Parent commence a suit that results in a judgment against
Purchaser for the Purchaser Termination Fee or any portion thereof, Purchaser shall pay to Seller
and Parent their costs and expenses thereof (including attorneys’ fees) in connection with such
suit, together with interest on the amount of the Purchaser Termination Fee or portion thereof
ordered to be paid by a court at a rate per annum equal to 12% from the date such payment was
required to be made through the date of the payment.

(b) In the event that this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1,
neither Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates shall, directly or indirectly, (i) induce, encourage or
solicit any Company Employee to leave such employment or to accept any other position or
employment with Purchaser, any of its Affiliates or any other Person, or (ii) hire or assist any
other Person in hiring any Company Employee, so long as such Company Employee is employed
by Seller or any of its Affiliates (including the Company and its Subsidiaries), provided that the
foregoing restriction shall not apply to any Company Employee who has left the employment of
Seller and its Affiliates (including the Company and its Subsidiaries) without any breach or
violation by Purchaser or any of its Affiliates of this Section 8.2(b) and shall not prohibit general
solicitation by Purchaser or any of its Affiliates for employment through advertisements or other
means that do not specifically target any individual Company Employee or any group of
Company Employees.
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ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 9.1  Survival of Representations and Warranties. The representations
and warranties of the parties hereto contained in this Agreement at the Closing shall survive the
Closing for eighteen (18) months after the Closing except that the representations and warranties
set forth in (i) Section 3.1 (Organization), Section 3.2 (Authorization of Transaction; Binding
Obligation), Section 3.5 (Title to the Interests), Section 3.6 (Capitalization), Section 3.20
(Brokers), Section 4.1 (Organization), Section 4.2 (Authorization of Transaction; Binding
Obligation) and Section 4.10 (Brokers) shall survive indefinitely, (ii) Section 3.16 (Environment)
and Section 3.25 (WKE Matters) shall survive the Closing for a period of four (4) years and
(1ii) Section 3.9 (Taxes) shall survive the Closing until the expiration of the applicable statute of
limitations; provided, however, that any claim for breach of any representation or warranty
contained herein made within such applicable time period with reasonable specificity by the
party hereto seeking to be indemnified shall survive until such claim is finally resolved. All
covenants herein that by their terms apply or are to be performed in their entirety on or prior to
Closing shall terminate at the Closing; provided that the failure of such provisions to survive
shall not prevent Purchaser from making any claim hereunder for a breach, prior to the Closing,
of Section 5.1 hereof.

Section 9.2  Indemnification by Seller. Subject to Section 9.4, from and after
the Closing Date, Seller and Parent shall indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser and its
Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns
(each, a “Purchaser Indemnified Party™) from and against all Losses actually imposed on,
suffered or incurred by them in connection with, arising out of or resulting from any (i) breach or
inaccuracy of any representation or warranty made by Seller in this Agreement (other than the
representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.9, which shall be governed by Section 6.2)
and (ii) any breach of any covenant or agreement of Seller in this Agreement other than the
covenant or agreement to provide the certificate pursuant to Section 7.2 hereof, which shall be
covered by Section 9.2(i).

Section 9.3  Indemmification by Purchaser. Subject to Section 9.4, from and
after the Closing Date, Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless Seller and its Affiliates and
their respective directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns (each, a “Seller
Indemnified Party”) from and against all Losses actually imposed on, suffered or incurred by
them in connection with, arising out of or resulting from (i) any breach or inaccuracy of any
representation or warranty made by Purchaser in this Agreement and (ii) any breach of any
covenant or agreement of Purchaser in this Agreement, other than the covenant or agreement to
provide the certificate pursuant to Section 7.3 hereof, which shall be covered by Section 9.3(i).

Section 9.4  Limitations on Indemnification. (a) No claim may be made or
asserted nor may any Action be commenced pursuant to Section 6.2, 6.3, 9.2(i) or Section 9.3(i)
against any party hereto for breach of any representation or warranty contained herein, unless
written notice of such claim or Action has been given by the Indemnified Party to the
Indemnifying Party, describing in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances with respect to
the subject matter of such claim or Action on or prior to the date on which the representation or
warranty on which such claim or Action is based ceases to survive as set forth in Section 9.1.
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(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement:

1) Seller and/or Parent shall not be liable for any claim for
indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2(i) (other than any claims relating to the
matters contained in Section 3.1 (Organization), Section 3.2 (Authorization of
Transaction; Binding Obligation), Section 3.5 (Title to the Interests), Section 3.6
(Capitalization), Section 3.20 (Brokers) and Section 3.25 (WKE Matters)) unless
and until the aggregate amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be recovered
from Seller and/or Parent pursuant to Section 9.2(i) equals or exceeds $60 million
(the “Deductible™), at which point (subject to the other limitations set forth in this
Agreement) Seller and/or Parent shall be liable only for the amount of those
Losses to the extent they exceed the Deductible;

(i)  no Losses may be claimed under Section 9.2(i) (other than any
claims relating to the matters contained in Section 3.1 (Organization), Section 3.2
(Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation), Section 3.5 (Title to the
Interests), Section 3.6 (Capitalization), Section 3.20 (Brokers) and Section 3.25
(WKE Matters)) by any Indemnified Party nor shall any Losses be reimbursable
or included in calculating the aggregate indemnifiable Losses set forth in
clause (i) of this Section 9.4(b), other than Losses in excess of $1.75 million (the
“De Minimis”) resulting from any single claim or series of claims arising out of
related facts, events or circumstances, provided that (subject to the other
limitations set forth in this Agreement), after such amount is reached, all such
Losses on any such single claim or series of claims may be claimed under Section
9.2 by an Indemnified Party;

(iii)  the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be
recovered from Seller and/or Parent for any amounts due under Section 9.2(i)
(other than any claims relating to the matters contained in Section 3.1
(Organization), Section 3.2 (Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation),
Section 3.5 (Title to the Interests), Section 3.6 (Capitalization), Section 3.20
(Brokers) and Section 3.25 (WKE Matters)) shall be an amount equal to
$400 million (the “Cap™);

(iv)  the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be
recovered from Seller and/or Parent for any amounts due under Section 9.2(i) in
respect of any claims relating to the matters contained in Section 3.25 (WKE
Matters) shall be an amount equal to the Cap;

v) no party hereto shall have any Liability pursuant to Section 6.2,
Section 6.3, Section 9.2 or Section 9.3 for any special, indirect, consequential
(including lost profits) or punitive damages relating to the breach or alleged
breach of this Agreement, except to the extent such damages are awarded in a
third-party action by a court of competent jurisdiction; provided that, nothing in
this Section 9.4(b)(v) shall prevent Purchaser from claiming indemnification
hereunder for Losses suffered by the Company and its Subsidiaries;

68

NY12528:449947.10A



(vi)  for the purposes of Sections 9.2(i) and 9.3(i), any qualification of
representations and warranties by reference to materiality or “Company Material
Adverse Effect” or words of similar effect shall be disregarded for purposes of
determining any breach thereof or the amount of Losses arising therefrom;
provided that (x) with respect to Section 3.8(b) the reference to “Company
Material Adverse Effect” shall not be disregarded and (y) (i) with respect to
Section 3.11(a)(iii), the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before the
reference to “likelihood”, (ii) with respect to Section 3.15(a), the word “material”
shall be deemed to be inciuded before the reference to “amendments, waivers or
other charges”, (iii) with respect to Section 3.18 the word “material” shall be
deemed to be included before the first reference to ‘“‘current insurance policies”,
before the first reference to “premium increase” and before the first reference to
“changes”, (iv) with respect to Section 3.19 the word “material” shall be deemed
to be included before the reference to “to the Company and its Subsidiaries taken
as a whole” in the penultimate sentence thereof and (v) with respect to Section
3.25, the word “material” shall be deemed to be included before the references to
“other documents” and the reference to “financial obligations”;

(vii)  Purchaser shall not be liable for any claim for indemnification
pursuant to Section 9.3(i) (other than any claims relating to the matters contained
in Section 4.1 (Organization), Section 4.2 (Authorization of Transaction; Binding
Obligation) and Section 4.10 (Brokers)) unless and until the aggregate amount of
indemnifiable Losses that may be recovered from Purchaser pursuant to
Section 9.3 equals or exceeds the Deductible, at which point (subject to the other
limitations set forth in this Agreement) Purchaser shall be liable only for the
amount of those Losses to the extent they exceed the Deductible;

(viii) no Losses may be claimed under Section 9.3(i) (other than any
claims relating to the matters contained in Section 4.1 (Organization), Section 4.2
(Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation) and Section 4.10 (Brokers))
by any Indemnified Party nor shall any Losses be reimbursable or included in
calculating the aggregate indemnifiable Losses set forth in clause (vi) of this
Section 9.4(b), other than Losses in excess of the De Minimis resulting from any
single claim or series of claims arising out of related facts, events or
circumstances, provided that (subject to the other limitations set forth in this
Agreement), after such amount is reached, all such Losses on any such single
claim or series of claims may be claimed under Section 9.3 by an Indemnified
Party; and

(ix)  the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be
recovered from Purchaser for any amounts due under Section 9.3(i) (other than
any claims relating to the matters contained in Section 4.1 (Organization),
Section 4.2 (Authorization of Transaction; Binding Obligation) and Section 4.10
(Brokers)) shall be an amount equal to the Cap.

Section 9.5  Notice of Loss; Third Party Claims. (a) Other than with respect to
any Third Party Claim that is provided for in Section 9.5(b), an Indemnified Party shall give the
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Indemnifying Party notice of any matter that an Indemnified Party has determined has given rise
to a right of indemnification under this Article IX, within ten (10) days of such determination,
stating the estimated amount of the Losses to the extent then ascertainable and method of
computation thereof, and containing a reference to the provisions of this Agreement in respect of
which such right of indemnification is claimed or arises; provided, however, that the failure to
provide such notice shall not release the Indemnifying Party from any of its obligations under
this Article IX except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is materially prejudiced by such
failure.

(b) If an Indemnified Party shall receive notice of any Action, audit, claim,
demand or assessment (each, a “Third Party Claim”) against it that may give rise to a claim for
Losses under this Article IX, within ten (10) days of the receipt of such notice, the Indemnified
Party shall give the Indemnifying Party notice of such Third Party Claim (a “Claim Notice™);
provided, however, that the failure to provide such notice shall not release the Indemnifying
Party from any of its obligations under this Article IX except to the extent that the Indemnifying
Party is materially prejudiced by such failure. The Indemnifying Party shall be entitled, to the
extent permitted by applicable Law and Governmental Orders, to assume and control the defense
of such Third Party Claim at its expense and through counsel of its choice, if it gives notice of its
intention to do so to the Indemnified Party within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Claim
Notice except that Seller shall not be entitled to assume and control the defense of any Third
Party Claim with respect to allegations of noncompliance with New Source Review
requirements; provided that prior to assuming such defense Indemnifying Party acknowledges in
writing that it is obligated to indemnify the Indemnified Party hereunder from Losses resulting
from such Third Party Claims in accordance with this Article IX. Purchaser agrees that in
connection with its control of the defense of a Third Party Claim related to allegations of
noncompliance with New Source Review requirements as provided above that Purchaser shall (1)
exercise control of such matters in a manner that gives due regard to the interests of Seller and
Parent, including by seeking to minimize in a commercially reasonable manner Losses subject to
indemnification, (ii) to the extent reasonably practicable, give Seller and Parent the opportunity
to be fully involved in the defense of the matter, including by participating in discussions with
any person bringing such a Third Party Claim, (iii) consult with Seller and Parent regarding any
decisions of significance in connection with such matter and give reasonable consideration to
any views of Seller and Parent in connection therewith and (iv) not settle any such matter
without the prior written consent of Parent and Seller, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed.

(© Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the actual or potential defendants in, or
targets of, such Third Party Claim include both the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified
Party, and the Indemnified Party shall have reasonably concluded that there exists an actual
conflict of interest between them that would make it inappropriate in the reasonable judgment of
the Indemnified Party for the same counsel to represent both the Indemnified Party and the
Indemnifying Party, then the Indemnified Party shall be entitled to employ its own counsel to
participate in the defense of such Third Party Claim at the expense of the Indemnifying Party,
provided that the Indemnified Party shall use diligent and good faith efforts in such defense. The
Indemnifying Party shall not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party (such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), settle, compromise or consent
to the entry of any judgment in respect of any Third Party Claim if any Indemnified Party is a
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party to the applicable claim unless such settlement, compromise or consent includes an
unconditional release of such Indemnified Party from all liability arising out of such claim and
provides solely for monetary relief to be satisfied by the Indemnifying Party.

(d)  The Indemnified Party shall reasonably cooperate with the Indemnifying
Party in the defense and settlement of any Third Party Claim and make available to the
Indemnifying Party all witnesses, pertinent records, materials and information in the Indemnified
Party’s possession or under the Indemnified Party’s control relating thereto as is reasonably
required by the Indemnifying Party.

(e) If the Indemnifying Party does not assume control over the defense of
such Third Party Claim as provided in Section 9.5(b), then the Indemnified Party shall have the
right to defend, resolve, settle or compromise such Third Party Claim, provided that the
Indemnified Party shall use diligent, reasonable and good faith efforts in its defense of such
Third Party Claim and shall not settle such Third Party Claim without obtaining the written
consent of the Indemnifying Party (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed). The Indemnified Party shall not pay, or permit to be paid, any part of such Third Party
Claim unless the Indemnifying Party consents in writing (such consent not to be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed) to such payment or unless a final judgment from which no
appeal may be taken by or on behalf of the Indemnifying Party has been entered against the
Indemnified Party for such Third Party Claim, it being understood and agreed that the
Indemnified Party’s right to indemnification for a Third Party Claim shall not be adversely
affected by assuming the defense of such claim pursuant to this Section 9.5(¢).

Section 9.6  Mitigation; Adjustments. (a) Each Indemnified Party shall use its
reasonable best efforts to mitigate any Losses under Article VI and this Article IX. In the event
an Indemnified Party fails to so mitigate an indemnifiable Loss, the Indemnifying Party shall
have no liability for any portion of such Loss that reasonably could have been avoided had the
Indemnified Party made such efforts. Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Company and its
Subsidiaries to, reasonably cooperate with Seller in recovering from the Company’s insurers or
other third parties (including with respect to enforcement of the Company’s or any of its
Subsidiaries’ indemnification rights) any Loss paid by Seller pursuant to Article VI and this
Article IX.

(b) In calculating the amount of any Loss, the proceeds actually received by
the Indemnified Party or any of its Affiliates under any insurance policy or pursuant to any
claim, recovery, settlement or payment by or against any other Person, net of any actual costs,
expenses or premiums incurred in connection with securing or obtaining such proceeds, shall be
deducted from such Loss. In the event that an Indemnified Party has any rights against a third
party with respect to any occurrence, claim or loss that results in a payment by an Indemnifying
Party under Article VI and this Article IX, such Indemnifying Party shall be subrogated to such
rights to the extent of such payment. Without limiting the generality or effect of any other
provision hereof, each Indemnified Party and Indemnifying Party shall duly execute upon
request all instruments reasonably necessary to evidence and perfect the subrogation rights
detailed herein, and otherwise cooperate in the prosecution of such claims.
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(c) In calculating the amount of any Loss or any indemnification payment
pursuant to Sections 6.2, 6.3, 9.2 or 9.3, there shall be deducted from such Loss an amount equal
to any net Tax benefit (including the utilization of a Tax deduction or the availability of any
future Tax benefit) resulting from such Loss to the party claiming such Loss or indemnification.
The amount of a net Tax benefit shall be 92.5% of the present value of the Tax benefit as of the
date of any indemnification payment (using LIBOR + 0.95% determined as of such date, as the
discount rate and assuming the Indemnified Party has sufficient taxable income or other tax
attributes to permit the utilization of such Tax benefit at the earliest possible time) multiplied by
(1) the combined effective federal and state corporate tax rates in effect at the time of the
indemnity payment or (ii) in the case of a credit, one hundred percent (100%).

(d) If an Indemnified Party recovers an amount from a third party in respect of
a Loss that is the subject of indemnification hereunder after all or a portion of such Loss has been
paid by an Indemnifying Party pursuant to Article VI and this Article IX, the Indemnified Party
shall promptly remit to the Indemnifying Party the excess (if any) of (i) the amount paid by the
Indemnifying Party in respect of such Loss, plus the amount received from the third party in
respect thereof, less (ii) the full amount of such Loss.

(e) Seller shall not be liable pursuant to Section 9.2 for any Loss in respect of
any matter hereunder to the extent that such Loss is discovered by Purchaser or any of its
Affiliates by conducting any subsurface environmental investigations or sampling (other than
any preconstruction soil engineering and structural investigations conducted in the Company
Ordinary Course of Business or as required in connection with financings) on any properties of
the Company, its Subsidiaries or any Company Joint Venture, except as required by applicable
Law or Governmental Order.

6)) A Purchaser Indemnified Party shall not be entitled to recover under
Section 9.2 any environmental remediation or corrective action costs associated with a material
change in the use of the subject parcels from the use of the subject parcels as of the Closing Date.

(g) Seller and/or Parent shall not be liable pursuant to Section 9.2 for any Loss
in respect of any matter hereunder to the extent that such Loss is recovered through a rate
increase expressly attributable to such Loss that is approved by the applicable state
Governmental Authority, and to the extent Seller has made any indemnification payment
pursuant to this Article IX in respect of any such Loss, Purchaser shall refund to Seller the
amount of such indemnification payment made by Seller.

(h)  Itis the intention of the parties hereto to treat any indemnification
payment made under this Agreement as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for all federal, state,
local and foreign Tax purposes.

Section 9.7 Remedy. Except as otherwise provided in Section 10.6 of this
Agreement and except with respect to fraud, (a) this Article IX shall be the exclusive remedy of
the parties hereto following the Closing for any Losses arising out of any breach or inaccuracy of
the representations or warranties of the parties contained in this Agreement or the breach of any
covenant or agreement contained herein, and (b) each of the parties hereto hereby waives, to the
fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, any and all rights, claims and causes of action it may
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have against the other parties hereto after the Closing with respect to any breach or inaccuracy
of the representations or warranties of the parties contained in this Agreement or the breach of
any covenant or agreement contained herein, arising under or based upon any Law or
Governmental Order, other than the right to seek indemnity pursuant to this Article IX.

Section 9.8  Director and Officer Release. Purchaser shall cause the Company
and its Subsidiaries to release each director or officer of the Company or its Subsidiaries who
resigns at the Closing (or before the Closing at the request of Purchaser) from any and all
liability the same may have to the Company or its Subsidiaries as a director or officer thereof
arising on or before the Closing other than liabilities arising from his gross negligence, fraud,
recklessness, breach of fiduciary duty, criminal conduct or self-dealing.

Section 9.9  Payment. The Indemnifying Party shall pay all amounts payable
pursuant to this Article IX, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, promptly following
receipt from an Indemnified Party of a bill, together with all accompanying reasonably detailed
back-up documentation, for a Loss that is the subject of indemnification hereunder, unless the
Indemnifying Party in good faith disputes the Loss or its obligation to pay the requested
amounts, in which event it shall so notify the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall
pay to the Indemnified Party, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, the amount of any
Loss for which it is liable hereunder no later than 5 Business Days following any final
determination of such Loss and the Indemnifying Party’s liability therefor. A “final
determination” shall exist when (i) the parties to the dispute have reached an agreement in
writing, (ii) a court of competent jurisdiction shall have entered a final and non-appealable order
or judgment, or (iii) an arbitration or like panel shall have rendered a final non-appealable
determination with respect to disputes the parties have agreed to submit thereto.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1 Notices. All notices, requests and other communications to any
party hereto hereunder shall be in writing (including electronic facsimile transmission) and shall
be given by delivery in person, by an internationally recognized overnight courier service, or by
facsimile or certified mail (postage prepaid, return receipt requested) to such party hereto at the
following addresses (or at such other address or electronic facsimile number for a party hereto as
shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 10.1):

(a) if to Purchaser, to:

PPL Corporation

Office of General Counsel
Two North Ninth Street
Allentown, PA 18101
Attention: General Counsel
Facsimile No.: +610-774-4455
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with a copy to:

Simpson Thacher & Bartlett, LLP
425 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10017

Attention: Mario A. Ponce, Esq.
Facsimile No.: +212-455-2501

(b) if to Seller or Parent, to:

E.ON AG

E.ON-Platz 1

40479 Diisseldorf

Germany

Attention: Karl-Heinz Feldmann
Facsimile No.: +49-211-4579-446

with a copy to:

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

125 Broad Street

New York, NY 10004

Attention: Joseph B. Frumkin, Esq.
Facsimile No.: +1-212-558-3588

All such notices, requests and other communications shall be deemed received on the date of
receipt by the recipient thereof if received prior to 5:00 p.m. in the place of receipt and such day
is a Business Day. Otherwise, any such notice, request or other communication shall be deemed
not to have been received until the next succeeding Business Day.

Section 10.2 Amendments and Waivers. Any provision of this Agreement may
be amended or waived if, but only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and is signed, in
the case of an amendment, by each party to this Agreement, or in the case of a waiver, by the
party hereto against whom the waiver is to be effective. Any waiver of any term or condition
shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or a subsequent waiver of the same
term or condition, or a waiver of any other term or condition of this Agreement. No failure or
delay by any party hereto in exercising any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor
shall any single or partial exercise thereof, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right.

Section 10.3 Expenses. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, all
costs and expenses (including fees and expenses of counsel and financial advisors, if any)
incurred in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid
by the party incurring such costs or expenses, whether or not the Closing shall have occurred;
provided, that any filing fees for filings made pursuant to the HSR Act shall be shared equally by
the parties hereto.
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Section 10.4  Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by a party
hereto by operation of Law or otherwise without the express written consent of the other party
hereto and any attempt to assign this Agreement without such consent shall be void and of no
effect.

Section 10.5 Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. (a) This
Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the Laws of the State of
New York, without regard to the conflict of laws rules thereof.

(b) All Actions arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be heard and
determined exclusively in any federal court sitting in the Borough of Manhattan of The City of
New York; provided, however, that if such federal court does not have jurisdiction over such
Action, such Action shall be heard and determined exclusively in any state court sitting in the
Borough of Manhattan of The City of New York. Consistent with the preceding sentence, the
parties hereto hereby (i) irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of any federal or New
York state court sitting in the Borough of Manhattan of The City of New York for the purpose of
any Action arising out of or relating to this Agreement brought by any party hereto,

(i1) irrevocably waive, and agree not to assert by way of motion, defense or otherwise, in any
such Action, any claim that it is not subject personally to the jurisdiction of the above-named
courts, that its property is exempt or immune from attachment or execution, that the Action is
brought in an inconvenient forum, that the venue of the Action is improper, or that this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement may not be enforced in or by any
of the above-named courts, and (iii) irrevocably consent to and grant any such court exclusive
jurisdiction over the person of such parties and over the subject matter of such Action and agree
that mailing of process or other papers in connection with any such Action in the manner
provided in Section 10.1 or in such other manner as may be permitted by applicable Law shall be
valid and sufficient service thereof.

(c) EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY
APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT
TO ANY ACTION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
BY THIS AGREEMENT. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY (A) CERTIFIES
THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF THE OTHER PARTY HAS
REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD
NOT, IN THE EVENT OF ACTION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER
AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS
AGREEMENT AND THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT,
AS APPLICABLE, BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND
CERTIFICATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION 10.5(c).

(d)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, each of the parties hereto agrees that it will
not bring or support any Action, including but not limited to any action, cause of action, claim,
cross-claim or third-party claim of any kind or description, whether in law or in equity, whether
in contract or in tort or otherwise, against the Debt Financing Sources in any way relating to this
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including but not limited
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to any dispute arising out of or relating in any way to any agreement entered into by the Debt
Financing Sources in connection with the Debt Financing Commitments or the performance
thereof, in any forum other than the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New
York, or, if under applicable law exclusive jurisdiction is vested in the Federal courts, the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York (and appellate courts thereof). The
parties hereto further agree that all of the provisions of Section 10.5(c) relating to waiver of jury
trial shall apply to any action, cause of action, claim, cross-claim or third party claim referenced
in this paragraph.

Section 10.6  Specific Performance. The parties hereto recognize and agree that
if for any reason any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with
their specific terms or are otherwise breached, immediate and irreparable harm or damage would
be caused for which money damages would not be an adequate remedy. Accordingly, each party
hereto agrees that, in addition to any other available remedies, each party shall be entitled to seek
to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement or to seek an injunction
restraining any breach or violation or threatened breach or violation of the provisions of this
Agreement without the necessity of posting a bond or other form of security. In the event that
any Action should be brought in equity to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, no party
shall allege, and each party hereto hereby waives the defense, that there is an adequate remedy at
law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, including in this Section 10.6,
Seller hereby acknowledges and agrees that it shall not have any right to enforce specifically the
obligation of Purchaser to effect the Closing, or otherwise consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby, in the event that the Purchaser Termination Fee is payable by Purchaser
pursuant to Section 8.2(a) hereof; provided that, Purchaser expressly acknowledges that nothing
contained in this sentence shall restrict Seller from enforcing specifically the obligations of
Purchaser set forth in the second sentence of Section 5.13(a) hereof.

Section 10.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed and delivered
(including by facsimile or other electronic transmission) in one or more counterparts, and each of
which when executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same agreement. The facsimile or other electronic transmission of any
signed original counterpart of this Agreement shall be deemed to be the delivery of an original
counterpart of this Agreement.

Section 10.8 Entire Agreement; Severability. (a) This Agreement, the
Company Disclosure Schedule, the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule and the Confidentiality
Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both oral and written,
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof.

(b)  Ifany term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or
incapable of being enforced by any Law, Governmental Order or public policy, all other terms
and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect for so long as
the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is not
affected in any manner materially adverse to any party hereto. Upon such determination that any
term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties
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hereto as closely as possible in an acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement are consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible.

Section 10.9 Disclosure Schedules. There may be included in the Company
Disclosure Schedule or the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule (collectively, the “Disclosure
Schedules™) items and information, the disclosure of which is not required either in response to
an express disclosure requirement contained in a provision hereof or as an exception to one or
more representations or warranties contained in Article III or Article IV or to one or more
covenants contained in Article V. Inclusion of any items or information in the Disclosure
Schedules shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgment or agreement that any such item or
information (or any non-disclosed item or information of comparable or greater significance) is
“material” or is reasonably likely to result in a Company Material Adverse Effect or to affect the
interpretation of such term for purposes of this Agreement. The Disclosure Schedules set forth
items of disclosure with specific reference to the particular Section or subsection of this
Agreement to which the items or information in such Disclosure Schedule relates; provided,
however, that any information set forth in one section or subsection pertaining to representations,
warranties and covenants of the Company Disclosure Schedule or the Purchaser Disclosure
Schedule, as the case may be, shall be deemed to apply to each other section or subsection
thereof pertaining to representations, warranties and covenants to the extent that it is reasonably
apparent that it is relevant to such other sections or subsections of the Company Disclosure
Schedule or the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be, provided further, that no
information contained in the Disclosure Schedules shall apply to, or be disclosed against, the
representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.8(b) hereof unless expressly set forth in
Section 3.8(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule (without cross reference).

Section 10.10 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in Section 5.5
and Section 5.13(c) that is intended to benefit the indemnified parties to the extent stated in
Section 5.5 and Section 5.13(c) only, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing
herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person other than Seller,
Purchaser and their respective successors and permitted assigns, any legal or equitable right,
benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement; provided that
the Debt Financing Sources shall be express third party beneficiaries hereof with respect to
Section 8.2(a) and Section 10.5.

Section 10.11 Waiver of Damages. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein or provided for under any applicable Law or Governmental Order, except with
respect to any such damages sought by third parties against Purchaser, Seller or Parent, no party
hereto will, in any event, be liable to any other party hereto, either in contract or in tort, for any
punitive damages or any damages or Losses resulting from the transactions contemplated hereby
in excess of the sum of the Purchase Price plus the amounts payable by Purchaser pursuant to
Section 5.7(a) hereof.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS THIS PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

E.ON US I}\.%VESTMENTS CORP.

By: /WJ ,]b\/— 2}’ /—ZB%E*L&:":‘"M

Name: FE( Ja Porus en

PPL CORPORATION
By:

Name:

Title:

E.ON AG (solely for purposes of Article VI,
Article 1X and Article X hereof)

By: I@“L—\ QQ ’ {?/ﬁ

Name: Heo o

Title: y € A

[Signature Page to Purchase and Sale Agreement]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

E.ON US INVESTMENTS CORP.

By:
Name:
Title:
PPL CORPORATION

AN

. James H. Miller
i]e hairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

E.ON AG (solely for purposes of Article VI,
Article IX and Article X hereof)

By:

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Purchase and Sale Agreement)
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MUTUAL RELEASE
[], 201[0/1]

Reference is made to the Purchase and Sale Agreement (the
“Agreement”), dated as of April 28, 2010, by and between E.ON US Investments Corp., a
Delaware corporation (“Seller”), PPL Corporation, a Pennsylvania corporation
(“Purchaser”) and, solely for purposes of Article VI, Article IX and Article X of the
Agreement, E.ON AG, a German corporation (“Parent”), for the sale of all of the issued
and outstanding limited liability company interests of E.ON U.S. LLC, a Kentucky
limited liability company (the “Company”). Capitalized terms used but not defined
herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Parent, for and on behalf of itself and for and on behalf of its Affiliates
(other than the Company and its Subsidiaries), hereby voluntarily and knowingly acquits,
releases and discharges each of the Company and its Subsidiaries from any and all
disputes, claims, controversies, demands, rights, obligations, liabilities, actions and
causes of action of every kind and nature (“Claims”) that Parent or any of its Affiliates
(other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) have as of the date hereof or that arise in
the future from events or occurrences taken place prior to or as of the date hereof, but
excluding any Claims arising out of or relating to any obligations under any of the
provisions of the Agreement, any agreements entered into in connection with the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement or relating to allegations of fraud.

For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Company, for and on behalf of itself and for and on behalf of each of
its Subsidiaries, hereby voluntarily and knowingly acquits, releases and discharges each
of Parent and its Affiliates (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) from any and all
Claims that the Company and its Subsidiaries have as of the date hereof or that arise in
the future from events or occurrences taken place prior to or as of the date hereof, but
excluding any Claims arising out of or relating to any obligations under any of the
provisions of the Agreement or any agreements entered into in connection with the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement or relating to allegations of fraud.

This Mutual Release shall become effective contemporaneously with the
Closing and shall have no effect unless and until the Closing occurs. This Mutual
Release may not be changed orally. This Mutual Release may be executed and delivered
(including by facsimile or other electronic transmission) in one or more counterparts, and
each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

THIS MUTUAL RELEASE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES THEREOF.

[The next page is the signature page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, each of Parent and the Company has caused
this Mutual Release to be duly executed on the date first written above.

E.ON AG

By

Name:
Title:

E.ONU.S.LLC

By

Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT B TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

Set forth below in Part I are commitments that Purchaser agrees to offer to make to the
Kentucky Public Service Commission (the “Commission”) as contemplated by Sections
5.2 and 5.14 of the Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of April 28, 2010 (the
“Purchase and Sale Agreement”) by and between E.ON US Investments Corp., PPL
Corporation (“Purchaser”). and, solely for purposes of Article VI, Article IX and Article
X thereof, E.ON AG in connection with Purchaser’s proposed acquisition of E.ON U.S.
LLC (the “Company”) (the “Purchase™). Purchaser also agrees to address potential
market power issues and other issues that may arise in any proceeding before the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in the manner set forth in Part II below.

Imposition of any of these terms, conditions, liabilities, obligations, commitments or
sanctions on Purchaser and its Subsidiaries or the Company and its Subsidiaries by the
Commission or any other Governmental or Regulatory Authority and any resulting effect
thereof will not be considered for any purpose in determining whether any such terms,
conditions, liabilities, obligations, commitments or sanctions would have a material and
adverse effect for purposes of Section 7.2(c).

Capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein have the meanings assigned to them
in the Purchase and Sale Agreement.

PART 1

COMMITMENT

1. Except to the extent expressly superseded by KRS 278.2201 through 278.2219, the
jurisdiction of the FERC or the findings and conditions set forth in this Order, Purchaser,
the Company, Louisville Gas and Electric Company (“LG&E”), and Kentucky Utilities
Company (“KU”) shall adhere to the conditions described in the Commission’s Orders in
Case Nos. 10296, 89-374, 97-300, 2000-095, and 2001-104. The conditions, restated in
Appendix B to the Commission’s May 15, 2000 Order in Case No. 2000-095 and
incorporated by reference into the Commission’s August 6, 2001 Order in Case No.
2001-104, concern protection of utility resources, monitoring the holding company and
the subsidiaries, and reporting requirements.

2. Purchaser commits that the books and records of the Company, LG&E, and KU will
be kept in Kentucky.

3.

(a) Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit not to assert that the FERC’s
jurisdiction under PUHCA 2005 legally preempts the Commission from
disallowing recovery in retail rates for the cost of goods and services that LG&E
or KU obtain from or transfer to an associate, affiliate, or subsidiary in the same
holding-company system. However, LG&E and KU shall retain the right to assert
that the charges are reasonable and appropriate.

(b) The Commission or its agents may audit the accounting records of Purchaser and
its subsidiaries that are the bases for charges to LG&E or KU, to determine the
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reasonableness of allocation factors used by Purchaser to assign costs to LG&E or
KU and amounts subject to allocation or direct charges. Purchaser agrees to
cooperate fully with such Commission audits.

(c) Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU will comply with all applicable
Commission statutes and regulations regarding affiliated transactions, including
timely filing of applications and reports.

(d) Each of LG&E and KU will file on an annual basis an affiliated interest report
including an organization chart, narrative description of each affiliate, revenue for
each affiliate and transactions with each affiliate.

(e) Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU will not cross-subsidize between the
regulated and non-regulated businesses, and shall comply with the Commission’s
applicable orders and rules with respect to such matters.

Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU will provide the Commission access to all
books of account, as well as all documents, data, and records of their affiliated interests,
which pertain to transactions between LG&E or KU, on the one hand, and their affiliated
interests, on the other hand, or which are otherwise relevant to the business of LG&E or
KU, as the case may be.

4. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to provide the Commission with
notice 30 days prior to any FERC filing that proposes new allocation factors. The notice
need not be in precise form of the final filing but will include, to the extent information is
available, a description of the proposed factors and the reasons supporting such factors.
Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to make a good faith attempt to resolve
differences, if any, with the Commission in advance of filing with the FERC.

5. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that the Purchase will have no
impact on the base rates or the operation of the fuel adjustment clauses, environmental
surcharges, gas supply clause, demand side management clause, of LG&E or KU.

6. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to obtaining Commission approval
prior to the transfer of any LG&E or KU Property, Plant and Equipment asset with an
original book value in excess of $10 million.

7. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that the Power Supply System
Agreement and the Transmission Coordination Agreement between KU and LG&E shall
remain in effect and that any proposed amendment thereto be submitted to the
Commission for its review 30 days in advance of filing the amendment with the FERC.

8. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E , and KU commit that the Company, its subsidiaries,
LG&E and KU, and their ratepayers, directly or indirectly, shall not incur any additional
costs, liabilities, or obligations in conjunction with the Purchase (other than except in
connection with the repayment and refinancing of Closing Indebtedness in accordance
with its terms) including, but not limited to, the following:

(a) The Company, LG&E, and KU shall not incur any additional indebtedness, issue
any additional securities, or pledge any assets of LG&E or KU to finance any part
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of the purchase price paid by Purchaser for the Company equity interest; provided
however that the Company, LG&E and KU shall be permitted to take any of the
foregoing actions in connection with the repayment and refinancing of Closing
Indebtedness.

(b) The payment for the Company equity interest shall be recorded on Purchaser’s
books, not the books of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(c) Neither (1) the premium paid by Purchaser for the Company equity interest, as
well as any other associated costs, or (ii) losses from the unwind and termination
of the lease agreement with Big Rivers shall be “pushed down” to LG&E or KU.

(d) All transaction-related costs, including the cost of purchase and the premium paid
for the Company’s equity, shall be excluded for rate-making purposes and from
the rates of LG&E and KU.

(e) In future rate cases LG&E and KU shall not seek a higher rate of return on equity
than would have been sought if no acquisition had occurred.

(f) The accounting and rate-making treatments of LG&E’s and KU’s excess deferred
income taxes shall not be affected by the Purchase.

(g) The Company, LG&E and KU will each maintain its own corporate credit rating
as well as ratings for long-term debt from Moody’s and S&P or their successor
rating agencies.

(h) No costs of the Company Advisory Board shall be borne by LG&E or KU.

(i) No change in control payments will be allocated to the ratepayers of LG&E and
KU.

() If early termination costs are incurred for any senior management of the
Company, none of these costs will be allocated to LG&E or KU.

No generation assets located within Kentucky will be sold to finance this or any
subsequent merger or acquisition without prior Commission authorization.

9. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU commit that the corporate officers of the
Company, LG&E, and KU shall maintain their current titles and responsibilities as
officers unless and until otherwise determined by either of their respective Boards of
Directors. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU will maintain the highest level of
management experience within the Company, LG&E, and KU, and will provide an
opportunity to broaden that experience by exchanging positions with other managers in
Purchaser’s organization.

10. Purchaser commits to taking an active and ongoing role in managing and operating
LG&E and KU in the interests of customers, employees, and the Commonwealth of
Kentucky, and to take the lead in enhancing LG&E’s and KU’s relationship with the
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Commission, with state and local government, and with other community interests,
including, but not limited to, meetings between Purchaser’s chief executive and the
Commission at least twice a year.

11. Purchaser commits to maintaining a sound and constructive relationship with those
labor organizations that may represent certain employees of the Company, LG&E, and
KU; to remain neutral respecting an individual’s right to choose whether or not to be a
member of a trade union; to continue to recognize the unions that currently have
collective bargaining agreements with LG&E; and to honor those agreements.

12. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to advising the Commission at
least annually on the adoption and implementation of best practices at both LG&E and
KU following the consummation of the Purchase.

13. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to provide such information as the
Commission may request regarding the implementation of best practices, customer
service, reliability, and safety.

14. LG&E and KU acknowledge that in any Commission proceeding involving safety
violations by employees of independent contractors, LG&E and KU shall be responsible
for the acts of the employees of the independent contractors to the same extent that
LG&E and KU are responsible for the acts of their own employees.

15. Purchaser commits to develop, with the assistance of an external consultant, a
retention and incentive program for the Company, LG&E, and KU managers, to be
implemented following the consummation of the Purchase. The plan will be developed
with the goal of being finalized within 120 days of the date of the Commission order
approving the Purchase.

16. Purchaser commits that no planned workforce reductions in the Company’s,
LG&E’s, or KU’s employees will be made as a result of the Purchase.

17. If new debt or equity in excess of $100 million is issued by the Company, the
Company commits to notify the Commission as soon as practicable prior to the issuance.

18. Purchaser commits to notifying the Commission subsequent to its board approval and
as soon as practicable following any public announcement of (a) any acquisition of a
regulated or non-regulated business representing 5 percent or more of Purchaser’s
capitalization; or (b) the change in effective control or acquisition of any material part of
or all of the Company, LG&E or KU, by any other firm, whether by merger,
combination, transfer of stock or assets.

19. Purchaser commits to providing an annual report to the Commission detailing the
Company’s proportionate share of Purchaser’s total assets, total operating revenues,
operating and maintenance expenses, and number of employees.

20. Purchaser commits to notifying the Commission 30 days prior to LG&E or KU, as
the case may be, paying any dividend or transferring more than 5 percent of the retained
earnings of LG&E or KU, respectively to the Company or Purchaser.

21. Purchaser commits to filing with the Commission a copy of its annual reports and its
quarterly interim reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-Q filed with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission.

22. Purchaser commits to filing with the Commission such additional financial reports as
the Commission, from time to time, reasonably determines to be necessary for it to
effectively regulate the operation of LG&E and KU.
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23. LG&E and KU will file with the Commission for informational purposes copies of
any applications that (a) are filed with any other state public utility commission which
has jurisdiction over Purchaser or any of its affiliates, and (b) relate to a money pool
arrangement or capital contributions to LG&E or KU.

24. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to notifying the Commission 30
days prior to making any capital contribution to LG&E or KU and to provide the
accounting entries reflecting the capital contribution within 60 days after the close of the
month in which the contribution was made.

25. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that customers will experience no
adverse change in utility service due to changes, if any, related to LG&E Services, Inc.

26. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to: a) adequately funding and
maintaining LG&E’s and KU’s transmission and distribution systems; b) complying with
all Kentucky laws and all Commission regulations and statutes; and c) supplying LG&E
and KU customers’ service needs.

27. When implementing best practices, Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU
commit to taking into full consideration the related impacts on the levels of customer
service and customer satisfaction, including any negative impacts resulting from
workforce reductions.

28. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that they will minimize, to the
extent possible, any negative impacts on levels of customer service and customer
satisfaction resulting from workforce reductions.

29. LG&E and KU commit to periodically filing the various reliability and
service quality measurements they currently maintain, to enable the Commission
to monitor their commitment that reliability and service quality will not suffer

as a result of the Purchase

30. The Company, LG&E, and KU commit to notifying the Commission in writing 30
days prior to any material changes in their participation in funding for research and
development. Material changes include, but are not limited to, any change in funding
equal to or greater than 5 percent of any individual company’s previous year’s budget for
research and development. The written notification shall include an explanation and the
reasons for the change in policy. This Commitment No. 30 does not apply to LG&E’s
and KU’s participation in or commitments to FutureGen.

31. Purchaser commits to maintaining the Company’s level of commitment to high
quality utility service, and will fully support maintaining the LG&E and KU track record
for superior service quality.

32. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that LG&E and KU shall continue
to operate through regional offices with local service personnel and field crews.

33. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that local customer service offices
will not be closed as a result of the proposed transaction and that, if and when local
customer service offices may be closed to achieve world class best practices, Purchaser,
the Company LG&E and KU will take into account the impact of the closures on
customer service.

34. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to maintaining the respective
headquarters of each of the Company, LG&E and KU in Kentucky for a period of 15
years following the consummation of the Purchase. KU’s headquarters shall be
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maintained in Lexington, Kentucky; and the Company’s and LG&E’s headquarters shall
be maintained in Louisville, Kentucky.

35. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit to dedicating LG&E’s and KU’s
existing and future generating facilities to the requirements of LG&E’s and KU’s existing
and future native load customers.

36. Purchaser and the Company commit that LG&E and KU shall maintain a substantial
level of involvement in community activities, through annual charitable and other
contributions, on a level comparable to or greater than the participation levels
experienced prior to the date of the merger. Purchaser commits to maintaining and
supporting the relationship between LG&E and KU with the communities that each
serves for a period of 10 years from the Purchase.

37. Purchaser and the Company commit that the Purchase will have no effect or impact
on KU’s contractual relationships with either its municipal customers or Berea College

38. Purchaser and the Company commit that the Purchase shall have no effect or impact
on various agreements associated with the unwind and termination of the lease agreement
with Big Rivers.

39. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that within 60 days after the
closing of the Purchase, the Applicants will file with the Commission a petition setting
forth a formal analysis of any potential synergies and benefits from the Purchase and a
proposed methodology for allotting an appropriate share of the potential synergies and
benefits to LG&E’s and KU’s ratepayers.

40. Purchaser commits to maintaining LG&E’s and KU’s pro-active stance on
developing economic opportunities in Kentucky and supporting economic development,
and social and charitable activities, throughout LG&E’s and KU’s service territories.

41. Purchaser commits that for as long as it owns, controls, or manages LG&E or KU,
Purchaser shall endeavor to have an individual resident of Kentucky on Purchaser’s
Board of Directors. Purchaser shall commence a search for such director following the
Purchase. Purchaser shall have sole discretion in selecting qualified candidates and
determining which individual is the best qualified for nomination.

42. Purchaser commits that the Company’s Board of Managers (or similar body) shall
consist of at least three members, one of whom shall be the then-current chief executive
officer of the Company.

43. Purchaser commits to review with LG&E and KU management their current policies
and practices with respect to low-income customers to determine whether policies and
practices more sympathetic to the needs of such customers would be appropriate. In
addition, Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that the current policies for
low-income customers will not change as a result of the Purchase.

44, Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that the Company shall hold 100
percent of the common stock of LG&E and KU and that the Company shall not transfer
any of that stock without prior Commission approval even if the transfer is pursuant to a
corporate reorganization as defined in KRS 278.020(6)(b).

45. KU will maintain a contact person in Lexington to respond to special needs in the
Lexington area.

46. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that when budgets, investments,
dividend policies, projects, and business plans are being considered by Purchaser’s Board
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for the Kentucky business, at a minimum, the CEOs of LG&E and KU or their designees
must be present to offer a Kentucky perspective to the decision and be permitted to
participate in any debates on the issues.

47. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E, and KU commit that all corporate officers of
LG&E and KU shall reside within Kentucky, including the Louisville metropolitan area,
subject to a 2-month relocation allowance for newly appointed officers. This
commitment will remain in effect for a period of 15 years following the consummation of
the Purchase.

48. As part of their commitment to maintaining the corporate headquarters of the
Company in Louisville, Kentucky, Purchaser and the Company commit that these
corporate headquarters will include the corporate management personnel of the
Company. Further, Purchaser and the Company commit that the CEO and subordinate
officers of the Company shall reside in Kentucky, including the Louisville metropolitan
area. This commitment will remain in effect for a period of 15 years following the
consummation of the Purchase.

49. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU commit that if any of their subsidiaries or
business units considers a potential renewable energy project in Kentucky, the subsidiary
or business unit will inform KU and LG&E of the potential project and will allow KU
and LG&E to make a reasonable business judgment on whether to pursue the project as a
generation resource for their customers.

50. Any diversified holdings and investments (e.g., non-utility business or foreign
utilities) of Purchaser following the closing of the Purchase will not be held by LG&E or
KU or a subsidiary of either LG&E or KU.

51. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU will work with the Governor of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky and state agencies designated by the Governor to promote
economic development in Kentucky.

52. Purchaser, the Company, LG&E and KU agree to consult with the Governor of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky and state agencies designated by the Governor regarding
clean coal technologies and to consult on the development of programs by Kentucky that
qualify for federal funding for research and development and projects utilizing clean coal
technologies.

PART 11

53. Purchaser agrees that it shall use its reasonable best efforts to address market power
concerns of FERC, the DOJ and the FTC through mitigation measures that do not require
(a) participation by LG&E or KU in an RTO, (b) divestiture of operating assets of LG&E
or KU, or (¢) LG&E or KU to decline to use or benefit from the use of their generating
facilities for the purpose of serving their native load customers.

54. Purchaser acknowledges that wholesale customers should be held harmless.




COMPANY DISCILOSURE SCHEDULE

This Company Disclosure Schedule is being delivered by E.ON US Investments
Corp., a Delaware corporation, pursuant to that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement (the
“Agreement”), dated as of April 28, 2010, by and between E.ON US Investments Corp., a
Delaware corporation (“Seller”), and PPL. Corporation, a Pennsylvania corporation (“Purchaser”)
and, solely for purposes of Article VI, Article IX and Article X of the Agreement, E.ON AG
(“Parent”), a German corporation. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the
same meanings given to them in the Agreement.

There may be included in this Company Disclosure Schedule items and
information, the disclosure of which is not required either in response to an express disclosure
requirement contained in a provision of the Agreement or as an exception to one or more
representations or warranties or covenants contained in the Agreement. Inclusion of any items or
information in this Company Disclosure Schedule shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgment
or agreement that any such item or information (or any non-disclosed item or information of
comparable or greater significance) is material or is reasonably likely to result in a Company
Material Adverse Effect or to affect the interpretation of such terms for purposes of the
Agreement.

No part of this Company Disclosure Schedule shall constitute or be interpreted or
construed as an admission or characterization by the Seller, the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, any Company Joint Ventures or any Affiliate, regarding any obligation to any third
party or any liability under any federal, state or local Law, including but not limited to whether
the Seller, the Company, any Subsidiary, any Company Joint Venture or other affiliate is in
violation of, or has ever violated, any federal, state or local Laws, rules or regulations or is in
default of any Contract.

This Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth items of disclosure with specific
reference to the particular section or subsection of the Agreement to which the items or
information in this Company Disclosure Schedule relates; provided, however, that any
information set forth in one section or subsection pertaining to representations, warranties and
covenants of this Company Disclosure Schedule shall be deemed to apply to each other
section or subsection of the Agreement to the extent that it is reasonably apparent that it is
relevant to such other section or subsection; provided, further, that no information contained
herein shall apply to, or be disclosed against, the representations and warranties set forth in
Section 3.8(b) of the Agreement unless expressly set forth in Section 3.8(b) of this Company
Disclosure Schedule (without cross reference).

The table of contents and headings have been inserted in this Company Disclosure
Schedule for convenience of reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or
interpretation of this Company Disclosure Schedule or the Agreement.
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Section 1.1(a)

Certain Excluded Company Employees

1. Brian Peers, an E.ON UK employee currently working with the Company in the U.S.

2. Andreas Fasshauer, an E.ON Energy Trading employee currently working with the
Company in the U.S.

3. Juliane Dittrich, an E.ON Edis AG employee currently working with the Company in
the U.S.
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Section 1.1(b)
Knowledge

1. Victor A. Staffieri
2. John R. McCall
3. S. Bradford Rives
4. Paul W. Thompson
3. Chris Hermann
6. Ronald Miller (for purposés of Section 3.9(f) (Taxes) only)
7. John N. Voyles, Jr. (for purposes of Section 3.16 (Environmental) only)
8. Dr. Frank Possmeier

9. Alan Bevan
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Section 1.1(c)
Closing Indebtedness

($ Millions)

Estimated Closing
Indebtedness*

Short-term debt-affiliated company

Short-term debt-third party

Current portion of long-term debt-affiliated
company

Current portion of long-term debt—third party

Notes payable — affiliated company

Long-term debt — affiliated company

Long-term debt — third party

Capitalized lease obligations

Total Debt

Plus: Accrued and unpaid interest

Plus: Any prepayment penalties or "make
whole" premiums that are due and payable in
accordance with the terms of such borrowings
upon prepayment thereof and that are unpaid

Closing Indebtedness

* To be prepared in accordance with Sections 2.3 and 2.4.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Section 3.3
Non-Contravention

Financing and Debt Arrangements’

N

Notes or other instruments evidencing debt or financing outstanding and issued pursuant to the agreements
listed on this Section 3.3 of this Company Disclosure Schedule are deemed incorporated for purposes of
this Section 3.3 of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

4.
NY 12528:446032.6




ﬁﬁ-_ 5
3



NY12528:446032.6






NY12528:446032.6



Insurance Arrangements

The following insurance contracts are carried by E.ON AG and will no longer cover the
Company or its Subsidiaries following the Closing.
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Information Technology Arrangements

As affiliates of Seller, the Company and its Subsidiaries currently have access to third-party
intellectual property and information technology rights, benefits and resources via certain master
agreements, global licenses, leases, purchasing agreements or similar contractual arrangements
either (i) entered into by Seller or its Subsidiaries (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries)
or, (ii) in some cases, by Company and its Subsidiaries which access, in each case, may be
altered or terminated as a result of the consummation of the Purchase or the other transactions
contemplated by the Agreement. These include matters relating to the following vendors,

softwares, systems, data bases or applications. The relevant contracts in respect of such IT
arrangements are set out below:
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Section 3.4
Governmental Approvals and Filings

FERC approval under §203 of the Federal Power Act is required for disposition of the
Company’s 20% indirect interest in Electric Energy, Inc. The filing with FERC referred to in
Section 3.4(ii) of the Agreement will address the Company’s indirect interest in Electric Energy,
Inc.

-12-
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Section 3.6(b)
Capitalization

1. See Exhibit 3.6(b) to this Company Disclosure Schedule.

-13-
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Section 3.6(c)
Capitalization

Name of Enﬁty

Cdmpaily’s Interest in Entity

Description of the Principal

‘1 Line(s) of Busingss conducted by

Entity

Electric Energy, Inc.

EEI has the following wholly-owned

subsidiaries:

e  Midwest Electric Power Inc.

* Joppa and Eastern Railroad
Company

e Met South, Inc.

e  Massac Enterprises LLC
(99%-owned.)

Kentucky Utilities Company: 20%

Operator of a natural gas-fired and a
coal-fired plant in Joppa, Illinois. It
sells the power output to an affiliate
of its majority owners.

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation
(“OVEC™)
OVEC has the following subsidiary:
e Indiana-Kentucky Electric
Corporation (“IKEC”)

Kentucky Utilities Company: 2.5%
Louisville Gas and Electric
Company: 5.63%

Operator of two coal-fired plants
generating power in the Ohio River
Valley region. It sells the power
output to its shareholders.

DHALLC

Company: 11.5%

Loan fund to promote local housing
development. The Company
provided contribution as part of
community efforts.

Airborne Pollution Control, Inc.

LG&E Power Inc.: 5.62%

Pollution-control technologies
vendor (Company served as a host
of a pilot project and received equity
interest following Airborne’s
financial restructuring).

The company is a member of FutureGen Industrial Alliance, Inc. and Western Kentucky Carbon
Storage Foundation Inc., both non-stock, non-profit companies, which shall be deemed not to be
Company Joint Ventures for the purposes of the Agreement.

NY12528:446032.6
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Section 3.7
Company Financial Statements

1. See Exhibit 3.7 to this Company Disclosure Schedule.

-15-
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Section 3.7(a)

Financial Information

1. E.ON U.S. Foundation Inc., a non-profit entity, is not included in the consolidated
financial statements.

-16-
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Section 3.7(b)

Financial Information

E.ON U.S. Foundation Inc., a non-profit entity, is not included in the consolidated financial
statements.

-17-
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Section 3.7(c)
Financial Information

1. Some invoices from coal suppliers contain price adjustments for federal mine safety
compliance costs. The Company has retained a consultant to review such price
adjustments. The Company does not accrue such adjustments until the consultant has
performed its review and determined how much of each such adjustment should be
paid. Approximately $1.0 million requested by coal suppliers was not accrued by
LG&E and KU at December 31, 2009. Approximately $0.7 million requested by coal
suppliers was not accrued by WKEC at December 31, 2009.

2. See Sections 3.9(f), 3.10, 3.11, 3.13(b), 3.15(b) and 3.16 of this Company Disclosure
Schedule.

-18-
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Section 3.8(a)

Conduct in the Company Ordinary Course of Business

1. See Section 3.8(c) of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

-19-
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Section 3.8(b)

Absence of Company Material Adverse Effect

1. Goodwill Impairment. In connection with the execution of, and transactions
contemplated by, the Agreement, the 2009 Company Financial Statements show a
goodwill impairment calculated in accordance with GAAP.

220-
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10.  ITO Exit. The Company has filed an application with FERC to terminate its ITO
arrangements with SPP and proposed revised ITO and other OATT operating
arrangements to the FERC. This item is disclosed in this Section 3.8(b) solely to the
extent of the greater of (i) the reserve recorded in the 2009 Company Financial
Statements relating to such matter, if any, and (i) such Liabilities relating to such
matter as are in existence of the date hereof. Any increase in the Liabilities related
thereto after the date hereof shall not be deemed disclosed in this Section 3.8(b).

12.  EPA Information Requests. In September 2000, U.S.EPA sent information requests to
the Company pursuant to Section 114 of the Clean Air Act requesting information on
work conducted on Cane Run Units 4-6, Mill Creek Units 1-4, Brown Units 1-3,
Ghent Units 1-4, Green River Units 4-5, Tyrone Unit 5, and Pineville Unit 3. In
August 2007, EPA sent an additional Section 114 information request seeking

20
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information about work conducted on Mill Creek Unit 4, Ghent Unit 2, and Trimble
County Unit 1. The ultimate outcome or consequences of these information requests
cannot be determined at this time. This item is disclosed in this Section 3.8(b) solely
to the extent of the greater of (i) the reserve recorded in the 2009 Company Financial
Statements relating to such matter, if any, and (ii) such Liabilities relating to such
matter as are in existence of the date hereof. Any increase in the Liabilities related
thereto after the date hereof shall not be deemed disclosed in this Section 3.8(b).

23~
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Section 3.3(c)

Conduct in the Company Ordinary Course of Business

1. Kentucky Base Rate Cases. In January 2010: (a) LG&E filed an application with the
KPSC requesting increases in annual electric base rates of approximately 12%, or $95
million, and in annual gas base rates of approximately 8%, or $23 million and (b) KU
filed an application requesting increases in annual base electric base rates of
approximately 12%, or $135 million. The requested rates have been suspended until
August 2010, at which time they may be put into effect subject to refund. A hearing
in the proceeding is scheduled for June 2010.

2. Virginia Rate Case. In June 2009, KU filed an application with the VSCC requesting
an increase in electric base rates for its Virginia jurisdictional customers. During
December 2009, KU and the VSCC staff agreed to a stipulation and settlement
authorizing an annual base rate revenues increase of $11 million and a return on rate
base of 7.846% based on a 10.5% return on common equity. In March 2010, the
VSCC approved the stipulation, with rates to become effective in April 2010. In
connection with the stipulation, KU expects to refund approximately $1 million to
Virginia customers relating to certain interim rates received in excess of the final
increase amounts.

3. In February 2010, the Company filed with FERC a Network Integration Transmission
Service Agreement (“NITSA”) and Network Operating Agreement (“NOA”) for
service to Owensboro Municipal Utilities.

4, ITO Matters. As described in Section 5.1 of this Company Disclosure Schedule,
LG&E’s and KU’s current contract with Southwest Power Pool, Inc. to serve as
Independent Transmission Operator, is currently scheduled to terminate effective
September 1, 2010. The Company has applied to the FERC to allow the termination
of its ITO arrangements with SPP, perform the bulk of the functions internally and
assign certain functions to the Tennessee Valley Authority, its current Reliability
Coordinator. During 2010, the Company continued to pursue KPSC and FERC
approval proceedings relating to this matter. An KPSC approval order was received
in February 2010.

5. TEECRSG Reserve Sharing Agreement. During November 2009, certain Subsidiaries
of the Company entered into the TEECRSG Reserve Sharing Agreement in
replacement of the prior MCRSG contractual arrangements which expired at
December 31, 2009. The term of the new agreement commenced on January 1, 2010.

-24-
NY12528:446032.6




Inactive Subsidiaries. On February 26, 2010, the Company completed merger or
dissolution transactions involving the inactive subsidiaries KU Solutions Inc. and
E.ON U.S. Natural Gas Trading Inc.

10.

KPSC Storm Report. During late 2009 and 2010, LG&E and KU commenced certain
programs of various types in conjunction with a KPSC storm report presenting
recommendations to relevant Kentucky utilities. Efforts included enhanced
inspection, tracking, customer communications and other procedures, as well as
commencing certain construction enhancements.

13.

Comverge Thermostat. In 2010 LG&E and KU have undertaken a voluntary
replacement program for approximately 14,000 load control thermostats due to
concerns over overheating of thermostat components in a limited number of
thermostats. The thermostats are being replaced with non load control thermostats.
The cost of the replacement program is estimated at $2,000,000.00. As of

April 2010, approximately 11,900 thermostats have been replaced.

NY12528:446032.6
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Argentina Matters.

-26-
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Section 3.9(d)

Taxes

Waivers and Extensions:
1. Kentucky Sales/Use Tax extension for Louisville Gas and Electric Company. The
statute of limitations for the period of 1/1/05 through 12/31/05 has been extended
until February 20, 2011.

2. Kentucky Sales/Use Tax extension for WKE The statute of limitations for the period
of 1/1/05 through 12/31/05 has been extended until February 20, 2011.

3. See Section 3.9(f) of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

27
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Section 3.9(f)

Taxes

Audits:

2. Louisville Gas & Electric Company Sales/Use Tax audit: No assessment has been
received.

3. Western Kentucky Energy Corp Sales/Use Tax audit: No assessment has been
received.

4. LG&E Energy Marketing Kentucky Sales/Use Tax audit: No assessment has been
received.

5. E.ON US Services Inc. Kentucky Sales/Use Tax audit: No assessment has been
received.

8-
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Section 3.9(k)

Taxes

Closing Agreements:

To the best of the Company's knowledge and based on a diligent search of the Company's
records, the following closing agreements have been entered into within the last two years.

Federal

State

NY12528:446032.6



Deferred Intercompany Gain

-30-
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Section 3.9(m)

Taxes

Net Operating Loss Carryover (Federal) ..o,

Net Operating Loss Carryover (State/Kentucky).........coovvevirannnn.

Renewable Electricity Production Credit Carryover ...........c.ccoeeee.

Alternative Minimum Tax Credit Carryover.......cocovvennininnns

Credit for Increasing Research Activities Carryover...........ccceevees

Advanced Coal Credit.......ocoieiiiiieeeeeiiierreeeeeieeeesreosnreesesessessnssrnens

Foreign Tax Credit

NY12528:446032.6
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$976,017,393
$967,269,000
$11,414,492
$16,879,090
$11,898,000
$125,000,000

$7,205,741



Section 3.10
Litigation

Pending Litigation
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Threatened Litigation
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Regulatory Matters

Material Regulatory Matters pending before the Kentucky Public Service Commission

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

NY12528:446032.6

LG&E/KU: Consideration of the New Federal Standards of the EISA of 2007, case
number 2008-00408. Filed on November 13, 2009.

KU: Ice Storm 2009 (Regulatory Asset), request for accounting treatment of
expenses incurred, case number 2009-00174. Filed on April 30, 2009. KU has
requested recovery of these amounts over 5 years in conjunction with the base rate
increase application.

LG&E: Ice Storm 2009 (Regulatory Asset), request for accounting treatment of
expenses incurred, case number 2009-00175. Filed on April 30, 2009. LG&E has
requested recovery of these amounts over 5 years in conjunction with the base rate
increase application.

LG&E: Investigation (McCoy), contractor injury with alleged violations of NESC,
case number 2009-00210. Filed on June 19, 2009.

KU: FAC 6-Mth Review, routine 6 month review of Fuel Adjustment Clause
mechanism, case number 2009-00287. Filed on August 20, 2009.

LG&E: FAC: 6-Mth Review, routine 6 month review of Fuel Adjustment Clause
mechanism, case number 2009-00288. Filed on August 20, 2009.

KU: ECR 2-Yr Review, routine 6 month review of Environmental Cost Recovery
(ECR) mechanism, case number 2009-00310. Filed on August 18, 2009.

LG&E: ECR 2-Yr Review, routine 6 month review of Environmental Cost Recovery
(ECR) mechanism, case number 2009-00311. Filed on August 18, 2009.
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70.

71.

72.

73.

KU/ LG&E: Seeking confirmation of no CCN needed for construction of temporary
transmission lines associated with the Mill-Creek to Hardin County 345KV line, or in
the alternative seeking a CCN if KPSC determines CCN is required, case number
2009-00325. Filed on August 3, 2009.

KU/ LG&E: Application for TC2 Depreciation Rate, case number 2009-00329.
Filed on August 7, 2009. In December 2009, the KPSC issued an order authorizing
the proposed depreciation rates on an interim basis until such time as a final order is
issued.

KU/ LG&E: Application requesting annual increases in base electric and gas rates,
case numbers 2009-00548 and 2009-00549. Filed on January 29, 2010. See Section
3.8(c) of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

The Company’s wind power approval filing, filed on August 28, 2009 and currently
pending with the KPSC (Case No. 2009-00353).

Material Regulatory Matters pending before the Virginia State Corporation Commission

74.

75.

76.

77.

KU/ODP: Cost-Effective Energy Conservation, general administrative case seeking
information on energy efficiency and conservation, case number PUE-2009-00023.
Filed on May 4, 2009.

KU/ODP: Rate Case, request for change in base rates, $12.2 million based on 12%
ROE, case number PUE-2009-00029. Filed on June 3, 2009. Order issued in
March 2010 approving settlement for $11 million annual increase and other
components. See Section 3.8(c) of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

KU/ODP: IRP, initial filing for Virginia, case number PUE-2009-00062. Filed on
July 1, 2009.

KU/ODP: Administrative case seeking comments on whether and how to establish
pilot programs under which certain customers that generate renewable energy may
purchase electric power from, and sell electric power to, participating utilities at
dynamic rates, case number PUE-2009-00084. Filed on August 19, 2009.

Regulatory Matters pending before the FERC and Transmission-related matters

78.

79.

KU: Disputed rates relating to de-pancaking issues, for KU transmission service to
EKPC, covers period 11/02 — 9/06, case number ER02-2560-000. Filed on
September 18, 2002.

In re: Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. (“MISO”) Revenue
Sufficiency Guarantee (“RSG”) Proceedings, Docket Nos. EC06-4-000 and ER06-
20-000. In November 2008, the FERC issued orders in industry-wide proceedings
relating to MISO RSG calculation and resettlement procedures. Various subsequent
FERC orders have altered formulas and principles to calculate certain RSG charges
for various periods of time. The FERC proceedings are not yet completed.

-44-
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80.

&1.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

In re: Mandatory Reliability Standards. Since June 2007, LG&E and KU have filed
certain self-reports to SERC relating to potential violations of reliability standards.
Settlements regarding the self-reports for standards EOP-008-0 and FAC-001-0 were
approved in FERC Docket NP09-2-000. LG&E and KU and SERC have completed a
settlement agreement for $115,000 regarding standards FAC-009-1, FAC-008-1,
PRC-005-1 (two submissions), and VAR-002-1a which settlement is awaiting NERC
and FERC approval. In December 2009, KU and LG&E submitted an unrelated self-
report relating to VAR-002-1a. In April 2010, LG&E and KU submitted a self-report
regarding potential violations of standard CIP-004.

KU/LG&E: Order 890-A and related compliance filings. KU/LG&E and SPP (ITO)
compliance with Order 890. Attachment K (OA08-27-001, OA08-27-002 and OA08-
27-004); Schedule 11 (ER10-295-000); SIS Studies and SA’s and ER-09-1643-001).

KU: Municipal rate case, moving KU municipals to formula based rate, case number
ER08-1588-000. September 28, 2008.

LG&E: Gas Rate proceedings, proposed Texas Gas Pipeline rate changes, case
number RP09-194-000 RP09-505-000. Filed on December 31, 2008.

KU/LG&E: Network service agreements with Paducah and Princeton, case number
ER09-759-000, ER09-759-001, ER09-759-002 and ER09-759-003. Filed on
February 25, 2009.

KU/LG&E: Network service agreements with OMU, case number ER10-298-000.
Filed on November 20, 2009.

KU/LG&E: ITO Exit Filed a joint application on October 10, 2009 with SPP to
terminate the ITO contract upon its expiration in September 2010. Case numbers
ER06-20-000, ER06-20-001, ER06-4-000 and ER10-191-000.

Cash Creek. KU and LG&E filed a joint request on April 9, 2010 with SPP and Cash
Creek to request a declaratory judgment regarding certain transmission
interconnection matters relating to the potential third-party Cash Creek generating
station. Case number EL 10-59-000.

Line Losses. A rate proceeding is currently pending with OMU and KMPA relating
to line loss calculations in rates. Case numbers ER-10-295-000, ER10-298-000, 001;
EL10-38-000.

De-pancaking. Kentucky Municipal Power Agency letter, dated April 16, 2010,
requesting credit amounts and/or revised crediting calculation methodologies going
forward for the shielding of pancaking of transmission costs, in relation to KMPA’s
rates for transmission services associated with LG&E/KU’s transmission systems.
The claims arise under 2006 agreements among KMPA and LG&E/KU entered into
during the Company’s withdrawal from the Midwest ISO during that year.
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90. De-pancaking. Owensboro Municipal Utilities letter, dated March 23, 2010,
requesting credit amounts and/or revised crediting calculation methodologies going
forward for the shielding of pancaking of transmission costs, in relation to OMU’s
rates for transmission services associated with the Company’s transmission systems.
The claims arise under 2006 agreements among OMU and LG&E/KU entered into
during the Company’s withdrawal from the Midwest ISO during that year.

Tax Credit Matter

91.  In March 2008, certain environmental and preservation groups filed suit in federal
court in North Carolina against the DOE and IRS claiming the investment tax credit
program was in violation of certain environmental laws and demanded relief,
including suspension or termination of the program and the tax credits issued
thereunder. In November 2008, the Court dismissed the suit; however, during 2008
and 2009, additional motions were filed, including amended complaints adding
additional claims and requests for injunctive relief, which motions are still before the
Court. The Company is not currently a party to this proceeding.

Matters related to Retirement and Savings Plans

92.  On May 20, 2009, the Department of Labor conducted an onsite review of E.ON U.S.
LLC Retirement Plan for ERISA compliance. After the onsite review, the
Department of Labor and the Company have exchanged correspondence. Pursuant to
a letter from the Department of Labor, dated March 1, 2010, the Department of Labor
will take no further action with respect to this matter.

Environmental Matters

94.  See Section 3.16 of this Company Disclosure Schedule
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Section 3.11

Compliance with Law and Governmental Authorizations; Regulation as a Utility

See Sections 3.10, 3.13(b) and 3.16 of this Company Disclosure Schedule.

KU and LG&E franchises. KU serves 162 cities under franchises. KU is in
discussions with the City of Elizabethtown regarding a new franchise. The city has
expressed interest in entering into a five year franchise. LG&E franchises serve 122
cities. Franchise agreements historically existed for 98 of these cities. LG&E gas
and/or electric franchise agreements typically provide a single payment upon the
commencement of the term of the agreement. Upon the expiration of such franchises,
no further payments are typically made to the city. However, LG&E does make an
inflation adjusted payment of in excess of $500,000.00 to the City of Louisville under
the gas franchise that expired in 2003. After the expiration of its franchise period, the
Company has a mere license to occupy a city’s public right of way which license may
be revoked by the city after reasonable notice. In 24 other cities, LG&E does not

have a franchise. LG&E anticipates initiating a process for obtaining franchises in
2010.

Prior to March 2007, LG&E did not make pipeline safety reports to the Indiana
Utility Regulatory Commission as provided in 170 IAC 5-3-5.

The Company has filed a corrective notice with the Federal Communications
Commission (“FCC”) relating to administrative errors in wireless frequency licenses
and ownership certifications. Specifically, counsel to the Company sent the FCC a
letter on March 25, 2010 describing the errors and steps taken to prevent future
errors.

SERC Mandatory Reliability Standards

5.

In re: Mandatory Reliability Standards. In June 2007, formerly voluntary
transmission reliability standards became mandatory, oversight of which is performed
by the SERC Reliability Corporation. In February and March of 2009, SERC
conducted a routine, periodic, limited audit of Louisville Gas and Electric Company
and Kentucky Utilities Company’s compliance with certain designated reliability
standards, which audit resulted in a finding of no material violations of the matters
covered. Separately, since June 2007, LG&E and KU have filed certain self-reports
to SERC relating to potential violations of reliability standards. Settlements
regarding the self-reports for standards EOP-008-0 and FAC-001-0 were approved in
FERC Docket NP09-2-000. LG&E and KU and SERC have completed a settlement
agreement regarding self-reports for standards FAC-009-1, FAC-008-1, PRC-005-1
(two submissions), and VAR-002, which settlement agreement is subject to FERC
and other approvals. In December 2009, LG&E and KU submitted an unrelated self-
report regarding potential violations of standard VAR-002. In April 2010, LG&E
and KU submitted a self-report regarding potential violations of standard CIP-004.
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Section 3.12(a)

Employee Benefits

Seller Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans
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“*” Denotes a benefit plan that has received a favorable opinion letter from the IRS National
Office.
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Section 3.12(b)

Employee Benefits

2. Item 21 of Section 5.1(a) of this Company Disclosure Schedule is hereby

incorporated by reference.
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Section 3.12(d)
Emplovee Benefits

1. On May 20, 2009, the Department of Labor conducted an onsite review of E.ON U.S.
LLC Retirement Plan for ERISA compliance. After the onsite review, the
Department of Labor and the Company have exchanged correspondence. Pursuant to
a letter from the Department of Labor, dated March 1, 2010, the Department of Labor
will take no further action with respect to this matter.

3. Ttem 1 of Section 3.12(f) of this Company Disclosure Schedule is hereby
incorporated by reference.

The following Company Benefit Plans provide for post-termination health and life benefits:
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Section 3.12(e)
Employee Benefit Plans

17.  Item 21 of Section 5.1(a) of this Company Disclosure Schedule is hereby
incorporated by reference.
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Section 3.12(f)

Employee Benefits
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Section 3.12(g)

Employee Benefits
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Section 3.13(a)

Labor

Labor Agreements
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Section 3.13(b)

Labor
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Section 3.14
Intellectual Property

61-
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Section 3.15(a)

Material Contracts

Leases and Reimbursement, Intercompany Loan Agreements, Credit Facilities and Pollution
Control Bond Loan Agreements

1. Items 1 through 71 of Section 3.3 are hereby incorporated by reference into this
Section 3.15(a).

Pollution Control Facilities
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E.ON U.S. Capital Corp. Medium-Term Note Documents
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WKE Termination Documents

Sale of Company’s Former Mid-stream Gas Gathering and Processing Activities
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Interest Rate Swap Agreements
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Power Marketing and Fuel Contracts

NY12528:446032.6



-68-

NY 12528:446032.6



NY12528:446032.6



o
=
=
- —
e
——
——
e
- ]

NY12528:446032.6



“71-

NY12528:446032.6



Section 3.15(b)

Material Contracts
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Section 3.16
Environment
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Section 114 Information Requests
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Section 3.17
Affiliate Transactions

1. Matters disclosed in Items 5 -79 in Section 3.3 of this Company Disclosure Schedule
are incorporated by reference in this Section 3.17 of this Company Disclosure

Schedule.

2. Matters disclosed in Exhibit 3.17 to this Schedule showing certain amounts paid or
received during 2009.

3. Matters disclosed in E.ON U.S. Services Inc.’s Annual Report for Service Companies

filed on FERC Form No. 60 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

4. Matters disclosed in Company’s IRS Form 1042, filed on or about March 15, 2010,
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

5. Seller charges the Company for the products and services described below:
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Section 3.18
Insurance

The Company has, in the Company Ordinary Course of Business, excluded the following
plants/former plants from its property insurance program

1. Canal Generating Station, Louisville, Kentucky

2. Cane Run Generating Station Units 1, 2, 3 and CT11, Louisville, Kentucky

3. Paddy’s Run Generating Station Units 11 and 12, Louisville, Kentucky

4. Tyrone Generating Station Units 1 and 2, Woodford County, Kentucky

5. Pineville Units 1, 2, and 3, Bell County, Kentucky

In accordance with industry practices, transmission and distribution assets are generally not
insured.

Insurance Policies

8-
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Section 3.19
Trading

1. The Company purchases coal and natural gas for its own use and for the use of
customers, but not for trading purposes.

2. The Company has exceeded its Stop Loss Limit for 2011, but has received a waiver
from Parent of this situation.

3. KU and LG&E may purchase, sell or transfer NOx and SOx allowance credits in the
ordinary course of business but they do not actively trade such allowances.
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Section 3.22
Credit Support Arrangements
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Letters of Credit Issued Under E.ON North America Inc. Facility

i
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Section 3.25
WKE Matters

WKE Unwind Transaction Documents:
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BREC Financing Agreements
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Smelter Agreements
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Closing Certificates

BREC:

§

I IV
I
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The Company:

Trustee:

Century:
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Legal Opinions
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Other Closing Documents

NY12528:446032.6




NY12528:446032.6




-110-
NY 12528:446032.6




NY12528:446032.6




-112-
NY 12528:446032.6




Knowledge persons

237. Victor A. Staffieri
238. Paul W. Thompson
239. Dr. Frank Possmeier
240. Alan Bevan

Indemnification Claims:

241. See Section 3.10, Items 19 and 20 of this Company Disclosure Schedule.
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Section 5.1(a)

Covenants

7. KPSC Storm Report. LG&E and KU have commenced and may continue certain
storm programs, of various types, in conjunction with a KPSC storm report
presenting recommendations to relevant Kentucky utilities. Efforts included

-115-
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enhanced inspection, tracking, customer communications and other procedures, as
well as commencing certain construction enhancements.

13.  ITO and RC Matters. LG&E’s and KU’s current contract with Southwest Power
Pool, Inc. to serve as Independent Transmission Operator, is currently scheduled to
terminate effective September 1, 2010. The Company has applied to the FERC to
allow the termination of its ITO arrangements with SPP, perform the bulk of the
functions internally and assign certain functions to the Tennessee Valley Authority,
its current Reliability Coordinator and may proceed in this matter.

14.  The contracts identified in Section 3.3 above may be modified, amended or
terminated in order to comply with Section 5.7 of the Agreement at or in advance of
Closing.
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19.  Virginia Rate Case. In June 2009, KU filed an application with the VSCC requesting
an increase in electric base rates for its Virginia jurisdictional customers. During
December 2009, KU and the VSCC staff agreed to a stipulation and settlement
authorizing an annual base rate revenues increase of $11 million and a return on rate
base of 7.846% based on a 10.5% return on common equity. In March 2010, the
VSCC approved the stipulation, with rates to become effective in April 2010. In
connection with the stipulation, KU expects to refund approximately $1 million to
Virginia customers relating to certain interim rates received in excess of the final
increase amounts.
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Period
1st Quarter, 2010
2nd Quarter, 2010
3rd Quarter, 2010
4th Quarter, 2010
1st Quarter, 2011
2nd Quarter, 2011
3rd Quarter, 2011

4th Quarter, 2011

Section 5.1(d)

Capital Expenditures

-121-

Amount (in thousands)
$150,446
$154,244
$145,925
$157,946
$156,851
$163,565
$157,427

$172,937



Section 5.6(a)

Employee Benefits

2. Ttems 16 to 27 of Schedule 3.12(a) are hereby incorporated by reference Employment
Agreements and Change in Control Agreements

3. Ttems 29 to 37 of Schedule 3.12(a) are hereby incorporated by reference Retention
and Severance Agreements

-122-
NY 12528:446032.6



Section 5.6(c)

Emplovee Benefits
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Section 5.6(f)

Employee Benefits

1. Items 1 through 17 of Section 3.12(e) of this Company Disclosure Schedule are
hereby incorporated by reference.
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Section 5.6(h)

Employee Benefits
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Section 5.7(a)
Intercompany Items

Seller shall have the ability to amend Affiliate Indebtedness agreements to more favorable terms
for the Company and its Subsidiaries.
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Section 5.7(b)

Intercompany Items

None.
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Section 5.8(c)

Company Names

1. Louisville Gas and Electric Company

2. LG&E

3. Kentucky Utilities Company

4. KU

5. Old Dominion Power Company (KU’s d/b/a in its Virginia territory)
6. ODP

7. LG&E Natural

8. LG&E Gas

9. KU Energy

10. KU Capital

11.  KUCC
12.  WKE
13.  WKEC

14.  Ultrasystems
15.  Ultrapower

16. Hadson

-128-
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Exhibit 3.6(b) to the Company Disclosure Schedule

Jurisdiction of -

Number of Shares (Units) of

Name of Company Incorporation/ Authorized Capital Stock Capital Stock Issued and Record Holder
Organization o ‘ : Outstanding Lo :
E.ONU.S.LLC Kentucky 10,000,000 units 1001 units E.ON US Investments Corp.
1,720,000 shares of preferred stock; $25
par value
Louisville Gas and Electric Kentucky 6,750,000 shares of preferred stock; no 21,294,223 shares of common EONUS. LLC
Company par value stock
75,000,000 shares of common stock; no
par value
5,300,000 shares of cumulative preferred
stock; no par value
Kentucky Utilities Company Kentucky and Virginia 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock; no 37,817,878 shares of common EONUS. LLC
par value stock
80,000,000 shares of common stock; no
par value
Lexington Utilities Company Kentucky iﬁgg shares of common stock; no par 100 shares Kentucky Utilities Company
E.ON U.S. Foundation Inc. Kentucky None None E.ONU.S. LLC as sole
member
LG&E Energy Marketing Inc. Oklahoma 25,000 shares of common stock; $1.00 600 shares wholly-owned by E.ON U.S.
par value LLC
E.ON U.S. Services Inc. Kentucky 3/;;32 shares of common stock; no par 100 shares E.ONUS.LLC
E.ON U.S. Capital Corp Kentucky 2009 shares of common stock; nopar | 1447 chares EONUS. LLC
LG&E Home Services Inc. Kentucky 1,000 shares of common stock; no par 100 shares E.ON U.S. Capital Corp

value
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Jﬁrisdiction of

Number of Shares (Units) of -

Record Holder

Name of Company Incorporation/ | Authorized Capital Stock - Capital Stock Issued and

: Organization Lo L Outstanding

t

LG&E International Inc. Delaware 3};332 shares of common stack; $0.01 par 100 shares E.ON U.S. Capital Corp
Western Kentucky Energy Corp. | Kentucky iﬁgg shares of common stock; no par 100 shares E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.
FCD LLC Kentucky 1,000 units 1 unit g;erifem Kentucky Energy
LG&E Power Inc. Delaware \2,;882 shares of commion stock; $0.01 par 1,750 shares E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.
LG&E Power Operations Inc. California ig&goo shares of common stock; no par 2,500 shares LG&E Power Inc.
LG&E Power Development Inc. | California 3/2&’200 shares of common stock; no par 100 shares LG&E power Inc.
LG&E Energy Inc. Kentucky ‘l/ﬁgg shares of common stock; no par 100 shares E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.
E.ON U.S. Hydro I LLC Kentucky 1,000 units 1 unit E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.
LG&E Power Argentina I, Inc. Delaware 1,000 common stock; $0.01 par value 100 shares LG&E International Inc.
LG&E Power Argentina II, Inc. | Delaware 1,000 common stock; $0.01 par value 100 shares LG&E International Inc.
LG&E Power Argentina III LLC | Kentucky 1,000 units 100 units LG&E International Inc.
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ARO

ASC
BART

Big Rivers
CAIR
CAMR
Capital Corp.
CAVR
CCN
Centro
Clean Air Act
CMRG
Company
CT

Cuyana
DOE

DSM

EEl

E.ON

E.ON Spain
E.ON U.S.
E.ON U.S. Services
ECR

EKPC

EPA

EPAct 2005
FAC

FASB
FERC

FGD
Fidelia
GAAP
GAC

GHG

GSC

IBEW
ICSID
IMEA
IMPA

IRS

KCCS
Kentucky Commission
KIuC

KU

Kwh

LEM
LG&E
LIBOR
MISO
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Index of Abbreviations

Attorney General of Kentucky

Asset Retirement Obligation

Accounting Standards Codification

Best Available Retrofit Technology

Big Rivers Electric Corporation

Clean Air Interstate Rule

Clean Air Mercury Rule

E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.

Clean Air Visibility Rule

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
Distribuidora de Gas Del Centro S.A.

The Clean Air Act, as amended in 1990
Carbon Management Research Group
E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Combustion Turbine

Distribuidora de Gas Cuyana S.A.

U.S. Department of Energy

Demand Side Management

Electric Energy, Inc.

E.ON AG

E.ON Espana S.L.

E.ONUS.LLC

E.ON U.S. Services Inc,

Environmental Cost Recovery

East Kentucky Power Cooperative

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Energy Policy Act of 2005

Fuel Adjustment Clause

Financial Accounting Standards Board
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Flue Gas Desulfurization

Fidelia Corporation (an E.ON affiliate)
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Group Annuity Contract

Greenhouse Gas

Gas Supply Clause

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
International Council for the Settlement of Investment Disputes
Illinois Municipal Electric Agency

Indiana Municipal Power Agency

Internal Revenue Service

Kentucky Consortium for Carbon Storage
Kentucky Public Service Commission
Kentucky Industrial Utility Consumers, Inc.
Kentucky Utilities Company

Kilowatt hours

LG&E Energy Marketing Inc.

Louisville Gas and Electric Company
London Interbank Offered Rate

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator



MMBtu
Moody's
Mw
NAAQS
NGHH
NOV
NOx
0Cl

OMU

OVEC

PUHCA
PUHCA 1935
PUHCA 2005
RSG

S&P

SCR

Sip

SO,

TC2

Trimble County
USWA

VDT

VEBA

Virginia Commission
WKE
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Million British thermal units

Moody's Investor Services, Inc.

Megawatts

National Ambient Air Quality Standards
Natural Gas-Henry Hub

Notice of Violation

Nitrogen Oxide

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) or Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Owensboro Municipal Utilities

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation

Public Utility Holding Company Act

Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005
Revenue Sufficiency Guarantee

Standard and Poor's Rating Service

Selective Catalytic Reduction

State Implementation Plan

Sulfur Dioxide

Trimble County Unit 2

LG&E's Trimble County plant

United Steelworkers of America

Value Delivery Team

Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association
Virginia State Corporation Commission
Western Kentucky Energy Corp. and its Affiliates



E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Millions of §)

Operating revenues:
EIECHIIC ULHEY 1..veveirrenieieeeemeneensserceraen s nscaes s st s sas s s es s ananes s b e e s st s e sasas s ebsananns
Gas utility...........
NONAUBHEY ettt e snnas .

TOAI TEVEIUES ..o ceeeiteeerteceete et cesceersen s s ase s e bean et e be e ssbasshasbssrEan s e evesbessenbenn e srenns
Operating expenses:

Fuel and power purchased

Gas supply eXpenses........cvevververinnenes

Utility operation and MaiNtenance. ..........coevreimerniiiirinesss s i sssnes st st e smssssssssnnnssscs
Non-utility operation and MAINIENANCE ........ccovrerriririnrerrsreninonssenessereresssestnssnis s ressnsssesssnacaes
Depreciation, accretion and amortization (Note 1)

Total OPETAtiNg EXPENSES ..oevrecrururmcecucnraieritiassimeenssosssasrs et sasassssaen et s st esnssnessesasansness

Loss on impairment of goodwill (Note 2)

OPEIAINE 10SS.1veuttiueeriverriicrerearcesnrins e ene i crres st s ne s e st e s bare e s s as s ab s e et s s srsbsababanbas s e s e e nensasas

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated venture
Mark-to-market income (expense) (NOLE 6) ....co.oorivvenirirreceerercnersviinenerenssssenessssnns s ssessares
Other income (deductions).......ccocccvvvnenvnenns

Interest expense - affiliated companies ...
ITIEEIESE EXPEIISE ..envreecaciceiieresntesstoretnres st s b e bbb b et b b s s b s e A 2Rt eb R e ne s

Loss from continuing operations, before income taxes
Income tax expense (NOte 10) ...ttt e et nbe e ssa e nnnsasss

Loss from CONtNUING OPEIations .........ovverrrimieres s v nse e snss st st abe s ansssaeneasace
Discontinued operations (Note 3):

Loss from discontinued operations before taX .........o.o.emevrrcinnninnn st
Income tax benefit from discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations before noncontrolling interest

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations before tax ........ccevrvveeenmceiennin e
Income tax benefit from loss on disposal of discontinued operations

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
N 0SS v e eereieeteeeeseesirsaesneseas e sescetseeseat e b e nne s e s e s seanc e e ne e s sanem ot s eee e s s mas e sas b s ea s s e seananne s
Noncontrolling interest - income from discontinued operations

Net loss attributable to member

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
$2,145 $2,221
354 452

2 2
2,501 2,675
949 1,053
237 349
607 533
26 30
271 265
2,090 2,230
(1,493) (1,806)
(1,082) (1,361)
- 29

18 (37

5 17
(155) (138)
1) (46)
(1,235) (1,536)
82 78
(1,317) (1,614)
(222) (287)
71 114
(151) (173)
(114) .
45 .
(69) -
(1,537) (1,787)
) (3
$(1,542) $(1,795)




E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (Note 15)

(Millions of $)
Years Ended December 31
2009 2008
INEE J0SS v emevniereeeversieseesesesenssessessesansesesaesetsbsneseeae s seer e e e e sar o bt e baR s baaban s nbeteshendsar R ae s A esRbn st et an $(1,537) $(1,787)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Defined-benefit pension and postretirement Plans.........c.coonveireiriniinseseeensssnsnassnas 29 an
Gains (losses) on derivative INSIIUMENES «..oovcorvreieeisiiirinie et cns e sassaenansannes 5 2)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (NOte 3) ........ooovinirininneenissciessinsesiasnncerenesaas 8) 9)
Income tax (expense) benefit related to items of other
COMPTENENSIVE TNCOME. .....cocveieciricecieriiec it ies e e be st nb st anss s e bbb s b s s bnse s ne s (11) 33
COMPIENENSIVE 1085..c.1ei e cree et s s st bbbttt e et (1,522) (1,842)
Noncontrolling interest - income from discontinued OPerations ...........cocooevnceiieeneeannnnens (5) 8)
Other comprehensive income (loss) allocable to noncontrolling interest:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (NOte 3) ..o.cooovinmnrieniisrnmnieinin s 4 4
Income tax expense related to items of other
COMPIENENSIVE IMCOIME.....ccierviiieiininireintne sttt et cnan b et santa s s ra st nn s 1) (1)
Comprehensive loss attributable t0 MEMBET ..ot $(1,524) $(1,847)

Consolidated Statements of Retained (Deficit) Earnings

(Millions of $)
Years Ended December 31
2009 2008
Balance JANUATY 1. ececcricnie i sinens e e se b b e sn e s a st n s san s s nane et sbenanen et $(1,172) $691
Net loss attributable t0 MEMDET......ciirieee et e esas et n sy sa s (1,542) (1,795)
Cash dividends declared on common SLOCK ... (49) (68)
Balance DecembBEr 31....coorieriierrece e rniescsenneesin et ere s sses s sse s s sra e sa s s p b s tn e e n s e s bnae e $(2,763) $(1,172)

Consolidated Statements of Noncontrolling Interest

(Millions of $)
Years Ended December 31

2009 2008
Balance JANUATY ©.....vcerrreriereremeionsienessanseressstvnessoresnsesessssnasvassassssssasmasssssssessassssasasnsnssansonsen $32 $34
Noncontrolling interest - income from discontinued OPErations ...........cccoeeeieivninsrsncsesanneenes 5 8
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - discontinued Operations ..........cccovvrnrerensrernserernnnes 2) N
Foreign currency translation adjustment .........cccoovoiimirinrnnrinei e s 3) (3)
Balance DECEMDBET 3 1.....oveviiiiricenreerireeresnerasassmrasesesesrseesnssntonnsesssssnmesassssssssssnssnsonsresersssssanssnens $32 $32

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Millions of §)

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)
Restricted cash (Note 1)
Accounts receivable:

Customer - less reserve of $2 in 2009 and $4 in 2008 (Note 1)

Other - less reserve of $2 in 2009 and $1 in 2008
Materials and supplies (Note 1):

Fuel (predominantly coal)

Gas stored underground............

Other materials and SUPPIIES.......ciovi et ettt case e nenan s neneens
Deferred income taxes (INOLE 10) ... c.covvirirrirerieriieteiieinrceeeeetrreanesasssesssassessasanssessessntanaessaseen
Assets of discontinued operations (Note 3)
Regulatory assets (NOE 5) ..cvvvrviaroncreranrieevinereeianennerceiasacens
Prepayments and other current assets

TOLA] CUITENT @SSELS ....uiiieeeee i itiiaecentraee e e e iviaeansetesae e s ebt e ssasesssss s sessiunannssn venenssonnansanessanar
Utility plant, at original cost (Note 1):
Electric

Total utility plant, at original cost

Less: reserve for depreciation

Total utility plant, net

CONSLIUCLION 1N PIOBIESS..c...nevrerrrerercrreranearesmisnseseamseseensonnsssnaeresssssecossnsssnsscucssssnsssassecsesssessnsens

INEt UHTHEY PIANE. ... et esr e sren et eee e ne st esmnnnr s er e sens shssusonennasens
Other property and investments:

Investment in unconsolidated venture (Note 1)
Other

Total other property and INVESIMENTS ......c.eccrrerimirmriimennreresosinnssirerenisesnsssnnessesconssressons
Regulatory assets — pension and postretirement benefits (Notes 5 and 9) ...
Regulatory assets - other (INOTE 5) ...c.coimrviiiiiicreinie s et tnne s ess e ss e sneee

Goodwill (Notes 1 and 2)
Other long-term assets

Total deferred debits and Other ASSELS.....ccuviiieireiceirerrreircenirnensereeeareserserissnsesssaressanensensyens

TTOLA] ASSEBLS uevivvveeueieeteetisiesseeeeeseeensteseneseasteseasaentenar s nbaaaasnsenseaenseearn s natenseaeneneeasntannnnaanenseraansn

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

December 31

2009 2008
57 515

I 12

286 331
34 37
158 123
56 112
72 68

10 25

90 920
46 75

35 31
795 1,749
8,226 7,789
640 599
226 190
9,092 8,578
3,546 3414
5,546 5,164
1,599 1,551
7,145 6,715
21 31

5 11

26 42
309 387
242 153
837 2,330
75 78
1,463 2,948
$9,429 511,454




E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

(Millions of $)
Liabilities and equity:
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (NOte 11) .
Current portion of long-term debt - affiliated company (Notes 4 and 11)..c..cooovovvorinnorn.

Notes payable - affiliated company (Notes 4 and 12)
Accounts payable ... ovvevrirninenncn s
Accounts payable - affiliated companies (Note 4) ....
CUSEOMET AEPOSIES .coeveeniirenenenerc et seise i st nantnr st s e st a bbb nb s s et s ba b s st ebenenesnbnsnssane
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 3)
Regulatory liabilities (Note 5) ......cooenvevvinccnciennns
Derivative HaDIlIEY . ...covcee ettt s a b na et nrnens
Other current liabilities

Total CUITENE HHADIHIES ......ccviiriiiioreicre e ceiaaesere e eees et e naseearete ear et enbaa s neenesmsannnasnarennensraeres

Long-term debt - affiliated companies (Notes 4 and 11)
Long-term debt (Note 1.

Total Iong-term Aebl....c.covvirriiciniieciicire s e ss s e s s s st sanes

Deferred income taxes (NOt€ 10) ....eocvirrieririrreaieeteeimeaireneos s cstsneistsssessenressan s e nssbssrnenrenes
Investment tax credit (NOte 10) ....couriiirierrr et ass e sesn e senans
Accumulated provision for pensions and related benefits (Note 9).....coocoovnvinininniniiininns
Asset retirement obligations (NOE 5).....c.ocuimmirioimiiiieiis e e nnsees
Regulatory liability - accumulated cost of removal (NOtE 5) .o,
Regulatory liability - other (Note 5)
Derivative liability (Note 6) .......ccccovvcnvircnriniinns

Other 1ong-term HabilIIs .....covccciimecirc ittt r it sis s s ane st s nsnses

Total deferred credits and other HabilItIES . .covviirerirevrnricenicrecree et et sacscn e abenes

Total 1iabilities and EQUILY .. cceoieveercrccenrc vt s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

December 31

2009 2008
$349 $349
358 255
851 299
221 298
43 57
44 43

7 1,006

41 40
76 -
117 111
2,107 2,458
3,063 2,766
416 416
3,479 3,182
87 435
152 130
540 591
66 63
587 580
76 97
28 55
83 66
1,619 2,017
2,224 3,797
$9,429 $11,454




E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Millions of $)

Cash flows from operating activities:

INEL LSS ..ncveveriiene et nersmsrare s eatese s aeasanssnsaer s bssh s hebase e nR AL e s ke s e s hea e s be bR n S b mn s s s s e e s

Items not requiring cash currently:
Depreciation, accretion and amortization
Deferred income taxes - net (Note 10)........
Investment tax credit - net (NOLE 10) .ooiieiiririrenianiriirier s ener e e sreesresaacara s s cesnrons
Provision fOr PENSIONS .....ccvveerireireerasretoiesiessnmstsesnessiese s nessssanses sssanensssssesenssnernsessasmsaens
Loss on impairment of goodwill (NOtE 2).......ccommmmiicieirinrieninmnis e caesenenes
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated ventures............ccccoovomvrmvveeiennennn,
Loss from discontinued operations — net of tax (Note 3)....

Changes in certain net current assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE. ... cveani o eitraveis st reo o corren e
Materials and supplies
ACCOUNES PAYADIE...c.e vttt et er e eanes
Accrued taxes ANd INEETESE...cccvvvrrereereerereeeeremsneritecesanter e csassasescs smrasesenseassaonsvressssssonnres
Prepayments and Other... ...

Changes in other deferred creditS.......ooovvieeveciniinine s

Change in storm restoration regulatory asset

Changes in other regulatory assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred income tax Habilties .......coveoveioiiiiciin s,
Pension and postretirement funding .......cccocvvennvvesnernninnienenens

Net operating cash flows from discontinued operations
OBHET  oeoeeiitctens v e n e sserreseeusntes st st c b e s e s s a SRR RS ek 4424 ane e TR AR neE R o7 b 1 b8 s e cnean et sanenchenn

Net cash flows (used) provided by operating actiVities.........ccccooeeivmiininr i
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales Of PrOPEILY ....cocoririeiiiiniiriece st cveinssns st ne s ne s s
Construction eXPENUItUIES ......ciunsrmiremsirrenmssssseses e cssnnsree o srs e ressenssanss s enssenseneasassssssnss
Construction expenditures - discontinued operations
Change in non-hedging derivative liability
Decrease in restricted cash........ccccoviiirnivvivincioniees et e s

Net cash flows used by inVESHINE GCHVIIES ......ovririeueoiverieescianere s e ss e rrnnses s esnenssry s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008
$(1,537) $(1,787)
271 265
46 (14)
3) @)
83 41
1,493 1,806
11 1
225 181
(33) 48
3) (2)
73 I
3l (69)
(64) 60
(76) (4)
(2) an
2) 10
(101) (26)
(12) (10)
11 12
162} (18)
(580) (69)
16 (15)
(204) 390
3 9
(703) 931)
(23) (28)
7 (8)
10 1
{(706) {957)




E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

(Millions of $)
Years Ended December 31
2009 2008
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of fong-term debt (NOte 11) .cceiiirnrionioiiniiieiiircnrisnr e s scaaees - 78
Retirement of long-term debt (Note T1) .ot s - 67)
Acquisition of outstanding bonds ..o e - (339)
Reissuance of reacquired bonds........ccooveivmenerianeecnnecnsnreanecn - 159
Borrowings from affiliates (Notes 4 and 12) .......cccccevevnvncirieincnnn 2,090 2,637
Repayment of borrowings from affiliates (Notes 4 and 12) 1,137 (1,825)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - discontinued operations 2) N
Payment of common dividends .......cocviercicininmi e e (49) (68)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities.......ccveeviiorcrrrceveinreiceacsmieees s snennsinas 902 568
Change in cash and cash equUIValENtS. ......cvvcvrerevrcrirneccrs et ) 1
Beginning cash and cash equivalents ... 15 14
Ending cash and cash equivalents ... e e s 37 $15
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
INCOMIE TAXES oeeievresiienieer e etenerses s sese e e nssabnntnssenansnsaen e s anssaaas s saracereaunssssnsannsseseassston 5(8) $61
Interest on borrowed Money - XtEMAl .....ccorvceeiiaieniecnce e e 12 29
Interest on borrowed money - affiliates .......cocoevviniiiiiioneeiinennen e 149 134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization

(Millions of $)

December 31

2009 008
Equity:
Membership units, without par value -
Authorized 10,000,000 units, outstanding

1,007 UIES 1oovenitereeseacnee s e e st e neecsns s n e ssen nae s e anmeeeransmnonrns s ess s ot sesesasanbsnasanentssusssornenss $774 3774

Additional paid-in CapItal.......cccovoieerrninec e b 4,224 4,224
Accumulated other comprehensive 1088 (NOE 15)...cceicrerernrrnenrmceiirenininsscnnsscsicaniansenns 43) 61)
Retained defiCit ..ot e e (2,763) (1,172)
TOtal MEMDBEI'S QUILY v.vvrerrrerereenmitereestesereentensseesensseonsesaantansanessssstsnssessrsstescsnsassssessesnsensensasens 2,192 3,765
NONCOMTOIINEG INETESL.c...eicccee et ee ettt s e n e eassbe s sbesae e e resbs e nbenbesbabnes 32 32
TOLA] BQUILY voeteceee et sccse s eee e b sase bt s s ek na s s s e bnanan s e neae s 2,224 3,797

Long-term debt (Note 11):
Louisville Gas and Electric Company:

Pollution control series -
Jefferson Co. 2001 Series A, due September 1, 2026, variable %o.......c.ccocccveinnimnivnneerinsesens 23 23

Trimble Co. 2001 Series A, due September 1, 2026, variable % 28 28
Jefferson Co. 2000 Series A, due May 1, 2027, 5.375% cccecvorirvveniminncincieisncimicassnisscrens 25 25
Jefferson Co. 2001 Series A, due September 1, 2027, variable %o.......ccoecvevceniniinnicrvenons 10 10
Jefferson Co. 2001 Series B, due November 1, 2027, variable % 35 35
Trimble Co. 2001 Series B, due November 1, 2027, variable % .....c.cocoervveeencen. 35 35
Trimble Co. 2000 Series A, due August 1, 2030, variable % ........... 83 83
Trimble Co. 2002 Series A, due October 1, 2032, variable %... 42 42
Louisville Metro 2007 Series A, due June 1, 2033, 5.625%.......... 31 31
Louisville Metro 2007 Series B, due June 1, 2033, variable % ..... 35 35
Trimble Co. 2007 Series A, due June 1, 2033, 4.60% .cvveevereerreienceineescerernrrereeseennsnseenan 60 60
Louisville Metro 2003 Series A, due October 1, 2033, variable % ....ccccoccrevveeinrcerevnvernns 128 128
Louisville Metro 2005 Series A, due February 1, 2035, 5.75%..ccvererecciimecerceimneiieene 40 40
Total LG&E bonds including reacquired bonds .........coccvvaeecinvvneinnconimsnsmonnoncenneniens 575 575
Less reacquired bonds ...t e 163 163
Total LGEE DONAS ...vvioveirviriniriieeeetieeieseeeteveieee e e e eareae s s nnaeanesstnesneeessasensneesesnsesssnnnen 412 412
Due to affiliates -

Fidelia, due January 16, 2012, 4.33%, unsecured..........ccccrrvninmicninccnniensiniiasesseneeaenes 25 25
Fidelia, due April 30, 2013, 4.55%, unsecured............c.cccccomivmnnn. 100 100
Fidelia, due August 15, 2013, 5.31%, unsecured 100 100
Fidelia, due November 23, 2015, 6.48%, UNSECUTEA .......coeereerrrcreeeriiirienenseienireiesieneeennens 50 50
Fidelia, due July 25, 2018, 6.21%, UNSECUIEd......c.orirermermrertiensirniiiereninininssescssesesninssenns 25 25
Fidelia, due November 26, 2022, 5.72%, unsecured 47 47
Fidelia, due April 13, 2031, 5.93%, UnSECUIEd........coeeomoririomiceiirimne s 68 68
Fidelia, due April 13, 2037, 5.98%, UnSECUIEd. .......corerecerrieerenmencrnmiiiensineeescnensensennesens 70 70
Total LG&E due to affilAtes .....ocvviverieeeeiecceierireseveecssireeesnsnssssessnsesnsnssrssrasaressresansenns 485 485
Total LG&E debt outStanding ... .ccveveiereiinieneecnenseneeerecnanianereeseeneesesissoseossosansnsnsssassassiess sosees 897 897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization (Continued)

(Millions of $)
December 31
2009 2008
Long-term debt - cont. (Note 11):
Kentucky Utilities Company:
Pollution control series -
Mercer Co. 2000 Series A, due May 1, 2023, variable % 13 13
Carroll Co. 2007 Series A, due February 1, 2026, 5.75% 18 18
Carroll Co. 2002 Series A, due February 1, 2032, variable %......ccovvvervnnerionccnininnees 21 21
Carroll Co. 2002 Series B, due February 1, 2032, variable % ........cccccorverevrccimnninnisicionen 2 2
Mercer Co. 2002 Series A, due February 1, 2032, variable %.....c.cecieeveorverveviseniniinerennn 8 8
Muhlenberg Co. 2002 Series A, due February 1, 2032, variable %.......cocovmrirncvcnennnnn. 2 2
Carroll Co. 2008 Series A, due February 1, 2032, variable %......c..c.ocoovvereeinmerirananioncnnac 78 78
Carroll Co. 2002 Series C, due October 1, 2032, variable % 96 96
Carroll Co. 2004 Series A, due October 1, 2034, variable % 50 50
Carroll Co. 2006 Series B, due October 1, 2034, variable % 54 54
Trimble Co. 2007 Series A, due March 1, 2037, 6.00% ....c.o.cccenrnnciercinieciinnenneencsniaesseenas 9 9
TOtAl KU BOMAS..ccvivviienieeieereeirenstevieesascansesenssasassnesssasassssasaneranessansariesssnerasansnssnseenanaes 351 351
Due to affiliates -
Fidelia, due November 24, 2010, 4.24%, unsecured .........ccccovceererirenrecmmcerencineescrsmesnsenns 33 33
Fidelia, due January 16, 2012, 4.39%, unsecured........c.cocvrmmrivmemniieenmsnnmssenessnnsnonsnens 50 50
Fidelia, due April 30, 2013, 4.55%, UNSECUTEd........cccvvivriimiminrercciniee s e 100 100
Fidelia, due August 15,2013, 5.31%, UnSECUred......cc.cveccreremrvrmrrcriiiiiinemsenerinssseneessnnes 75 75
Fidelia, due December 19, 2014, 5.45%, unsecured 100 100
Fidelia, due July 8, 2015, 4.735%, UNSECUTEA ......covreecrmireieeir s 50 50
Fidelia, due December 21, 2015, 5.36%, unsecured 75 75
Fidelia, due October 25, 2016, 5.675%, unsecured .........cccovvevveecns 50 50
Fidelia, due April 24, 2017, 5.28%, unsecured.........cocvervevricnireinnes 50 -
Fidelia, due June 20, 2017, 5.98%, unsecured..........cviririmenenennrreeeeenrense e 50 50
Fidelia, due July 25, 2018, 6.16%, unsecured ........ccoooevierinicens e 50 50
Fidelia, due August 27, 2018, 5.645%, unsecured.........crervmrcreverenreiiinmincineinerrncessesennns 50 50
Fidelia, due December 17, 2018, 7.035%, unsecured..........ccoeceever vevcrrirnnncecncnennnnnensncens 75 75
Fidelia, due July 29, 2019, 4.81%, Unsecured .......cococverermiveroniinmnenssiveninsiienseisensssonsecnasens 50 -
Fidelia, due October 25, 2019, 5.71%, unsecured ..........cceceeveremvmreecermineienroiniciseesenessnennes 70 70
Fidelia, due November 25, 2019, 4.445%, unsecured ..........ccocecrvenmeeorernrnenensienneeniniecsennes 50 -
Fidelia, due February 7, 2022, 5.69%, UNSECUTEA .....cccovervriririmsmneiniiirensrnssnnresresosseneiienins 53 53
Fidelia, due May 22, 2023, 5.85%, unsecured................ 75 75
Fidelia, due September 14, 2028, 5.96%, unsecured 100 100
Fidelia, due June 23, 2036, 6.33%, unsecured............. 50 50
Fidelia, due March 30,2037, 5.86%, UNSECUTEd.......c.cverrreriamrneeesrinnreronncesscseerseeesseronnsenses 75 75
Total KU due to affiliates .......... Lentasereeeaers it ehensentarasentaaseent e saansea bt shtareanrensenstannassneann 1,331 1,181
Total KU debt outstanding 1,682 1,532

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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E.ON U.S. LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Capitalization (Continued)

(Millions of §)

Long-term debt - cont. (Note 11):

E.ON U.S. Capital Corp.:

Medium term notes, due November I, 2011, 7.47% ....cccveireemmrmraenmrnvenecenenesnensssssessssssesnsessonse
Total Capital Corp. debt OUtStANAING......vrveccimeriiricrcne ettt e
E.ON U.S.LLC:

Due to affiliates -
Fidelia, due January 6, 2009, 3.98%, unsecured........coovuveinmiiinerinmineniin e
Fidelia, due February 17, 2009, variable, unsecured
Fidelia, due November 26, 2009, variable, unsecured
Fidelia, due December 20, 2009, 4.07%, unsecured
Fidelia, due April 30, 2010, 4.64%, UNSECUTEd......vevrommeveriiiisi ettt
Fidelia, due June 28, 2010, variable, unsecured ......ccocevrccricimvinicniemarieninnninnennrreieenienens
Fidelia, due October 15, 2010, 7.01%, unsecured .......c.ccorvviiirmrciiceeciie e eonenes
Fidelia, due January 6, 2011, 7.784%, unsecured.........cccvuerreerernnnrciniinninisnsesinnsncnsesnssanens
Fidelia, due July 5, 2011, variable, Unsecured..........cccoevviimvccnnnrinnnnnoinninsnnsssncsansssnssnsnsanens
Fidelia, due April 24, 2012, variable, unsecured .......ccovunritninerecininnncnesns e
Fidelia, due November 19, 2012, variable, unsecured
Fidelia, due November 26, 2012, variable, unsecured
Fidelia, due December 19, 2012, 5.52%, UnSecured......c.ccocrrevreceerimmmcrmsemsecrmomeoneresseressonins
Fidelia, due December 21, 2012, variable, unsecured .......cccccomicvmrennnrnnerimmiaciin
Fidelia, due January 15, 2014, 6.044%, unsecured.......c.ccoervumnerennesreninnrassssesssnssnssnssansansans
Fidelia, due June 20, 2014, variable, unsecured ..........ccocvmnvrrnenccicnimnninoninsencsseninnens
Fidelia, due June 23, 2014, variable, unsecured ........cccovvmerrronionncnmemsenssneseveeres
Fidelia, due October 27, 2014, variable, unsecured........cocoooriiiirinincienicroncnccevincean
E.ON North America, due October 27, 2014, 4.63%, unsecured ..........ccccceeiervvcnmcrninnnn s
Fidelia, due March 25, 2015, variable, UnSecured .........ccccoorvvemrorerernrercerensrnsreessererancaenins
Fidelia, due February 17, 2016, variable, unsecured ............ccovcvmviinnneciinincrnnieenenne
Fidelia, due December 20, 2016, variable, unsecured ............ccocevreerncenresininesonninnennens
Fidelia, due April 25, 2017, 5.71%, UNSECUTEd......ccererermrerererierenceeerise e e

Total E.ON U.S. LLC debt outStanding .......ccoccvvevercveerninircniciniesesossssansossennsnsnssssnsesnssassunsesns
TOtA] OULSANAINE ....corurerercemnerecrteierstesctesnrsersi s s e s s sbn e et s bs e b s abna s e e st abess sRessanesnnsbnbnnnanrae
Less current portion of long-term debt ..ot
LONZ-ETIN AEDL..cocverreeicicintnt ettt ettt st bt e e
Total CAPHAlIZAON ...c.cv e ha e e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31

2009 2008
2 2

2 2

- 50

- 80

- 50

- 75

150 150
100 100
75 75
50 -
300 300
50 -

75 75
50 -
100 100
100 -
75 -
50 50
50 -
50 -
50 50

75 75

80 -

50 50

75 75
1,605 1,355
4,186 3,786
707 604
3,479 3,182
36,410 $7,583




E.ON U.S. LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation. E.ON U.S. is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of E.ON AG, a German corporation.
The consolidated financial statements include the following companies: E.ON U.S., LG&E, KU, LEM, E.ON
U.S. Services and Capital Corp., and their wholly owned subsidiaries. E.ON U.S.'s utility operations are
comprised of LG&E and KU. E.ON AG and E.ON U.S. are registered as holding companies under PUHCA
2005 and were formerly registered holding companies under PUHCA 1935.

LG&E and KU are regulated public utilities engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of
electric energy. L.G&E also engages in the distribution and sale of natural gas. LG&E and KU maintain their
separate identities and serve customers in Kentucky under their respective names. KU also serves customers in
Virginia under the Old Dominion Power name, and it serves customers in Tennessee under the KU name.

Capital Corp. has been the primary holding company for the Company's non-utility businesses. Its businesses
included:

WKE and affiliates. WKE had a 25-year lease of and operated the generating facilities of Big Rivers, a
power generation cooperative in western Kentucky, and a coal-fired facility owned by Henderson Municipal
Power and Light, which is owned by the City of Henderson, Kentucky. The Company classified WKE as
discontinued operations, and it terminated the WKE lease and disposed of the operations in July 2009. See
Note 3, Discontinued Operations.

Argentine Gas Distribution. Through its Argentine Gas Distribution operations, Capital Corp. owned
interests in entities which distribute natural gas to approximately one million customers in Argentina through
two distribution companies (Centro and Cuyana). The Company classified its Argentine Gas Distribution
operations as discontinued operations effective December 31, 2009, and it sold the operations on January 1,
2010. See Note 3, Discontinued Operations.

E.ON U.S. Services provides services to affiliated entities, including E.ON U.S., LG&E, KU, Capital Corp. and
LEM, at cost, as permitted under PUHCA 2005.

Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. Investments in business
entities in which the Company does not have control, but has the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies, are accounted for by the equity method. The Company consolidates its
investment in Centro and uses noncontrolling interests to reflect the portion of Centro not owned by the
Company.

Goodwill. Testing of goodwill for impairment is carried out annually in the fourth quarter of each year or if
changes in circumstances indicate that the value may be impaired, as required by the FASB ASC. This testing
indicated an impairment of $1.493 billion in 2009 and $1.806 billion in 2008. See Note 2, Goodwill Impair-
ment.

Regulatory Accounting. LG&E and KU are subject to the regulated operations guidance of the FASB ASC,
under which regulatory assets are created based on expected recovery from customers in future rates to defer
costs that would otherwise be charged to expense. Likewise, regulatory liabilities are created based on expected
return to customers in future rates to defer credits that would otherwise be reflected as income, or, in the case of
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costs of removal, are created to match long-term future obligations arising from the current use of assets. The
accounting for regulatory assets and liabilities is based on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for each
item as prescribed by the FERC, the Kentucky Commission, the Virginia Commission, or the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority. See Note 5, Utility Rates and Regulatory Matters, for additional detail regarding
regulatory assets and liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash. Proceeds from bond issuances for environmental equipment (primarily related to the
installation of FGDs) are held in trust pending expenditure for qualifying assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts included in customer accounts
receivable is based on the ratio of the amounts charged-off during the last twelve months to the retail revenues
billed over the same period multiplied by the retail revenues billed over the last four months. Accounts with no
payment activity are charged-off after four months, although collection efforts continue thereafter. The
allowance for doubtful accounts included in other accounts receivable is composed of accounts aged more than
four months. Accounts are written off as management determines them uncollectible.

Materials and Supplies. Fuel, natural gas stored underground and other materials and supplies inventories are

accounted for using the average-cost method. Emission allowances are included in other materials and supplies.
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the emission allowances inventory totaled $1 million and less than $1 million,
respectively.

Investment in Unconsolidated Venture. KU owns 20% of the common stock of EEI, which owns and
operates a 1,162-Mw generating station in southern Illinois. EEI, through a power marketer affiliated with its
majority owner, sells its output to third parties. KU’s investment in EEI is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, totaled $21 million and $31 million, respective-
ly. KU’s direct exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with EEI is generally limited to the value of its
investment.

Utility Plant. Utility plant for LG&E and KU is stated at original cost, which includes payroll-related costs
such as taxes, fringe benefits, and administrative and general costs. Construction work in progress has been
included in the rate base for determining retail customer rates in Kentucky. LG&E and KU have not recorded
any significant allowances for funds used during construction.

The cost of plant retired or disposed of in the normal course of business is deducted from plant accounts and
such cost is charged to the reserve for depreciation. When complete operating units are disposed of, appropriate
adjustments are made to the reserve for depreciation and gains and losses, if any, are recognized.

Depreciation and Amortization. Utility depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated service lives of depreciable plant. The amounts provided for LG&E equaled 3.1% of average
depreciable plant in 2009 and 2008. Of the amount provided for depreciation at LG&E at December 31, 2009,
approximately 0.6% electric, 0.5% gas and 0.1% common were related to the retirement, removal and disposal
costs of long lived assets. Of the amount provided for depreciation at LG&E at December 31, 2008, approx-
imately 0.4% electric, 0.9% gas and 0.1% common were related to the retirement, removal and disposal costs of
long lived assets. The amounts provided for KU equaled 2.6% of average depreciable plant in 2009 and 3.0%
in 2008. Of the amounts provided for depreciation at KU at December 31, 2009, and 2008, approximately 0.4%
and 0.5%, respectively, were related to the retirement, removal and disposal costs of long lived assets.
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Unamortized Debt Expense. Debt expense is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective-interest method, over the lives of the related bond issues.

Income Taxes. In accordance with the income taxes guidance in the FASB ASC, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, as measured by
enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect in the periods when the deferred tax assets and liabilities are
expected to be settled or realized. Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes, and there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. The income taxes
guidance of the FASB ASC prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Uncertain tax positions are analyzed periodically and adjustments are made when events occur to warrant a
change. See Note 10, Income Taxes.

Deferred Income Taxes. Deferred income taxes are recognized at currently enacted tax rates for all material
temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Investment Tax Credits. The EPAct 2005 added Section 48A to the Internal Revenue Code, which provides
for an investment tax credit to promote the commercialization of advanced coal technologies that will generate
electricity in an environmentally responsible manner. KU and LG&E received an investment tax credit related
to the construction of a new base load coal fired unit, TC2. See Note 10, Income Taxes.

Investment tax credits prior to 2006 resulted from provisions of the tax law that permitted a reduction of the
Company's tax liability based on credits for certain construction expenditures. Deferred investment tax credits
are being amortized to income over the estimated lives of the related property that gave rise to the credits.

Revenue Recognition. Utility revenues are recorded based on service rendered to customers through month-
end. LG&E and KU accrue estimates for unbilled revenues from each meter reading date to the end of the
accounting period based on allocating the daily system net deliveries between billed volumes and unbilled
volumes. The allocation is based on a daily ratio of the number of meter reading cycles remaining in the month
to the total number of meter reading cycles in each month. Each day's ratio is then multiplied by each day's
system net deliveries to determine an estimated billed and unbilled volume for each day of the accounting
period. The unbilled revenue estimates included in accounts receivable for both LG&E and KU at December
31, 2009 and 2008, were approximately $140 million and $133 million, respectively.

Fuel and Gas Costs. The cost of fuel for electric generation is charged to expense as used, and the cost of
natural gas supply is charged to expense as delivered to the distribution system. LG&E operates under a
Kentucky Commission-approved performance-based ratemaking mechanism related to natural gas procurement
activity. See Note 5, Utility Rates and Regulatory Matters, for a description of the FAC and GSC.

Management's Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent items at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accrued liabilities, including legal and
environmental, are recorded when they are probable and estimable. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassification entries have been made to the previous years' financial statements to

conform to the 2009 presentation. These reclassifications consist mainly of those necessary to present the
Company's Argentine Gas Distribution businesses as discontinued operations. In addition, cash from operations
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was decreased by $15 million and cash flows from investing increased by $15 million. See Note 3, Discontin-
ued Operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The guidance related to the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles was issued in June 2009, and
is effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The guidance establishes the
FASB ASC as the single source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. It had no effect on the Company's results of operations, financial position or liquidity; however,
references to authoritative accounting literature have changed with the adoption.

Subseguent Events

The guidance related to subsequent events was issued in May 2009, and is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009. This guidance requires disclosure of the date through which subsequent
events have been evaluated, as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or the
date they were available to be issued. The adoption of this guidance had no impact on the Company's results of
operations, financial position or liquidity; however, additional disclosures were required with the adoption. See
Note 17, Subsequent Events, for additional disclosures.

Emplovers' Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets

The guidance related to employers' disclosures about postretirement benefit plan assets was issued in December
2008, and is effective as of December 31, 2009. This guidance requires additional disclosures related to
pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets. Additional disclosures include the investment allocation
decision-making process, the fair value of each major category of plan assets as well as the inputs and valuation
techniques used to measure fair value and significant concentrations of risk within the plan assets. The adoption
had no impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or liquidity; however, additional
disclosures were required with the adoption. See Note 7, Fair Value Measurements, and Note 9, Pension and
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans, for additional disclosures.

Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The guidance related to disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities was issued in March
2008, and is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
November 15, 2008. The objective of this guidance is to enhance the current disclosure framework. The
adoption had no impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position and liquidity; however,
additional disclosures relating to derivatives were required with the adoption effective January 1, 2009. See
Note 6, Financial Instruments, for additional disclosures.

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

The guidance related to noncontrolling interests in consolidated financial statements was issued in December
2007, and is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. The objective of this guidance is to improve the relevance, comparability and transparency
of financial information in a reporting entity's consolidated financial statements. The Company adopted this
guidance effective January 1, 2009.
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Fair Value Measurements

The guidance related to fair value measurements was issued in September 2006 and, except as described below,
was effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. This statement defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. This guidance does not expand the application of fair value accounting to new
circumstances.

In February 2008, guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures delayed the effective date for all
nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. All other amendments have been evaluated and have no impact on the
Company's financial statements.

The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2008, except as it applies to those nonfinancial assets
and liabilities, and it had no impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity, however,
additional disclosures relating to its financial derivatives and cash collateral on derivatives, as required, are now
provided. Fair value accounting for all nonrecurring fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and
liabilities was adopted effective January 1, 2009, and it had no impact on the results of operations, financial
position or liquidity. In addition, no additional disclosures were required related to adopting this guidance.

The guidance related to determining fair value when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability
have significantly decreased and identifying transactions that are not orderly was issued in April 2009, and is
effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. This update provides additional guidance
on determining fair values when there is no active market or where the price inputs being used represent
distressed sales. The adoption had no impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or
liquidity.

In August 2009, the FASB issued guidance related to fair-value measurement disclosures, which is effective for
the first reporting period beginning after issuance. The guidance provides amendments to clarify and reduce
ambiguity in valuation techniques, adjustments and measurement criteria for liabilities measured at fair value.
The adoption had no impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance related to fair value measurement disclosures requiring separate
disclosure of amounts of significant transfers in and out of level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and
separate information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements within level 3 measurements. This
guidance is effective for the first reporting period beginning after issuance except for disclosures about the roll-
forward of activity in level 3 fair value measurements. This guidance will have no impact on the Company's
results of operations, financial position or liquidity; however, additional disclosures will be provided as
required.

Note 2 - Goodwill Impairment

The following table shows goodwill as of and for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Goodwill is
attributable to the Company's regulated utilities, LG&E and KU.
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Accumulated

Cost Impairment Net
Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 4,136 $ - $ 4,136
Impairment loss - (1.806) (1.806)
Balance at December 31, 2008 4,136 (1,806) 2,330
Impairment loss (1.493) (1.493)

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 4,136 $ 3.299 3 837

The Company performs its required annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter of each year.
Impairment tests are performed between the annual tests when the Company determines that a triggering event
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value has occurred.
The goodwill impairment test is comprised of a two-step process. In step 1, the Company identifies a potential
impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the regulated utilities (the goodwill reporting unit) to their
carrying value, including goodwill, on the measurement date. If the fair value is less than the carrying value,
then step 2 is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss. The step 2 calculation compares the
implied fair value of the goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is
equal to the excess of the regulated utilities' estimated fair value over the fair values of its identified assets and
liabilities. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess (but not in excess of the carrying value).

The determination of the fair value of the regulated utilities and its assets and liabilities is performed as of the
measurement date using observable market data before and after the measurement date (if that subsequent
information is relevant to the fair value on the measurement date). For the 2009 annual impairment test, the
estimated fair value of the regulated utilities was based on a combination of the income approach, which
estimates the fair value of the reporting unit based on discounted future cash flows, and the market approach,
which estimates the fair value of the reporting unit based on market comparables. The discounted cash flows
for LG&E and KU were based on discrete financial forecasts developed by management for planning purposes
and consistent with those given to E.ON AG. Cash flows beyond the discrete forecasts were estimated using a
terminal-value calculation, which incorporated historical and forecasted financial trends for each of LG&E and
KU and considered long-term earnings growth rates for publicly-traded peer companies. The level 3 income-
approach valuations included a cash flow discount rate of 6.3% (6.3% in 2008) and a terminal-value growth rate
of 1.1% (1.1% in 2008). In addition, subsequent to 2009 but prior to the issuance of the 2009 financial
statements, discussions were held with interested parties for the possible sale of the Company, including the

regulated utilities. Data from this process was used for evaluating the carrying value of goodwill as of
December 31, 2009.

Based on information represented by bids received from interested parties, the Company completed a goodwill
impairment analysis as of December 31, 2009. Step 1 of the impairment test indicated a possible impairment,
so the Company completed step 2. The implied fair value of goodwill in the step 2 calculation was determined
in the same manner utilized to estimate the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. The
Company concluded that the fair values of LG&E and KU assets and liabilities equaled their book values, due
to the regulatory environment in which they operate. The Kentucky and Virginia Commissions allow LG&E
and KU to earn returns on the book values of their regulated asset bases at rates the Commissions determine to
be fair and reasonable. Since there is no current prospect for deregulation, the Company assumed LG&E and
KU will remain in a regulated environment for the foreseeable future. As a result of the impairment analysis
described above, the Company recorded a 2009 goodwill impairment charge of $1.493 billion.

During 2008, the Company completed its annual goodwill impairment test during the fourth quarter, following
the approach described above (except bid data from a possible sale transaction was not available and thus not
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utilized). Based on the 2008 assessment, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $1.806
billion.

The primary factors contributing to the goodwill impairment charges were the significant economic downturn,
which caused a decline in the volume of projected sales of electricity to commercial customers, and an increase
in the implied discount rate due to higher risk premiums. In addition, in 2009 a lower control premium was
assumed, based on observable market data,

Note 3 - Discontinued Operations

WKE Lease

Through WKE and its subsidiaries, the Company had a 25-year lease on and operated the generating facilities of
BREC, a power-generating cooperative in western Kentucky, and a coal-fired generating facility owned by the
City of Henderson, Kentucky.

In March 2007, the Company entered into a termination agreement with BREC to terminate the lease and the
operational agreements for nine coal-fired power plants and one oil-fired electricity-generating facility in
western Kentucky. The transaction closed in July 2009. Assets and liabilities remaining after the completion of
the transaction have been reclassified to continuing operations in the balance sheet at December 31, 2009. In
2009 the Company recorded a pretax loss of $114 million and made payments totaling approximately $627
million as part of the transaction. The Company will continue to make payments related to the transaction
through the end of 2010 (and under certain circumstances to the end of 2011). The estimated cost of these
payments were accrued at December 31, 2009. See also Note 7, Fair Value Measurements, Note 10, Income
Taxes, and the Guarantees section in Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies, for further discussion of these
or of additional elements of the WKEC lease termination transaction.

The tables below provide selected financial information for the WKE discontinued operations as of December
31, and for the years then ended (in millions of $):

2009 008
Revenues $128 $300
Income (loss) before taxes (222) (309)
Income tax (expense) benefit 79 120
Net income (loss) $(143) $(189)
Assets:
Current assets 3- $153
Property, plant and equipment - 202
Lease intangible - 117
Deferred income taxes - 317
Other - 15
Total assets $- $804
Liabilities:
Sales contract liability 8- $908
Other - 81
Total liabilities 3- $989
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Argentine Gas Distribution

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company owned interests in two gas distribution companies in Argentina:
45.9% of Centro and 14.4% of Cuyana. These two entities serve a combined customer base of approximately
one million customers. The Centro investment was consolidated due to the Company's majority ownership in
the holding company of Centro. The Cuyana investment was accounted for using the equity method due to the
ownership influence the Company exerts on the businesses.

In November 2009, subsidiaries of the Company entered into agreements to sell their direct and indirect
interests in Centro and Cuyana, to E.ON Spain and a subsidiary, both affiliates of E.ON AG. On January 1,
2010, the parties completed the transfer of the interests for a sale price of $35 million. In December 2009, the
Company recorded an impairment loss of $12.4 million before income taxes. The impairment loss represents
the difference between the carrying values of the Company's interests in Centro and Cuyana and the sales price.
The Company classified the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the Argentine gas distribution
companies, including the impairment loss, as discontinued operations for all periods presented effective
December 31, 2009. In connection with the reorganization transaction, E.ON Spain will also assume rights and
obligations relating to claims and liabilities associated with the former Argentine businesses or indemnify the
Company with respect to such matters.

The Company recognizes translation charges in other comprehensive income. These charges relate to the
translation of the functional-currency financial statements of the Argentine investments into the Company's
reporting currency. The translation at December 31, 2009, was performed using an exchange rate of 3.800
Argentine pesos to one U.S. dollar for assets and liabilities and an average exchange rate of 3.733 Argentine
pesos to one U.S. dollar for income-statement amounts. The translation at December 31, 2008, was performed
using an exchange rate of 3.454 Argentine pesos to one U.S. dollar for assets and liabilities and an average
exchange rate of 3.158 Argentine pesos to one U.S. dollar for income-statement amounts. The pretax amounts
recorded in accumulated OCI at December 31, 2009 and 2008, totaled $13 million and $17 million, respective-

ly.

Argentine law requires that every Argentine company retain 5% of its Argentine GAAP net income until total
legal reserves equal 20% of the value of the Argentine company's common stock and additional paid in capital.
Legal reserves held in Argentina for the Argentine companies in which Capital Corp. had direct or indirect
ownership interests equaled approximately $10 million and $11 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. These amounts satisfied the legal requirements at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The tables below provide selected financial information for the Argentine gas distribution discontinued
operations as of December 31, and for the years then ended (in millions of $):
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2009 2008

Revenues $60 $69

Income before taxes - 22

Income tax expense ®) (6)
Noncontrolling interest (5 ®)
Net (loss) income $(13) $8

Assets:

Current assets $25 $27

Property, plant and equipment 52 37

Investments in unconsolidated ventures 7 14

Deferred income taxes 6 38

Total assets $90 116

Liabilities:

Other Habilities 37 $17

Note 4 — Related Party Transactions

The Company had the following balances with E.ON AG and its affiliates as of December 31, (in millions of §):

2009 2008
Accounts payable $43 $57
Notes payable 851 299
Long-term debt 3,421 3,021
Dividends paid ' 49 68

The Company also recorded interest expense to E.ON and its affiliates of $155 million and $138 million in
2009 and 2008, respectively. See Note 10, Income Taxes, Note 11, Long-Term Debt, and Note 12, Notes
Payable.

Note 5 - Utility Rates and Regulatory Matters

LG&E and KU are subject to the jurisdiction of the Kentucky Commission and the FERC, and KU is further
subject to the jurisdiction of the Virginia Commission and the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, in virtually all
matters related to electric and gas utility regulation, and as such, their accounting is subject to the regulated-
operations guidance of the FASB ASC. Given their position in the marketplace and the status of regulation in
Kentucky and Virginia, there are no plans or intentions to discontinue the application of the regulated
operations guidance of the FASB ASC.

2010 Kentucky Electric and Gas Rate Cases. In January 2010, LG&E filed an application with the Kentucky
Commission requesting an increase in electric base rates of approximately 12%, or $95 million annually, and its
gas base rates of approximately 8%, or $23 million annually, including an 11.5% return on equity for electric
and gas. At the same time, KU also filed an application with the Kentucky Commission requesting an increase
in base electric rates of approximately 12%, or $135 million annually, including an 11.5% return on equity.
LG&E and KU have requested the increases based on the twelve month test year ended October 31, 2009, to
become effective on and after March 1, 2010. The requested rates have been suspended until August 1, 2010, at
which time they may be put into effect, subject to refund if the Kentucky Commission has not issued an order in
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the proceeding. The parties are currently exchanging data requests in the proceedings and a hearing date has
been scheduled for June 2010. An order in the proceedings may occur during the third or fourth quarters of
2010.

2008 Electric and Gas Rate Cases. In July 2008, LG&E filed an application with the Kentucky Commission
requesting increases in base electric and gas rates. At the same time, KU also filed an application with the
Kentucky Commission requesting an increase in base electric rates. In January 2009, LG&E, the AG, the KIUC
and all other parties to the rate cases filed a settlement agreement with the Kentucky Commission, under which
LG&E's base gas rates increased by $22 million annually, and base electric rates decreased by $13 million
annually. At the same time, KU, the AG, the KIUC and all other parties to the rate case filed a settlement
agreement with the Kentucky Commission, under which KU's base electric rates decreased by $9 million
annually. Orders approving the settlement agreements were received in February 2009. The new rates were
implemented effective February 6, 2009, at which time the merger surcredit terminated.

In conjunction with the filing of the application for changes in base rates, the VDT surcredit terminated. The
VDT surcredit resulted from a 2001 initiative to share savings of $25 million and $10 million for LG&E and
KU, respectively, from the VDT initiative with customers over five years. In February 2006, LG&E, KU and
all parties to the proceeding reached a unanimous settlement agreement on the future ratemaking treatment of
the VDT surcredit, which was approved by the Kentucky Commission in March 2006, at an annual rate of $9
million and $4 million for LG&E and KU, respectively. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, the VDT
surcredit continued at its current level until such time as LG&E filed for a change in electric or natural gas base
rates or KU filed for a change in electric base rates. In accordance with the Order, the VDT surcredit
terminated in August 2008, the first billing month after the July 2008 filing for a change in base rates.

In December 2007, LG&E and KU submitted their plans to allow the merger surcredit to terminate as scheduled
on June 30, 2008. The merger surcredit originated as part of the LG&E Energy merger with KU Energy
Corporation in 1998. In June 2008, the Kentucky Commission issued an Order approving a unanimous
settlement agreement reached with all parties to the case which provided for a reduction in the merger surcredit
to approximately $12 million ($6 million each for LG&E and KU) for a 7-month period beginning July 2008,
termination of the merger surcredit when new base rates went into effect on or after January 31, 2009, and that
the merger surcredit be continued at an annual rate of $24 million ($12 million each for LG&E and KU)
thereafter should LG&E and KU not file for a change in base rates. In accordance with the Order, the merger
surcredit was terminated effective February 6, 2009, with the implementation of new base rates.

Virginia Rate Case. In June 2009, KU filed an application with the Virginia Commission requesting an increase
in electric base rates for its Virginia jurisdictional customers in an amount of $12 million annually or
approximately 21%. The proposed increase reflected a proposed rate of return on rate base of 8.586% based
upon a return on equity of 12%. During December 2009, KU and the Virginia Commission Staff agreed toa =
Stipulation and Recommendation authorizing base rate revenue increases of $11 million annually and a return
on rate base of 7.846% based on a 10.5% return on common equity. A public hearing was held during January
2010. As permitted, pursuant to a Virginia Commission order, KU elected to implement the proposed rates
effective November 1, 2009 on an interim basis. In March 2010, the Virginia Commission issued an Order
approving the stipulation, with the increased rates to be put into effect as of April 1, 2010. As part of the
stipulation, KU will refund certain amounts collected since November 2009, consisting of interim increased
rates in excess of the ultimate approved rates. These refunds aggregate approximately $1 million and are
anticipated to occur during the second quarter of 2010. See Note 17, Subsequent Events.

FERC Wholesale Rate Case. In September 2008, KU filed an application with the FERC for increases in base
electric rates applicable to wholesale power sales contracts or interchange agreements involving, collectively,
twelve Kentucky municipalities. The application requested a shift from current, all-in stated unit charge rates to
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an unbundled formula rate. In May 2009, as a result of settlement negotiations, KU submitted an unopposed
motion informing the FERC of the filing of a settlement agreement and agreed-upon seven-year service
agreements with the municipal customers. The unopposed motion requested interim rate structures containing
terms corresponding to the overall settlement principles, to be effective from May 1, 2009, until FERC approval
of the settlement agreement. The settlement and service agreements provide for unbundled formula rates which
are subject to annual adjustment and approval processes. In May 2009, the FERC issued an Order approving
the interim settlement with respect to rates effective May 1, 2009 representing increases of approximately 3%
from prior charges and a return on equity of 11%. Additionally, during May 2009, KU filed the first annual
adjustment to the formula rates to incorporate 2008 data, which adjusted formula rates became effective on July
1, 2009 and were approved by the FERC during September 2009.

Separately, the parties were not able to reach agreement on the issue of whether KU must allocate to the
municipal customers a portion of renewable resources it may be required to procure on behalf of its retail
ratepayers. In August 2009, the FERC accepted the issue for briefing and the parties completed briefing
submissions during 2009. An order by the FERC on this matter may occur during 2010. KU is not currently
able to predict the outcome of this proceeding, including whether its wholesale customers may or may not be
entitled to certain rights or benefits relating to renewable energy, and the financial or operational effects, if any,
of such outcomes.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. The following regulatory assets and liabilities were included in the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, (in millions of §):
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Current regulatory assets:

GSC $3 $28
ECR 35 24
FAC I 15
Net MISO exit 3 -
Other 4 8
Total current regulatory assets $46 $75
Non-current regulatory assets:

Storm restoration $126 $26
ARO 60 57
Unamortized loss on bonds 34 36
Net MISO exit 13 31
Other 9 3
Subtotals 242 153
Pension and postretirement benefits 309 387
Total non-current regulatory assets $551 $540
Current regulatory liabilities:

GSC $34 $30
DSM 7 10
Total current regulatory liabilities $41 $40
Non-current regulatory liabilities:

Accumulated cost of removal of utility plant 5587 $580
Deferred income taxes — net 50 61
Postretirement benefits 9 10
Other i7 26
Total non-current regulatory liabilities $663 $677
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LG&E does not currently earn a rate of return on the ECR, FAC, GSC and gas performance-based ratemaking
(included in "GSC" above) regulatory assets which are separate recovery mechanisms with recovery within
twelve months. KU does not currently earn a rate of return on the ECR and FAC regulatory assets and the
Virginia levelized fuel factor included in other regulatory assets, which are separate recovery mechanisms with
recovery within twelve months. No return is earned on the pension and postretirement benefits regulatory asset
that represents the changes in funded status of the plans. LG&E and KU will recover these assets through
pension expense included in the calculation of base rates with the Kentucky Commission and KU will seek
recovery of this asset in future proceedings with the Virginia Commission. No return is currently earned on the
ARO asset. When an asset with an ARO is retired, the related ARO regulatory asset will be offset against the
associated ARQO regulatory liability, ARO asset and ARQO liability. A return is earned on the unamortized loss
on bonds, and these costs are recovered through amortization over the life of the debt. LG&E currently earns a
rate of return on the balance of Mill Creek Ash Pond costs included in other regulatory assets, as well as
recovery of these costs. LG&E and KU are seeking recovery of the Storm restoration regulatory asset and
adjustments to the amortization of the CMRG and KCCS contributions, included in other regulatory assets, in
their current base rate cases. LG&E and KU recover through the calculation of base rates, the amortization of
the net MISO exit regulatory asset in Kentucky incurred through April 30, 2008. KU recently received
approval to recover the Virginia portion of this asset, as incurred through December 31, 2008, over a five-year
period and, due to the formula nature of its FERC rate structure, the FERC jurisdictional portion of the
regulatory asset will be included in the annual updates to the rate formula. LG&E also recovers through the
calculation of base rates other regulatory assets including the costs of an EKPC FERC transmission settlement
agreement and rate case expenses. KU recovers through the calculation of base rates, the amortization of the
remaining regulatory assets, including other regulatory assets comprised of deferred storm costs, the costs of an
EKPC FERC transmission settlement agreement and Kentucky rate case expenses. Other regulatory liabilities
include DSM, FERC jurisdictional supplies inventory and MISO administrative charges collected via base rates
from May 2008 through February 5, 2009. The MISO regulatory liability will be netted against the remaining
costs of withdrawing from the MISO, per a Kentucky Commission Order, in the current base rate case.

ARO. A summary of LG&E's and KU's net ARO assets, regulatory assets, ARO liabilities, regulatory
liabilities and cost of removal established under the asset retirement and environmental obligations guidance of
the FASB ASC, follows:

ARO
Net ARO Regulatory Regulatory
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
As of December 31, 2007 $9 $(60) $48 $(2)
ARO accretion - 3) 4 -
ARO depreciation - - 5 (6))
As of December 31, 2008 9 63) 57 N
ARO accretion - 5 4 -
ARO depreciation - - 1 -
ARO settlements - 1 2) -
Removal cost incurred - 1 - -
As of December 31, 2009 $9 $(66) $60 57

Pursuant to regulatory treatment prescribed under the regulated operations guidance of the FASB ASC, an
offsetting regulatory credit was recorded in depreciation and amortization in the income statement of $4 million
($2 million each for LG&E and KU) in 2009 and 2008 for the ARO accretion and depreciation expense.
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LG&E's and KU's AROs are primarily related to the final retirement of assets associated with generating units.
LG&E's also include natural gas wells. For assets associated with AROs, the removal cost accrued through
depreciation under regulatory accounting is established as a regulatory liability pursuant to regulatory treatment
prescribed under the regulated operations guidance of the FASB ASC. For the year ended December 31, 2008,
removal costs incurred were less than $1 million. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, LG&E and
KU each recorded less than $1 million of depreciation expense related to the cost of removal of ARO related
assets. An offsetting regulatory liability was established pursuant to regulatory treatment prescribed under the
regulated operations guidance of the FASB ASC.

LG&E's and KU's transmission and distribution lines largely operate under perpetual property easement
agreements which do not generally require restoration upon removal of the property. Therefore, under the asset
retirement and environmental obligations guidance of the FASB ASC, no material asset retirement obligations
are recorded for transmission and distribution assets.

PUHCA. E.ON AG, the Company's ultimate parent, is a registered holding company under PUHCA 2005.
E.ON AG, E.ON U.S., LG&E, KU, and certain of its non-utility subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation
by the FERC with respect to numerous matters, including: electric utility facilities and operations, wholesale
sales of power and related transactions, accounting practices, issuances and sales of securities, acquisitions and
sales of utility properties, payments of dividends out of capital and surplus, financial matters and inter-system
sales of non-power goods and services. E.ON U.S. believes that it has adequate authority, including financing
authority, under existing FERC orders and regulations to conduct its business and will seek additional
authorization when necessary.

GSC. LG&E's natural gas rates contain a GSC, whereby increases or decreases in the cost of natural gas supply
are reflected in LG&E's rates, subject to approval by the Kentucky Commission. The GSC procedure
prescribed by Order of the Kentucky Commission provides for quarterly rate adjustments to reflect the expected
cost of natural gas supply in that quarter. In addition, the GSC contains a mechanism whereby any over- or
under-recoveries of natural gas supply cost from prior quarters is to be refunded to or recovered from customers
through the adjustment factor determined for subsequent quarters.

LG&E's GSC was modified in 1997 to incorporate a natural gas procurement incentive mechanism. Since
November 1, 1997, LG&E has operated under this Performance Based Ratemaking ("PBR") mechanism related
to its natural gas procurement activities. LG&E's rates are adjusted annually to recover (or refund) its portion of
the expense (or savings) incurred during each PBR year (12 months ending October 31). During the PBR years
ending in 2009 and 2008, LG&E achieved $7 million and $11 million in savings, respectively. In 2009 and
2008, of the total savings amount, LG&E's portion was approximately $2 million and $3 million, respectively,
and the customers' portion was approximately $5 million and $8 million, respectively. Pursuant to the
extension of LG&E's natural gas supply cost PBR mechanism effective November 1, 2001, the sharing
mechanism under the PBR requires savings (and expenses) to be shared 25% with shareholders and 75% with
customers up to 4.5% of the benchmarked natural gas costs. Savings (and expenses) in excess of 4.5% of the
benchmarked natural gas costs are shared 50% with shareholders and 50% with customers. The current natural
gas supply cost PBR mechanism was extended through 2010 without further modification. In December 2009,
LG&E filed with the Kentucky Commission for an extension of LG&E's natural gas supply cost PBR
mechanism through 2015 with certain modifications.

MISO. Following receipt of applicable FERC, Kentucky Commission and other regulatory orders, related to
proceedings that had been underway since July 2003, LG&E and KU withdrew from the MISO effective
September 1, 2006. Since the exit from the MISO, LG&E and KU have been operating under a FERC-
approved open access-transmission tariff. LG&E and KU now contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority to
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act as their transmission Reliability Coordinator and Southwest Power Pool, Inc. to function as their Indepen-
dent Transmission Organization, pursuant to FERC requirements.

LG&E and KU and the MISO have agreed upon overall calculation methods for the contractual exit fee to be
paid by the utilities following their withdrawal. In October 2006, LG&E and KU paid $13 million and $20
million, respectively, to the MISO and made related FERC compliance filings. The utilities' payments of these
exit fees were with reservation of their rights to contest the amount, or components thereof, following a
continuing review of the fee's calculation and supporting documentation. LG&E and KU and the MISO
resolved their dispute regarding the calculations of the exit fees and, in November 2007, filed applications with
the FERC for approval of recalculation agreements. In March 2008, the FERC approved the parties' recalcula-
tions of the exit fees, and the approved agreements provided LG&E and KU with an immediate recovery of less
than $1 million each and an estimated $2 million and $3 million, respectively, over the next seven years for
credits realized from other payments the MISO will receive, plus interest.

In accordance with Kentucky Commission Orders approving the MISO exit, LG&E and KU have established
regulatory assets for the MISO exit fee, net of former MISO administrative charges collected via base rates
through the base rate case test year ended April 30, 2008. The net MISO exit fee is subject to adjustment for
possible future MISO credits, and a regulatory liability for certain revenues associated with former MISO
administrative charges, which were collected via base rates until February 6, 2009. The approved 2008 base
rate case settlement provided for MISO administrative charges collected through base rates from May 1, 2008
to February 6, 2009, and any future adjustments to the MISO exit fee, to be established as a regulatory liability
until the amounts can be amortized in future base rate cases. This regulatory liability balance as of October 31,
2009, has been included in the base rate case application filed on January 29, 2010. MISO exit fee credit
amo